
REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
18700 Ward Street, Board Room, Fountain Valley, California 

January 15, 2014, 8:30 a.m. 
 

AGENDA 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS/PARTICIPATION 
At this time, members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board concerning 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Members of the public may also 
address the Board about a particular Agenda item at the time it is considered by the Board and 
before action is taken.  If the item is on the Consent Calendar, please inform the Board 
Secretary before action is taken on the Consent Calendar and the item will be removed for 
separate consideration. 
 
The Board requests, but does not require, that members of the public who want to address 
the Board complete a voluntary “Request to be Heard” form available from the Board 
Secretary prior to the meeting. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
Determine need and take action to agendize items(s) which arose subsequent to the posting of 
the Agenda.  (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of 
the Board members present, or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present.) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s 
business office located at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular 
business hours.  When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
EMPLOYEE SERVICE AWARDS 
        NEXT RESOLUTION NO.  1973 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Items 1 to 5) 
(All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion unless a Board 
member requests separate action on a specific item) 
 
1. MINUTES 

a. December 4, 2013 Workshop Board Meeting 
b. December 10, 2013 Special Board Meeting 
c. December 18, 2013 Regular Board Meeting 

 
Recommendation:  Approve as presented. 
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2. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 

a. Planning & Operations Committee:  December 2, 2013 
b. Administration & Finance Committee:  December 11, 2013 
c. Executive Committee Meeting:  December 19, 2013 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 

 
3. TREASURER'S REPORTS 

a. MWDOC Revenue/Cash Receipt Register as of December 31, 2013 
b. MWDOC Disbursement Registers (December/January) 

 
Recommendation: Ratify and approve as presented. 

 
c. Summary of Cash and Investment and Portfolio Master Summary Report 

(Cash and Investment report) as of November 30, 2013 
d. PARS Monthly Statement (OPEB Trust) 
e. Water Use Efficiency Projects Cash Flow 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 

 
4. FINANCIAL REPORT 

a. Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative For the Period 
Ending November 30, 2013 

b. Financial Report for the Year Ending June 30, 2013 
 

Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 
 
5. DWR PROPOSITION 50 GRANT FOR DESALINATION – APPLICATION FOR 

DOHENY DESA FUNDING 
 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 
 

– End Consent Calendar – 
ACTION CALENDAR 
 
6-1 REORGANIZATION OF THE MWDOC BOARD OF DIRECTORS; ELECTION OF 

PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT  RES. NOS. _____& _____ 
 

Recommendation: Nominate, and by Resolution(s), elect the President and Vice 
President of the Board. 

 
6-2 APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARY, TREASURER(S), AND LEGAL COUNSEL 

RES. NO. _____ 
 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution(s) appointing the Board Secretary, Treasurer, 
and Legal Counsel. 
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6-3 BUREAU OF RECLAMATION WATERSMART GRANT RESOLUTION 
          RES. NO. _____ 
 

Recommendation: Adopt the proposed Resolution in support of MWDOC’s 2014 
WaterSMART:  Water and Energy Efficiency grant application 
to be submitted to the Bureau of Reclamation by January 23, 
2014. 

 
 
6-4 FOUNDATIONAL ACTION PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENTS FOR 

CONSIDERATION:   
 

(1)  AGREEMENT BETWEEN MWDOC AND MET AND AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN MWDOC AND SOUTH COAST WATER DISTRICT AND 
LAGUNA BEACH COUNTY WATER DISTRICT FOR THE DOHENY DESAL 
PROJECT; AND 
 (2) AGREEMENT BETWEEN MWDOC AND MET AND AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN MWDOC AND SAN JUAN BASIN AUTORITY (SJBA) FOR THE 
SJBA PROJECT 

 
Recommendation: Authorize staff to execute all four agreements substantially in 

the form presented, subject to final review and comment by 
Legal Counsel.  

 
 6-5 ADOPT RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE DISTRICT’S RETIREE HEALTH AND 

MEDICAL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT PLAN  
          RES. NO. _____ 
 

Recommendation: Adopt the proposed Resolution establishing the District’s 
Retiree Health and Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan, 
effective January 15, 2014; and implement the Plan 
accordingly. 

 
 
INFORMATION CALENDAR (All matters under the Information Calendar will be 
Received/Filed as presented following any discussion that may occur) 
 
7. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT, JANUARY 2014 (ORAL AND WRITTEN) 
 

Recommendation: Receive and file report(s) as presented. 
 
8. MWDOC GENERAL INFORMATION ITEMS 

a. Board of Directors - Reports re: Conferences and Meetings and Requests for 
Future Agenda Topics 

 
 Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 
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CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 
9. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9. 
One Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California; all persons interested in the validity of the rates adopted by the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California on April 13, 2010, et al., former 
Los Angeles Superior Court, Case No. BS 126888, transferred on October 21, 2010, 
to San Francisco Superior Court, Case No. CPF-10-510830. 
 

10. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code 54956.9).  One 
Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California; all persons interested in the validity of the rates adopted by the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California on April 10, 2012 to be Effective 
January 1, 2013 and January 1, 2014; and Does 1-10, et al. (Los Angeles Superior 
Court Case No. BS137830), transferred on August 23, 2012 to San Francisco 
Superior Court, Case No. CPF-12-512466. 

 
11. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9: 
(One Case: Orange County Water District v. Northrop Corporation, et al.; Northrop 
Grumman Systems Corporation v. Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
(Orange County Superior Court, Case No. 04CC00715)) 

 
12. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9.  One case. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Note: Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by 
contacting Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District 
of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the nature of 
the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other contact 
information should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons 
requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the 
meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodation. 
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MINUTES OF THE WORKSHOP BOARD MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY (MWDOC) 
WITH THE MWDOC MET DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2013 
 
At 8:30 a.m. President Finnegan called to order the Workshop Board Meeting of the Board of 
Directors of Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC) at the District facilities 
located in Fountain Valley.  Director Clark led the Pledge of Allegiance and Secretary Goldsby 
called the roll.   
 
MWDOC DIRECTORS   MWDOC STAFF 
Brett R. Barbre*    Robert Hunter, General Manager 
Wayne A. Clark     Karl Seckel, Assistant General Manager 
Larry Dick*    Mal Richardson, Legal Counsel 
Susan Hinman    Maribeth Goldsby, Board Secretary 
Wayne Osborne    Harvey De La Torre, Principal Water Res. Planner 
Jeffery M. Thomas (absent)   Joe Berg, Water Use Efficiency Prog. Mgr. 
Joan Finnegan    Warren Greco, Assoc. Water Resources Analyst 
      Darcy Burke, Director of Public Affairs 
             

*Also MWDOC MET Directors 
 
OTHER MWDOC MET DIRECTORS 
Linda Ackerman 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
William Kahn El Toro Water District 
Robert Hanford Golden State Water Company 
Don Froelich Moulton Niguel Water District 
John Kennedy Orange County Water District 
Jim Leach Santa Margarita Water District 
Bob Moore South Coast Water District 
Rick Erkeneff South Coast Water District 
West Curry City of San Juan Capistrano 
Ed Means Means Consulting 
 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 
Determine need and take action to agendize item(s), which arose subsequent to the posting of 
the Agenda.  (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote 
of the Board members present or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a 
unanimous vote.) 
 
No items were presented. 
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ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
 
President Finnegan inquired as to whether there were any items distributed to the Board less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
No items were presented. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
President Finnegan whether any members of the public wished to comment on agenda items. 
 
No public comments were received, however the Board welcomed President Finnegan back 
after suffering an illness.   
 
PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 WATER SUPPLY CONDITIONS FOR 2014 
 
Principal Water Resources Planner, Harvey De La Torre, reported that DWR’s November 
snow survey resulted in the initial Table A State Water Project allocation of 5% for 2014.  The 
initial allocation is the first estimate of what DWR expects it can deliver for the new year.  Mr. 
De La Torre advised that this is only the second time in history that the initial forecast is so low, 
however it is still early in the water year and DWR will update the allocation as the winter 
progresses.  Mr. De La Torre did note that California is currently on course to experience the 
driest calendar year period (2013) ever recorded, highlighting that several California counties 
are considered in extreme drought right now, the state is in need of a very wet winter in terms 
of rainfall and snowpack to replenish groundwater and reservoir levels. 
 
Considerable discussion ensued regarding shortage levels and triggers for water shortage 
allocations. 
 
The Board received and filed the report as presented. 
 
 MWD ITEMS CRITICAL TO ORANGE COUNTY 
 

a. MET’s Water Supply Conditions 
b. MET’s Finance and Rate Issues 

 
Considerable discussion ensued regarding MET’s discretionary funds, MET’s two-year budget, 
how to allocate available revenue (pay debt, build reserves, etc.), and how to avoid major rate 
increases. 
 
The Board also discussed MET’s efforts on water use efficiency and how this might affect the 
budget (less sales). 
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c. Colorado River Issues 
d. Bay Delta/State Water Project Issues 
e. MET’s Ocean Desalination Policy and Potential Participation by MET in the 

South Orange Coastal Ocean Desalination Project (formerly Dana Point 
Desalination Project) 

f. Second Lower Cross Feeder Project 
g. Orange County Reliability Projects 

 
The Board received and filed the report as presented. 
 
 OTHER INPUT OR QUESTIONS ON MET ISSUES FROM MEMBER AGENCIES 
 
Director Dick reported that the December MET agenda is anticipated to be fairly light.   
 
Director Barbre reported on his activities with MET’s Business and Legislative Committees.  
 

METROPOLITAN (MET) BOARD AND COMMITTEE AGENDA DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

a. Summary regarding November MET Board Meeting 
b. Review Items of significance for the Upcoming MET Board and Committee 

Agendas 
 
The Board received and filed the reports as presented without discussion or comments. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 9:50 a.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Maribeth Goldsby, Board Secretary 
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MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
 December 10, 2013 
 
At 4:00 p.m., President Finnegan called to order the Special Meeting of the Municipal Water 
District of Orange County Board of Directors Conference Room 101 at the District facilities, 
18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California.  Director Osborne led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Secretary Goldsby called the roll. 
 
MWDOC DIRECTORS STAFF PRESENT 
Brett R. Barbre Robert Hunter, General Manager 
Wayne A. Clark Karl Seckel, Assistant General Manager 
Larry Dick Maribeth Goldsby, Board Secretary 
Joan Finnegan   Harvey De La Torre, Prin. Water Res. Planner   
Susan Hinman       
Wayne Osborne  
Jeffery M. Thomas  
  
ALSO PRESENT 
Robert Hanford    Golden State Water Company 
Doug Reinhart Irvine Ranch Water District 
Larry McKenney    Moulton Niguel Water District 
Mike Markus     Orange County Water District 
John Kennedy    Orange County Water District 
Laer Pearce     Laer Pearce & Associates 
John Earl     Surf City Voice 
Debbie Cook 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No public comments were received. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

DISCUSS KEY PRINCIPLES WITH THE MWDOC BOARD REGARDING 
CONSOLIDATION DISCUSSIONS 
 

President Finnegan suggested that the Chairman of MWDOC’s Ad Hoc Committee on 
Consolidation (Director Brett Barbre) update the Board regarding the Committee’s activities. 
 
Director Barbre advised that the Ad Hoc Committee has met a number of times and 
discussed a variety of issues regarding consolidation.  The MWDOC Ad Hoc Committee 
also met jointly three times with OCWD’s Ad Hoc Committee on Consolidation.  The first 
joint meeting consisted of establishing the principles of the committee (one agency, one 
vote, and to jointly report progress).   At the second joint meeting, the Ad Hoc Committees 
reviewed the Comparison of Powers and Authority prepared by Legal Counsel, and the 
Committees directed both Legal Counsels to meet and discuss how to approach the powers 
o fa  new agency, including the powers of both agencies.  At the third joint meeting, it was 
noted that the OCWD Board needed to review the issues prior to further joint discussions of 
the Ad Hoc Committees.  Director Barbre referenced the First Consolidation Report that 
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was reviewed by the MWDOC/OCWD Joint Planning Committee on October 23, 2013 
(Attachment 1).  
 
The MWDOC Board held considerable discussion regarding many of the outstanding 
issues, including the governance structure, the MET representation, and weighting of votes 
between basin/non-basin agencies.  
 
Director Barbre suggested the new agency might consist of 8 divisions, plus the Cities of 
Anaheim, Santa Ana, and Fullerton, thereby consisting of 11 Directors.  He advised that the 
Ad Hoc Committees agreed that the three cities would be unaffected by the consolidation. 
 
Director Hinman expressed concern with respect to the South County agencies, noting that 
South County purchases a significant amount of water from MWDOC; she advised that 
further analysis would be necessary.   
 
The Board then reviewed the proposed Draft Principles of Consolidation.   
 
Several comments/questions from the audience were received, including what, if anything,  
would the region be gaining, does this make financial sense, what were the hurdles that 
halted prior discussions on consolidation, how basin agencies would vote on non-basin 
issues, and vice versa, and whether the issue of incompatibility of offices would be 
addressed in any new legislation.   The Board also discussed how the new Board would be 
elected (e.g., at large or by division).   
 
Following discussion, the Board confirmed that a formal position supporting a consolidation 
has not been adopted, that many issues need to be ironed out prior to expressing support, 
both Boards would have to adopt support positions prior to seeking legislation, and that 
more information will be reviewed by the Ad Hoc Committees and subsequently shared as 
discussions progress. 
 
Upon general concurrence, the Board supported the Principles of Consolidation, with the 
following additions: 
 

• Support for the concept of 11 Directors (8 divisions, plus the three Cities), and 
• A statement be included in the Principles that “that all elected directors shall 

vote on all matters” 
 
Said revised Principles of Consolidation (as revised) is attached (Attachment 2). 
 
It was noted that the Orange County Water District Board of Directors would be reviewing 
this item on December 11, 2013. 
   
ADJOURNMENT  
 
On behalf of the Board, President Finnegan thanked all in attendance for attending and 
providing input, and at 5:35 p.m., President Finnegan adjourned the special meeting. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
_______________________________ 
Maribeth Goldsby, Secretary 
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(Following MWDOC Board Input on 12-10-13) 

MWDOC PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION 

 

GENERAL 

 

The overriding basis for consolidation decisions is "the best interest of the citizens of Orange County," 

the best management of regional water resources and the most effective and efficient organizational 

structure. 

 

EXISTING RIGHTS & LIABILITIES 

 

- The consolidation will not change existing groundwater or surface water rights. 

- Existing financial liabilities will remain with the currently responsible agencies. 

- The rights and representation of the Three Cities will not change. They retain their status, seats and 

voting power as MWD member agencies.  

 

GOVERNANCE 

 

- The initial and subsequent Board of Directors will be elected from defined geographic divisions (except 

for the Directors appointed by the Three Cities). 

- Divisions will be independently developed to reflect the "community of interest" being the retail water 

service boundaries to the maximum extent possible. 

- The total number of Directors will be reduced from existing combined total of the MWDOC and OCWD 

boards.  The general preference would be for a Board with 8 elected directors, plus the 3 directors from 

the Three Cities, for a total of 11 directors.  The preference is for all elected directors to vote on all 

matters. 

- The Three Cities will each retain one Director. 

 

ORGANIZATION & POWERS 

 

- The consolidation will require state legislation.  

- In order to maximize the effectiveness of the consolidated organization, new legislation should be 

developed which forms a new organization with a new name.  

- The existing legislative powers of both MWDOC and OCWD should be maintained in the new 

legislation. Powers should not be increased or decreased.  
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MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
 December 18, 2013 
 
At 8:30 a.m. President Finnegan called to order the Regular Meeting of the Municipal Water 
District of Orange County in the Board Room at the District facilities located in Fountain 
Valley.  Director Clark led the Pledge of Allegiance and Secretary Goldsby called the roll. 
 
MWDOC DIRECTORS    STAFF 
Brett R. Barbre    Rob Hunter, General Manager 
Wayne A. Clark    Karl Seckel, Assistant General Manager 
Larry Dick     Russ Behrens, Legal Counsel 
Joan C. Finnegan    Maribeth Goldsby, Board Secretary 
Susan Hinman    Darcy Burke, Director of Public Affairs 
Wayne Osborne    Cathy Harris, Admin. Services Manager 
Jeffery M. Thomas    Joe Berg, Water Use Efficiency Prog. Mgr. 
      Harvey De La Torre, Prin. Water Res. Planner 
      Warren Greco, Assoc. Water Res. Analyst 
      Judy Pfister, Accounting Supervisor 
ALSO PRESENT 
Ray Miller     City of San Juan Capistrano 
Gary Melton     Yorba Linda Water District 
Mike Dunbar     Emerald Bay Service District 
Doug Reinhart    Irvine Ranch Water District 
William Kahn     El Toro Water District 
Bob Hill     El Toro Water District 
Bob Moore     South Coast Water District 
Andrew Brunhart    South Coast Water District 
Brian Ragland    City of Huntington Beach 
John Kennedy    Orange County Water District 
Betsy Eglash     Brady & Associates 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
President Finnegan announced members of the public wishing to comment on agenda 
items could do so after the item has been discussed by the Board and requested members 
of the public identify themselves when called on.  Ms. Finnegan asked whether there were 
any comments on other items which would be heard at this time. 
 
South Coast Water District (SCWD) Director Bob Moore introduced SCWD’s new General 
Manager, Andrew Brunhart, to the Board. 
  
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
Determine need and take action to agendize items(s), which arose subsequent to the 
posting of the Agenda.  (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a 
two-thirds vote of the Board members present or, if less than two-thirds of the Board 
members are present, a unanimous vote.) 
 
No items were presented. 
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ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
President Finnegan inquired as to whether there were any items distributed to the Board 
less than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
No items were presented. 
 
EMPLOYEE AWARDS 
 
President Finnegan presented Judy Pfister a commemorative clock on behalf of the Board; 
Ms. Finnegan and Assistant General Manager Seckel recognized her upcoming retirement 
and twenty-nine years of service with the District. 
 
President Finnegan then presented Lina Gunawan with an award for five-years of service 
with the District. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
President Finnegan stated all matters under the Consent Calendar would be approved by 
one MOTION unless a Director wished to consider an item separately. 
 
Upon MOTION by Director Barbre, seconded by Directors Dick and Thomas, and carried (7-
0), the Board approved the of Consent Calendar items as follows: 
 
 MINUTES 
 
The following minutes were approved. 
 

November 6, 2013 Workshop Board Meeting 
November 7, 2013 Special Board Meeting 
November 20, 2013 Regular Board Meeting 
 

 COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 
 
The following Committee Meeting reports were received and filed as presented.  
 

Planning & Operations Committee Meeting:  November 4, 2013 
Administration & Finance Committee Meeting: November 13, 2013 
Public Affairs & Legislation Committee Meeting:  October 21, 2013 
Public Affairs & Legislation Committee Meeting:  November 12, 2013 
Executive Committee Meeting:  November 21, 2013 
 

 TREASURER'S REPORTS 
 
The following items were ratified and approved as presented. 
 

MWDOC Revenue/Cash Receipt Register as of November 30, 2013 
MWDOC Disbursement Registers (November/December)  
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The following items were received and filed as presented. 
 
MWDOC Summary of Cash and Investment and Portfolio Master Summary Report 
(Cash and Investment report) as of October 31, 2013 

 
 PARS Monthly Statement (OPEB Trust) 
 

Water Use Efficiency Projects Cash Flow 
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
The following item was received and filed as presented. 
 
 Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the period ending 

October 31, 2013 
 
 METROPOLITAN FUNDED – MEMBER AGENCY ADMINISTERED FUNDING FOR 

MWDOC AND MEMBER AGENCY WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS 
 
The Board ratified the General Manager’s execution of pass-through funding agreements 
for member agency access to Metropolitan Funded – Member Agency Administered 
Programs. 
 
 TRAVEL TO WASHINGTON, DC IN 2014 TO COVER FEDERAL INITIATIVES 
 
The Board received and filed the report. 
 

END CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
ACTION CALENDAR 
 
 AMENDMENT TO THE DISTRICT FLEXIBLE BENEFITS SPENDING PLAN 
 
Upon MOTION by Director Barbre, seconded by Director Thomas, and carried (7-0), the 
Board authorized the amendment to the District’s Flexible Benefits Spending Plan to allow 
plan participants to carry over into a new plan year up to $500 of the unused health Flexible 
Spending Account balances remaining at the end of a Plan year; and eliminate the current 
policy of the “grace period” provision, effective with the January 1, 2014 Plan Year. 

 
REVISIONS TO PERSONNEL MANUAL SECTION REGARDING RETIREE 
HEALTH AND WELFARE COVERAGE 
 

Upon MOTION by Director Thomas, seconded by Director Barbre, and carried (7-0), the 
Board approved revisions to the Personnel Manual section regarding Retiree Medical and 
Elective Health and Welfare Coverage, as presented. 
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ADOPT RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC 
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CALPERS) FOR THE POST-RETIREMENT 
EMPLOYMENT OF JUDY PFISTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTION 7522.56 
 

Upon MOTION by Director Thomas, seconded by Director Hinman, and carried (7-0), the 
Board adopted RESOLUTION NO. 1971, approving an exception to the 180-day waiting 
period for the post-retirement employment of Judy Pfister in accordance with Government 
Code Section 7522.56.  Said RESOLUTION NO. 1971 was adopted by the following roll call 
vote: 
 

AYES:  Directors Barbre, Clark, Dick, Finnegan, Hinman, Osborne & Thomas 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN None 
 
APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY TREASURER 
 

Upon MOTION by Director Barbre, seconded by Director Thomas, and carried (7-0), the 
Board adopted RESOLUTION NO. 1972, appointing Hilary Chumpitazi as Deputy 
Treasurer.  Said RESOLUTION NO. 1972 was adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES:  Directors Barbre, Clark, Dick, Finnegan, Hinman, Osborne & Thomas 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN None 

 
INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 
 GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT, DECEMBER 2013 
 
General Manager Hunter advised that the General Manager’s report was included in the 
Board packet.   
 
General Manager Hunter referenced a recent article in the OC Register regarding the 
consolidation discussions between MWDOC and OCWD, noting his disappointment with the 
article which focused on the issues surrounding a name change, rather than the substantive 
issues facing both Boards.  
 
Assistant General Manager Seckel advised that Irvine Ranch Water District awarded the 
Baker Treatment Plant agreements; he congratulated Orange County on another great 
project. 
 
The Board received and filed the report as presented. 
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MWDOC GENERAL INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
In addition to the regular (and special) MWDOC Board and Committee meetings attended 
by the Directors, the following reports were made on conferences and meetings attended on 
behalf of the District. 
 
Director Hinman reported on attending the WACO and WACO Planning Committee 
meetings, the MWDOC Special Board meeting on consolidation, and the ACWA Local 
Government Committee meeting. 
 
Director Thomas reported on attending two Ad Hoc Committee meetings on consolidation, 
the Santa Margarita Water District Board meeting (wherein he introduced Rob Hunter), the 
Colorado River Water Users Association conference, and the ACWA conference. 
 
Director Clark reported on attending the WACO meeting, the Ad Hoc Committee meetings 
on consolidation, and the Urban Water Institute planning meetings. 
 
Director Osborne highlighted his attendance at the Special Board meeting on consolidation, 
and the WACO meeting. 
 
Director Barbre reported on his attendance and participation at MET meetings, as well as a 
Colorado River inspection trip he hosted, a recent legislative trip to Washington, DC, the 
Yorba Linda Water District Board meeting, and the Brea and La Habra City Council 
meetings.  Mr. Barbre also updated the Board on his efforts working with representatives 
from Orange County Water District on removing MET from litigation. 
 
Director Dick reported on his attendance and participation at MET meetings, as well as 
attending WACO, a tour with Assembly Member Travis Allen, the Orange County Taxpayers 
Association meeting, a meeting with Senator Ackerman, the ACWA conference, the 
Colorado River Water Users Association conference, and the WACO Planning Committee 
meeting. 
 
Director Finnegan reported on attending the ISDOC Executive Committee meeting, the 
Orange County Water District meeting regarding consolidation discussions, the MWDOC 
Special Board meeting on consolidation, and the Center for Demographic Research 
meeting. 
 
Legal Counsel Behrens made an announcement on voting procedures, that pursuant to SB 
751 (effective January 1, 2014), which requires governing bodies to publicly report and 
assure recordation of each director’s vote, and that the President of the Board will now need 
to call for Ayes, Noes, and Abstentions during each vote. 
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CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 
At  9:08 a.m., President Finnegan announced that the Board would adjourn to closed 
session for conferences with Legal Counsel regarding the following: 
 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9.  One case. 

 
 
RECONVENE 
 
The Board reconvened at 9:34 a.m. and Legal Counsel Behrens announced that no 
reportable action was taken in closed session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, President Finnegan adjourned 
the meeting at 9:35 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
_______________________________ 
Maribeth Goldsby, Secretary 
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 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
Jointly with the 

PLANNING & OPERATIONS (P&O) COMMITTEE 
December 2, 2013 8:30 a.m. to 8:55 a.m. 

MWDOC Conference Room 101 
 
 

P&O Committee: Staff: 
Director Wayne Osborne, Chair Karl Seckel, Joe Berg,  
Director Brett Barbre Pat Meszaros 
Director Susan Hinman  
 Also Present: 
 President Joan Finnegan 
 Director Wayne Clark 
 Joe Byrne, Best, Best and Krieger 
 John Earl, Surf City Voice 
 
Director Osborne called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
No comments were received. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 
No items were presented. 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
 
No items were presented. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 METROPOLITAN FUNDED—MEMBER AGENCY ADMINISTERED FUNDING FOR 

MWDOC AND MEMBER AGENCY WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS 
 
Director Barbre inquired whether these programs were pass-through funding, i.e., pass 
through from MET to MWDOC and MWDOC administers it or pass through MWDOC 
entirely to our member agencies and why wouldn’t we want to maintain the administration of 
these programs because that pass through minimizes MWDOC’s role.  Director Barbre 
further noted that one of the challenges we have policy wise is the view that we’re irrelevant 
and not needed as an agency.  Mr. Berg responded that the programs you see listed are 
much more customized and tailored to our retail agencies’ advantage and that MWDOC is 
involved in every aspect of the program.  Director Barbre stated that at every opportunity we 
should remind our member agencies that even though these are core projects, we 
(MWDOC) used our influence to customize the program to our retail agencies’ advantage.   
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Director Osborne inquired as to how payment is made on these programs to which Mr. Berg 
responded that when a program is completed, the retail agency pays the contractor and 
then reports and invoices MWDOC and then we report and invoice MET.  MET then 
provides us a credit on our water bill and we, in turn, credit the retail agency.   
 
Discussion ensued on low flow toilets and the saturation rate in Orange County.  Director 
Hinman inquired about the older toilets and what the gallons per flush were.  Mr. Berg 
responded that the highest were 5—7 gallons per flush; currently, they’re at 1.6 gallons per 
flush and in 2014, 1.28 gallons per flush for any toilet manufactured and sold in California.  
Director Hinman inquired what our productive saturation rate is in Orange County and also 
what our most productive challenge is.  Mr. Berg responded that in 2000, MWDOC 
conducted a plumbing fixture saturation study and, at that time, we were over 75% 
saturated with low flow shower heads and our toilet saturation was 65-75% saturated with 
1.6 gallons per flush toilets.  If you were to project to where we’re at today, we are fully 
saturated with1.6 gal toilets.  We’ll never get 100% saturation because there are some 
people who will never switch out to low flow toilets.  With regard to our most productive 
challenge, about 50% of our urban water use is in landscape which involves planting 
material, maintaining irrigation equipment and people’s habits.  And, you could be 100% 
efficient on paper but as soon as you plant, it’s reduced to 80%. 
 
Director Dick stated that MWDOC staff is doing a fine job with the water use efficiency 
programs and inquired whether we have a minimum square footage on turf replacement.  
Mr. Berg responded that we do have a 250 square foot minimum, although there have been 
some that came in at less; however, we still process the applications as a customer service 
incentive.  Director Dick stated that we have issues in some buildings with low flow toilets 
and waste lines are at issue.  Mr. Berg responded that in large commercial buildings, 
primarily warehouse-type buildings, if you have restroom at back end and a long distance 
drain line, there have been problems with lines getting clogged.  This is something the 
standards people are looking at to resolve that issue. 
 
Director Barbre reported that he read an article about Chicago skyscrapers ripping out all 
low flow toilets because they were creating clogs.  Mr. Berg responded that he wasn’t 
familiar with the situation but he did express that waterless urinals have been a problem and 
create clogging issues and he does not recommend them.  Also, that disposable wipes are 
creating a lot of difficulty for wastewater agencies as they don’t degrade as manufacturers 
claim and are causing blockages and agencies are having to hydroflush. 
 
The item was unanimously referred to the December 18, 2013 Board meeting for approval. 
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INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 
 STATUS OF ONGOING MWDOC RELIABILITY AND ENGINEERING/PLANNING 

PROJECTS 
 

WATER USE EFFICIENCY REPORTS 
a. Status of Water Use Efficiency Projects 
b. Water Use Efficiency Programs Savings and Implementation Report 

 
REVIEW OF ISSUES RELATED TO CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS, FACILITY 
AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE, WATER STORAGE, WATER QUALITY, 
CONJUNCTIVE USE PROGRAMS, EDUCATION, DISTRICT FACILITIES, and 
MEMBER-AGENCY RELATIONS 

 
No information was presented. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be brought before the Committee, the meeting adjourned 
at 8:55 a.m. 
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE (A&F) COMMITTEE 

December 11, 2013 – 5:00 p.m. to 5:17 p.m. 
MWDOC Conference Room 101 

 
Committee Members: Staff: 
Director Jeff Thomas, Chair (absent) Karl Seckel, Cathy Harris, Darcy Burke, 
Director Brett Barbre Judy Pfister, Katie Davanaugh 
Director Wayne Osborne Hilary Chumpitazi 
 
 Also Present: 
 Director Susan Hinman 
 Kevin Burton, Irvine Ranch Water District 
 
Director Barbre chaired the meeting in the absence of Director Thomas and called the 
meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  Director Hinman acted as committee member. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Cathy Harris introduced Hilary Chumpitazi as the new Accounting Supervisor.  Hilary 
attended Cal State Fullerton and has a degree in Finance. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 
No items were presented. 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
 
No items were presented. 
 
PROPOSED BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS-ACTION 
 

TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

a. Revenue/Cash Receipt Report –  November 2013 
b. Disbursement Approval Report for the month of December 2013 
c. Disbursement Ratification Report for the month of November 2013 
d. GM Approved Disbursement Report for the month of November 2013 
e. Water Use Efficiency Projects Cash Flow – November 30, 2013 
f. Consolidated Summary of Cash and Investment – October 2013 
g. OPEB Trust Fund monthly statement 

 
The Committee reviewed the Treasurer’s Report with Director Osborne requesting an 
explanation of the disbursements to 1) Ron Gastelum and 2) Means Consulting.  Mr. Seckel 
responded that the payment to 1) Ron Gastelum is a shared cost between a workgroup 
comprised of 10-12 MWDOC member agencies for work on Metropolitan Water District issues 
and 2) Ed Means has been tracking MET issues and has been assisting Karl Seckel and 
Darcy Burke on various reliability and communications issues. 
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FINANCIAL REPORT Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative 
for the period ending October 31, 2013 

 
Upon MOTION by Director Osborne, seconded by Director Hinman, and carried (3-0), the 
Treasurer’s Report and Financial Reports were referred to the December 18, 2013 Board 
meeting for approval. 
 
Director Barbre inquired when the contracts for Townsend and Barker reports are due for 
renewal and held discussion on whether they were renewed on an annual basis or during the 
budget.  Staff will bring those 2 contracts for consideration in January, noting that they are 
due in January. 
 
Director Barbre inquired what the voting process will be with items presented to the 
Committee due to changes with the Brown Act, and whether a formal roll call vote will be 
required.  Staff noted that a memo from legal counsel is pending that will discuss the 
procedures starting in January. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY TREASURER 
 
Upon MOTION by Director Osborne, seconded by Director Hinman, and carried (3-0) the 
Appointment of the Deputy Treasurer was referred to the December 18, 2013 Board meeting 
for approval. 
 

AMENDMENT TO THE DISTRICT FLEXIBLE BENEFITS SPENDING PLAN 
 
Upon MOTION by Director Osborne, seconded by Director Hinman, and carried (3-0) the 
Amendment to the Flexible Benefits Spending Plan was referred to the December 18, 2013 
Board meeting for approval. 
 

REVISIONS TO PERSONNEL MANUAL SECTION REGARDING RETIREE HEALTH 
AND WELFARE COVERAGE  

 
It was noted that this item was presented for ‘housekeeping’ only, clarifying some of the 
language in the policy. 
 
Upon MOTION by Director Osborne, seconded by Director Hinman, and carried (3-0) the 
Revisions to the Personnel Manual Regarding Retiree Health and Welfare Coverage was 
referred to the December 18, 2013 Board meeting for approval. 
 
Ms. Harris noted that a formal policy will be presented to the Committee in January regarding 
the $1,800 supplemental insurance reimbursement for retirees. 
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ADOPT RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC 
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CalPERS) FOR THE POST-RETIREMENT 
EMPLOYMENT OF JUDY PFISTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTION 7522.56 

 
Upon MOTION by Director Osborne, seconded by Director Hinman, and carried (3-0) the 
Resolution for post-retirement employment by Judy Pfister was referred to the December 18, 
2013 Board meeting for approval. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

UPDATE REGARDING (1) AGREEMENT RELATING TO BAKER PIPELINE 
CAPACITY TRANSFERS AMONG THE BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
PARTICIPANTS (CAPACITY TRANSFER AGREEMENT) AND (2) AMENDED AND 
RESTATED AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT (CONSTRUCTION & 
OPERATIONS AGREEMENT)  

 
Mr. Kevin Burton (Irvine Ranch Water District) noted that all of the participants’ Boards have 
approved the agreements and the Irvine Ranch Water District Board is anticipated to finalize 
the agreement on December 16, 2013 and award the construction contract. 
 

MONTHLY WATER USAGE DATA, TIER 2 PROJECTION & WATER SUPPLY 
INFORMATION 

 
Director Hinman inquired on water sales from MET to basin vs. non-basin agencies. 
 
The following informational reports were received and filed. 
 

GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE 
 

DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS 
 

a. Administration 
b. Finance and Information Technology 

 
OTHER ITEMS 
 

REVIEW ISSUES REGARDING DISTRICT ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL 
MATTERS, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FINANCE AND INSURANCE 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be brought before the Committee, the meeting adjourned 
at 5:17 p.m. 
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
 jointly with the 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
December 19, 2013, 8:30 a.m. to 10:20 a.m. 

Conference Room 102 
 
Committee:  Staff: 
Director Finnegan, President  R. Hunter, K. Seckel, M. Goldsby 
Director Thomas, Vice President (absent) 
Director Clark  Also Present: 
      Director Osborne 
  Director Hinman 
  Director Dick 
  Director Barbre 
          
 
At 8:30 a.m., President Finnegan called the meeting to order. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
No public comments were received. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 
No items were presented. 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
 
At the beginning of the meeting, Staff distributed the draft agendas for the January Committee 
meetings. 
 
DISCUSSION REGARDING UPCOMING ACTIVITIES OF SIGNIFICANCE 
 
The Committee discussed the progress of the Ad Hoc Committee on Consolidation’s efforts 
with OCWD, advising that the OCWD Board also adopted Principles of Consolidation at its 
meeting on December 18.  The Committee held considerable discussion regarding the 
differences between the Principles of Consolidation that each agency adopted, as well as 
various components/issues facing the consolidation discussions, including division 
boundaries (and the need to retain an independent consultant to draw division boundaries), 
pros and cons, and South County issues, voting issues, etc. 
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 2 

MEMBER AGENCY RELATIONS 
 
The Committee reviewed the proposed Budget schedule for FY 2014/15, noting that the 
Core/Choice programs will be discussed with the Member Agencies later in the day at the 
Member Agency Manager’s meeting.   
 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE PROPOSALS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS 
  
The Committee reviewed and discussed the draft agendas for each of the Committee 
meetings and made revisions/additions as noted below.   
 

a. Planning & Operations Committee 
 
No new information was added. 
 

b. Workshop Board Meeting 
 
No new information was added. 
 

c. Administration & Finance Committee 
 
No new information was added. 
 

d. Public Affairs & Legislation (PAL) Committee 
 
The Committee discussed the Townsend Public Affairs contract (and TPA’s services), the 
budget and advocacy efforts in general.  Director Dick commented on Sacramento 
involvement, noting that it would be prudent for TPA to secure dates for Directors to travel 
to Sacramento; it was noted staff would discuss this issue with TPA. 
 

e. MWDOC/OCWD Joint Planning Committee 
 
The Committee suggested topics could include an update on the Poseidon Project, an 
update on OCWD’s lawsuits, and conjunctive use within the OCWD basin by South County 
agencies. 
 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S ACTIVITIES 
 
It was noted that Mr. Hunter would be collecting goals and objectives from each Director in 
preparation of a workshop on strategic planning. 
 
The Committee also requested that staff provide regular updates to the MET Directors on 
issues/concerns/priorities of other MET member agencies.
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 3 

REVIEW AND DISCUSS DISTRICT AND BOARD ACTIVITIES 
 
No new information was presented. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be brought before the Committee, the meeting adjourned 
at 10:20 a.m. 
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ASSETS Amount
Cash in Bank 74,520.02
Investments 8,999,752.18
Accounts Receivable 37,319,096.92
Accounts Receivable - Other 152,982.68
Accrued Interest Receivable 28,257.50
Prepaids/Deposits 249,723.47
Leasehold Improvements 2,796,412.08
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 536,387.64
     Less:  Accum Depreciation (2,364,968.77)

              TOTAL ASSETS $47,792,163.72

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts Payable 36,537,276.03
Accrued Salaries and Benefits Payable 255,534.48
Other Liabilities 461,981.79
Other post employment benefits (OPEB) liabilities 31,956.00
Unearned Revenue 1,188,194.86
          Total  Liabilities 38,474,943.16

Fund Balances
Restricted Fund Balances

Water Fund - T2C 1,010,448.00
Water Fund - CC 90,285.64

T t l R t i t d F d B l 1 100 733 64

Municipal Water District of Orange County
Combined Balance Sheet
As of November 30, 2013

          Total Restricted Fund Balances 1,100,733.64

Unrestricted Fund Balances
Designated Reserves

General Operations 1,295,004.30       
Grant & Project Cash Flow 1,000,000.00       
Building Repair 239,491.00          

Total Designated Reserves 2,534,495.30

       GENERAL FUND 1,612,576.09       
       WEROC 49,543.25

          Total Unrestricted Fund Balances 4,196,614.64

Excess Revenue over Expenditures
     Operating Fund 4,074,467.03
     Other Funds (54,594.75)
Total Fund Balance 9,317,220.56

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $47,792,163.72
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Annual Budget
Month to Date Year to Date Budget % Used Encumbrance Remaining

REVENUES

Retail Connection Charge 0.00 5,129,804.40 5,121,824.00 100.16% 0.00 (7,980.40)
Water Increment 42,193.00 428,103.69 709,840.00 60.31% 0.00 281,736.31

Water rate revenues 42,193.00 5,557,908.09 5,831,664.00 95.31% 0.00 273,755.91

Interest Revenue 8,471.70 46,703.88 138,000.00 33.84% 0.00 91,296.12

Subtotal 50,664.70 5,604,611.97 5,969,664.00 93.88% 0.00 365,052.03

Choice Programs 0.00 907,845.48 1,040,259.00 87.27% 0.00 132,413.52
Miscellaneous Income 177.53 1,741.16 3,000.00 58.04% 0.00 1,258.84
School Contracts 5,940.48 14,111.76 70,000.00 20.16% 0.00 55,888.24

Subtotal 6,118.01 923,698.40 1,113,259.00 82.97% 0.00 189,560.60

TOTAL REVENUES  56,782.71 6,528,310.37 7,082,923.00 92.17% 0.00 554,612.63

Municpal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

General Fund
From July thru November 2013
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Annual Budget
Month to Date Year to Date Budget % Used Encumbrance Remaining

Municpal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

General Fund
From July thru November 2013

EXPENSES

Salaries & Wages 221,966.26 1,161,797.68 2,914,175.00 39.87% 8,000.00 1,744,377.32
Salaries & Wages ‐ Grant Recovery 0.00 (10,039.66) (20,851.00) 48.15% 0.00 (10,811.34)
Directors' Compensation   13,496.60 67,715.70 200,357.00 33.80% 0.00 132,641.30
MWD Representation 6,282.90 34,672.30 114,490.00 30.28% 0.00 79,817.70
Employee Benefits  64,826.80 333,447.29 982,059.00 33.95% 0.00 648,611.71
OPEB Annual Contribution 0.00 0.00 111,112.00 0.00% 0.00 111,112.00
Employee Benefits ‐ Grant Recovery 0.00 (3,018.39) 0.00 0.00% 0.00 3,018.39
Director's Benefits 6,955.96 34,348.43 87,592.00 39.21% 0.00 53,243.57
Health Ins $'s for Retirees 2,761.88 21,721.64 44,463.00 48.85% 0.00 22,741.36
Training Expense 370.00 1,361.00 14,200.00 9.58% 0.00 12,839.00
Tuition Reimbursement 0.00 1,969.15 6,000.00 32.82% 0.00 4,030.85

Personnel Expenses 316,660.40 1,643,975.14 4,453,597.00 36.91% 8,000.00 2,801,621.86

Engineering Expense 22,500.00 30,000.00 170,000.00 17.65% 31,500.00 108,500.00
Legal Expense    33,957.01 155,088.79 304,500.00 50.93% 94,152.71 55,258.50
Audit Expense 0.00 15,500.00 23,000.00 67.39% 2,400.00 5,100.00
Professional Services 23,285.07 255,908.82 819,102.00 31.24% 267,899.00 295,294.18

Professional Fees 79,742.08 456,497.61 1,316,602.00 34.67% 395,951.71 464,152.68

Conference‐Staff 0.00 3,640.00 12,520.00 29.07% 0.00 8,880.00
Conference‐Directors 120.00 1,545.00 7,960.00 19.41% 0.00 6,415.00
Travel & Accom.‐Staff 929.19 3,570.86 28,360.00 12.59% 450.00 24,339.14
Travel & Accom.‐Directors 0.00 1,557.98 15,950.00 9.77% 0.00 14,392.02

Travel & Conference 1,049.19 10,313.84 64,790.00 15.92% 450.00 54,026.16

Membership/Sponsorship 17,107.00 68,625.70 88,087.00 77.91% 0.00 19,461.30

CDR Support 0.00 19,979.50 39,140.00 51.05% 19,979.50 (819.00)
Dues & Memberships 17,107.00 88,605.20 127,227.00 69.64% 19,979.50 18,642.30

Business Expense 682.70 2,982.41 7,000.00 42.61% 0.00 4,017.59
Maintenance Office 8,592.26 45,262.27 104,880.00 43.16% 54,727.73 4,890.00
Storage Rental & Equipment Lease 1,375.44 5,318.16 14,309.00 37.17% 7,989.84 1,001.00
Office Supplies 2,593.55 9,939.29 24,000.00 41.41% 2,396.30 11,664.41
Postage/Mail Delivery 847.18 3,578.75 15,100.00 23.70% 3,036.70 8,484.55
Subscriptions & Books 30.00 493.62 2,400.00 20.57% 0.00 1,906.38
Reproduction Expense 0.00 9,187.14 68,587.00 13.39% 9,828.45 49,571.41
Maintenance‐Computers 588.50 1,233.29 7,500.00 16.44% 807.75 5,458.96
Software Purchase 0.00 1,769.94 9,500.00 18.63% 0.00 7,730.06
Software Support 0.00 9,015.14 54,400.00 16.57% 0.00 45,384.86
Automotive Expense 1,032.24 5,075.39 14,300.00 35.49% 0.00 9,224.61
Toll Road Charges 5.25 500.45 1,290.00 38.79% 0.00 789.55
Insurance Expense 7,078.18 40,593.40 96,000.00 42.28% 0.00 55,406.60
Utilities ‐ Telephone 1,127.28 5,951.77 16,900.00 35.22% 0.00 10,948.23
Bank Fees 861.64 4,521.87 10,560.00 42.82% 0.00 6,038.13
Miscellaneous Expense 6,839.09 25,048.49 80,550.00 31.10% 2,844.74 52,656.77
MWDOC's Contrb. To WEROC 9,068.00 45,344.00 108,820.00 41.67% 0.00 63,476.00
Depreciation Expense 2,941.96 14,709.92 0.00 0.00% 0.00 (14,709.92)

Other Expenses 43,663.27 230,525.30 636,096.00 36.24% 81,631.51 323,939.19

Building Repair & Maintenance 0.00 13,596.00 315,000.00 4.32% 166,575.00 134,829.00
Capital Acquisition 6,559.77 10,330.25 23,500.00 43.96% 3,880.00 9,289.75

TOTAL EXPENSES 464,781.71 2,453,843.34 6,936,812.00 35.37% 676,467.72 3,806,500.94

NET INCOME (LOSS) (407,999.00) 4,074,467.03 146,111.00
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Annual Budget

Month to Date Year to Date Budget % Used Remaining

WATER REVENUES

Water Sales 14,895,752.30 80,963,956.80 145,306,842.00 55.72% 64,342,885.20

Readiness to Serve Charge 885,708.68 4,428,543.40 10,293,552.00 43.02% 5,865,008.60

Capacity Charge CCF 261,066.67 1,305,333.35 3,132,800.00 41.67% 1,827,466.65

SCP Surcharge 23,220.98 158,156.15 354,112.00 44.66% 195,955.85

Interest 241.43 1,243.59 4,630.00 26.86% 3,386.41

TOTAL WATER REVENUES  16,065,990.06 86,857,233.29 159,091,936.00 54.60% 72,234,702.71

WATER PURCHASES

Water Sales 14,895,752.30 80,963,956.80 145,306,842.00 55.72% 64,342,885.20

Readiness to Serve Charge 885,708.68 4,428,543.40 10,293,552.00 43.02% 5,865,008.60

Capacity Charge CCF 261,066.67 1,305,333.35 3,132,800.00 41.67% 1,827,466.65

SCP Surcharge 23,220.98 158,156.15 354,112.00 44.66% 195,955.85

TOTAL WATER PURCHASES 16,065,748.63 86,855,989.70 159,087,306.00 54.60% 72,231,316.30

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
 EXPENDITURES 241.43 1,243.59 4,630.00

Municpal Water District of Orange County

Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

Water Fund

From July thru November 2013
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Year to Date Annual

Actual Budget % Used

Landscape Performance Certification

Revenues 93,514.46 116,000.00 80.62%

Expenses 38,515.25 107,000.00 36.00%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 54,999.21 0.00

SmarTimer Program

Revenues 35,656.24 125,200.00 28.48%

Expenses 38,931.32 125,200.00 31.10%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (3,275.08) 0.00

Industrial Water Use Reduction

Revenues 11,047.50 113,478.00 9.74%

Expenses 18,931.65 113,478.00 16.68%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (7,884.15) 0.00

Rotating Nozzles Rebate

Revenues 111,866.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses 111,926.62 0.00 0.00%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (60.62) 0.00

Hotel Water Use Reduction Program

Revenues 7,100.00 189,484.00 3.75%

Expenses 18,621.62 189,484.00 9.83%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (11,521.62) 0.00

ULFT Rebate Program

Municpal Water District of Orange County
WUE Revenues and Expenditures (Actuals vs Budget)

From July thru November  2013

ULFT Rebate Program

Revenues 21,940.89 40,000.00 54.85%

Expenses 26,925.96 40,000.00 67.31%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (4,985.07) 0.00

HECW Rebate Program

Revenues 143,682.28 380,000.00 37.81%

Expenses 133,212.28 380,000.00 35.06%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 10,470.00 0.00

Large Landscape Survey

Revenues 21,928.47 21,600.00 101.52%

Expenses 37,651.96 21,600.00 174.31%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (15,723.49) 0.00

Indoor‐Outdoor Survey

Revenues 1,411.41 12,150.00 11.62%

Expenses 0.00 12,150.00 0.00%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 1,411.41 0.00

Turf Removal Program

Revenues 181,901.37         105,000.00 173.24%

Expenses 196,320.18         105,000.00 186.97%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (14,418.81) 0.00
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Year to Date Annual
Actual Budget % Used

WUE Master Plan
Revenues 3,313.50 0.00 0.00%
Expenses 3,317.46 0.00 0.00%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (3.96) 0.00

WEROC
Revenues 150,251.00 213,577.00 70.35%
Expenses 84,344.00 213,577.00 39.49%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 65,907.00 0.00

WEROC Water Trailers (UASI) Grant
Revenues 265,232.00 0.00 0.00%
Expenses 397,846.00 0.00 0.00%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (132,614.00) 0.00

WUE Projects
Revenues 633,362.12              1,102,912.00 57.43%
Expenses 624,354.30              1,093,912.00 57.08%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 9,007.82                  9,000.00

RPOI Distributions
Revenues 4,447,821.66          1,619,665.00 274.61%
Expenses 4,447,821.66          1,619,665.00 274.61%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0.00 0.00

Ocean Desalination
Revenues 47,871.98                115,459.00 41.46%
Expenses 47,871.98                115,459.00 41.46%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0.00 0.00

From July thru November  2013
WUE & Other Funds Revenues and Expenditures (Actuals vs Budget)

Municpal Water District of Orange County
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Fountain Valley, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Municipal Water District of Orange County 
(District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the District, as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Certified Public Accountants

VALUE  THE  D IFFERENCE
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2013, the District adopted new accounting guidance, GASB 
Statements Nos. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements and 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and schedule of funding progress for the other post-employment benefit plan on pages  
3 through 9 and 27 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Prior-Year Comparative Information 
 
We have previously audited the 2012 financial statements of the District, and we expressed an unmodified audit 
opinion on the financial statements in our report dated January 7, 2013.  In our opinion, the summarized 
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, is consistent, in all material 
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 19, 2013, on 
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
December 19, 2013  
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MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2013 
 

3 
 

 
The following is a brief discussion of the Municipal Water District of Orange County’s (District) activities 
and financial performance for the year ended June 30, 2013.  Please read in conjunction with the 
District’s basic financial statements and accompanying notes which follow this section. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The District’s revenues were $176.0 million in FY 2012-13, compared to $186.4 million in the prior 
fiscal year, a 5.6% decrease. 
 

 The District’s expenses were $180.0 million in FY 2012-13, compared to $186.6 million in the 
prior fiscal year, a 3.5% decrease. 
 

 The District’s assets at June 30, 2013 were $40.3 million, a 15.4% decrease compared to total 
assets of $47.7 million at June 30, 2012. 
 

 The District’s liabilities at June 30, 2013 were $35.0 million, an 8.8% decrease compared to total 
liabilities of $38.3 million at June 30, 2012. 
 

 The District’s net position at June 30, 2013 were $5.4 million, a 42.7% decrease compared to net 
position of $9.4 million at June 30, 2012. 

 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements.  Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the 
measurement focus applied.  The accompanying financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus, and the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Under the economic resources measurement focus all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) associated with these activities are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The District’s financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP), offer key, high-level financial information about District activities during the reporting period.  The 
financial statements of the District consist of three interrelated statements designed to provide the reader 
with relevant information on the District’s financial condition and operating results.  These statements 
offer short-term and long-term financial information about the District’s activities utilizing the full accrual 
basis of accounting. 
 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s assets, less liabilities, and provides information 
about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the District’s 
creditors (liabilities), with the difference being reported as Net Position.  It also provides the basis for 
computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District, and assessing the liquidity and 
financial flexibility of the District. 
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All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  This statement measures the District’s operations over the past 
year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all its projected costs 
through its rates and other service related charges. 
 
The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows which presents information about 
the District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period classified as cash receipts, 
cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, and investing, non-capital financing, 
and capital and related financing activities.  This statement also provides comparative information on the 
sources and uses of the District’s cash during the reporting period. 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 
 
Our analysis of the District begins on page 3 of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis.  One of the 
most important questions asked about the District’s finances is:  “Is the District, as a whole, better off or 
worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the District’s activities in a 
way that will help answer this question.  These two statements report the net position of the District and 
changes in them.  You can think of the District’s net position (the difference between assets and liabilities) 
as one way to measure financial health or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the 
District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  
However, you will need to consider other non-financial factors, such as changes in economic conditions, 
population growth, changes in rates and charges and new or changed government legislation or 
accounting standards. 
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 
Net position is the difference between assets, less liabilities, and may serve over time as a useful 
indicator of a government’s financial position. The following is a summary of the District’s Statement of 
Net Position. 
 

Table 1 
Condensed Statements of Net Position 

(In thousands of dollars) 
 

FY 2013  FY 2012  Variance 

 Total 
Percent 
Change 

        
Current Restricted Assets $   4,194  $   8,877  $  (4,683)  -52.8% 
Current Unrestricted Assets 35,145  37,672  (2,527)  -6.7% 
Capital Assets 983  1,117  (134)  -12.2% 
Noncurrent Unrestricted Assets -      13  (13)  - 

Total Assets 40,322  47,679  (7,357)  -15.4% 
        

Liabilities Payable from Restricted        
Current Assets 3,045  4,099  (1,054)  -25.7% 

Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted        
Current Assets 31,880  34,211  (2,331)  -6.8% 

Noncurrent Unrestricted Liabilities 32  -      32  - 
Total Liabilities 34,957  38,310  (3,353)  -8.8% 

        
Net Position:        

Net Investment in Capital Assets 982  1,117  (135)  -12.1% 
Restricted for Trustee Activities 1,149  4,778  (3,629)  -76.0% 
Unrestricted 3,234  3,474  (240)  -6.9% 

Total Net Position $   5,365  $   9,369  $   4,004)  -42.7% 
 

As can be seen from the table above, net position decreased by $4.0 million from Fiscal Year 2012 to 
2013.  This decrease is the result of the following: 
 

 Current Restricted Assets decreased by $4.7 million due mainly to a refund to the member 
agencies for the T2 charge of $3.7 million and lower grant receivables of $777,560. 

 Liabilities Payable from Restricted Current Assets decreased $1.1 million due to the use of 
Advances from Participants to cover the current fiscal years expenses. 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets decreased by $135,000 mainly due to the annual depreciation 
expenses. 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN ET POSITION 
 
While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net assets, the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position provides information as to the nature and 
source of these changes.  The District reported a decrease in net assets of $4.0 million for the year ended 
June 30, 2013, as compared to a decrease of $158,000 for the year ended June 30, 2012.  The following 
is a summary of the change in the District’s net position. 

 

 
A closer examination of the source of changes in net position reveals that the District’s operating 
revenues decreased by $10.4 million in Fiscal Year 2013 due mainly to lower water sales caused by 
wetter and cooler weather. 
 
Total expenses decreased by $6.6 million due mainly to: 

 Lower cost of water purchased in the amount of $11 million from Metropolitan in Fiscal Year 
2013. 

 Election expense of $497,000 incurred in Fiscal Year 2013. 
 Special Item of $3.7 million was due to a refund to the member agencies for the T2 charge 

collected in prior years (see note 10). 
  

Table 2 
Condensed Statements of Revenues, 

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
(In thousands of dollars) 

 FY 2013  FY 2012  Variance  

Total 
Percent 
Change 

        
Operating Revenues $ 172,357  $ 182,777  $ (10,420)  -5.7% 
Special Projects Revenue 3,422  3,469  (47)  -1.4% 
Non-operating Revenues 181  183  (2)  -1.1% 

Total Revenues 175,960  186,429  (10,469)  -5.6% 
        
Other Operating Expense 172,697  182,967  (10,270)  -5.6% 
Special Projects Expense 3,422  3,469  (47)  -1.4% 
Depreciation Expense 145  151  (6)  -4.0% 
Special Item 3,700        -       3,700  0.0% 

Total Expenses 179,963  186,587  (6,623)  -3.5% 
            
Change in Net Position (4,003)  (158)       (3,846)  2,434.2% 
Beginning Net Position 9,369  9,527  (158)  -1.7% 
Ending Net Position $     5,366  $     9,369  $     (4,004)  -42.7% 
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The following is a summary of the District’s capital assets at June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012. 

 
Table 3 

Capital Assets 
(In thousands of dollars) 

 FY 2013  FY 2012 Variance  

Total 
Percent 
Change 

      
Leasehold Improvements $    2,796  $    2,786 $     10  0.4% 
Furniture & Fixtures 537  619 (82)    -13.2% 

Subtotal 3,333  3,405 (72)  -2.1% 
       
Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,350)  (2,288) (62)  2.7% 
Net Capital Assets $      983  $    1,117 $      (134)  -12.0% 

 
Additional information regarding capital assets can be found in Note 1 of the notes to financial 
statements. 
 
 
DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The District had no debt outstanding as of June 30, 2013.  No new long-term debt was incurred in the 
year ended June 30, 2013, and the District does not plan to issue new debt in the year ending June 30, 
2014.  

Page 69 of 210



MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2013 

 

8 

 
BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The District is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of seven elected members.  The Board adopts 
an annual appropriated budget for the prior to the start of the fiscal year.  The Budget may be revised by 
Board action during the fiscal year.  An actual vs. budget comparison statement for FY 2012-13 is 
presented in Table 4 to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budget. 

 
Table 4 

FY 2013 Actual vs. FY 2013 Budget 
(In thousands of dollars) 

 Actual  Budget  Variance  

Total 
Percent 
Change 

Revenues:        
From Operations $175,779  $162,448  $ 13,331  8.2% 
Non-operating Revenues 181  164  17  10.4% 

Total Revenues 175,960  162,612  13,348  8.2% 
        
Expenses:        

From Operations        
Cost of Water 165,887  151,904  13,983  9.2% 
Other Operating 10,231  9,070  1,161  12.8% 
Depreciation 145  150  (5)    -3.4% 

Special Item  3,700       -     3,700  100.0% 

Total Expenses 179,963  161,124  18,839  11.7% 

Change In Net Position $      (4,003)  $   1,488  $  (5,491)  -369.1% 
 

The variances on the budget to actual are as follows: 
 

 Revenues from operations were $13 million higher than budget due to unbudgeted basin 
replenishment water purchased in Fiscal Year 2013. 

 Cost of Water purchased was $14 million higher than budget due to unbudgeted basin 
replenishment water purchased in Fiscal Year 2013. 

 Other Operating expenses are higher than budget due to increase of election expense, legal and 
salaries and benefits. 

 Special Item of $3.7 million was due to a refund to the member agencies for the T2 charge 
collected in prior years (see note 10). 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 
The District’s Board of Directors and management considered many factors during preparation and 
approval of the annual budget for FY 2013-14.  The budgeted operating expenses total $168.6 million and 
operating and non-operating revenues total $168.8 million. 
 
Historically, the District’s has recouped the cost of water purchased from the resale of imported water to 
the District’s 28 water agencies located in Orange County.  In addition MWDOC charges both a per acre-
foot surcharge and a per retail meter charge to cover its operating budget.  Over the years, the District’s 
operating revenue has been approximately 65% from per retail connection charges, and 35% from per 
acre-foot charges.  Beginning in 2011-12, MWDOC began transitioning from the two-component rate 
structure to one involving only a single component.  Over a five year period, ending in 2015-16, MWDOC 
would transition from a water rate structure involving a per acre-foot charge and a per retail meter charge 
to 100% on the per retail meter charge. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is intended to provide the Board of Directors, customers, taxpayers, creditors, and 
other interested parties with a general overview of the District’s financial operations and condition at the 
year ended June 30, 2013, and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the funds it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional information, you may contact the Municipal Water 
District of Orange County, Finance Dept., at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, CA 92708, (714) 963-
3058, www.mwdoc.com. 
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2013 2012
ASSETS

Current Assets:

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 2,810,231$            7,231,063$         
Accounts Receivable Other 1,383,544              1,641,096 
Accrued Interest Receivable 677                       4,954 

Total Restricted Assets 4,194,452              8,877,113           

Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 4,308,620              3,235,358           
Investments (Note 2) 2,380,121              3,090,528           
Accounts Receivable:

Water Sales 28,188,179            31,071,698         
Other 171,106                 177,283             

Accrued Interest Receivable 29,482                  34,610               
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 67,748                  62,277               

Total Unrestricted Assets 35,145,256            37,671,754         

Total Current Assets 39,339,708            46,548,867         y

Noncurrent Assets:

Unrestricted Assets:
Capital Assets, Net (Note 4) 982,541                 1,116,728           
Net Other Post Employment Benefits 

(OPEB) Asset (Note 8) -                        12,692               

Total Noncurrent Assets 982,541                 1,129,420           

TOTAL ASSETS 40,322,249            47,678,287         

(with comparative data as of June 30, 2012)
June 30, 2013

Statement of Net Position
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 10 Page 73 of 210



(with the comparative data as of June 30, 2012)

2013 2012
LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities:

Payable from Restricted Assets
Accrued Liabilities 382,222                 462,079             
Advances from Participants 1,233,803              2,265,746 
Due to Participants (Note 5) 1,429,394              1,371,316 

Total Payable from Restricted Assets 3,045,419              4,099,141           y p g

Unrestricted Liabilities:
Accounts Payable, Metropolitan Water 
 District of Southern California 30,875,672            33,548,640         
Accrued Liabilities 1,003,929              661,990             

Total Unrestricted Liabilities 31,879,601            34,210,630         
Total Current Liabilities 34,925,020            38,309,771         

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Unrestricted Liabilities:
Net Other Post Employment Benefits 

(OPEB) Obligation (Note 8) 31,956                  -                     

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 31,956                  -                     

TOTAL LIABILITIES 34,956,976            38,309,771         

 
NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets 982,541                 1,116,728           
Restricted for Trustee Activities 1,149,032              4,777,971           
Unrestricted 3,233,700             3,473,816          

TOTAL NET POSITION 5,365,273$            9,368,516$         

Statement of Net Position (Continued)
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

June 30, 2013

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 11 Page 74 of 210



(with comparative data for the Year Ended June 30, 2012)

2013 2012
Operating Revenues:

Water Sales 172,357,485$        182,776,850$     
Special Projects Revenue 2,304,765              1,610,165           
Federal Grant Revenue 426,896                 957,068             
State Grant Revenue 690,152                 901,763             

Total Operating Revenues 175,779,298          186,245,846       

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Water Sold 165,887,498          176,861,788       
Salaries and Employee Benefits 4,152,834              4,039,267           
General and Administrative 2,656,812              2,065,999           
Special Project Expenses (Note 6) 3,421,812              3,468,996           
Depreciation 144,826                 151,274             

Total Operating Expenses 176,263,781          186,587,324       

Operating (Loss) (484,484)               (341,478)            

Nonoperating Revenues:
Investment Income 157,801                 155,183             
Other Income 23,442                  27,833               

Total Non-Operating Revenues 181,243                 183,016             

Income Before Special Items (303,241)               (158,462)            

Special Items:
Distribution of Funds to Member Agencies (Note 10) 3,700,002              -                     

Total Special Items 3,700,002              -                     

Change in Net Position (4,003,243)            (158,462)            

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,368,516              9,526,978           

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 5,365,273$            9,368,516$         

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 12 Page 75 of 210



(with comparative data for the Year Ended June 30, 2012)

2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from member agencies-water deliveries 175,241,004$        186,881,498$      
Cash payments to Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (168,560,465)         (179,828,565)       
Cash payments for salaries and employee benefits (4,124,681)             (4,470,330)           
Cash payments for general and administrative expenses (2,297,673)             (1,912,250)           
Cash received from special projects 3,679,365               3,942,502            
Cash payments for special projects (4,533,612)             (3,751,446)           

Net Cash (used) Provided by Operating Activities (596,062)                861,409               

Cash Flows from Noncapital and Related Financing Activities:
Other income 23,442                    27,833                 
Acquisition of capital assets (10,639)                   (110,509)              
Proceeds from RPOI participants (Note 5) 58,078                    50,447                 
Payment to Member Agencies (Note 10) (3,700,002)             -                       

Net Cash (used) by Noncapital and Related Financing Activities (3,629,121)             (32,229)                

Cash Flows from Investment Activities:
Investment income 139,103                  158,652               
Investments sold 738,510                  499,398               

Net Cash Provided by Investment Activities 877,613                  658,050               

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,347,570)             1,487,230            
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,466,421             8,979,191            

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 7,118,851$             10,466,421$        

Financial Statement Presentation: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Restricted) 2,810,231$             7,231,063$          
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Unrestricted) 4,308,620               3,235,358            

Totals 7,118,851$             10,466,421$        

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
Statement of Cash Flows

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 13 Page 76 of 210



MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(with comparative data for the Year Ended June 30, 2012)

2013 2012
Reconciliation of Operating (Loss) to Net Cash Provided 
for Operating Activities
Operating Loss (484,484)$              (341,478)$            

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided (used) by
Operating Activities:

Depreciation 144,826                  151,274               
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable - water deliveries 2,883,519               4,104,649            
Decrease in accounts receivable - other 18,869                    95,723                 
Increase in deposits and prepaid expenses (5,472)                     1,987                   
Decrease in accounts receivable - special projects 257,553                  473,506               
Increase in accrued liabilities 373,894                  (375,024)              
(Decrease) in accrued liabilities (79,856)                   (287,979)              
Increase (Decrease) in special projects (1,031,944)             5,529                   
(Decrease) in accounts payable to 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (2,672,967)             (2,966,777)           

Total Adjustments (111,578)                1,202,887            

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (596,062)$              861,409$             

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 14 Page 77 of 210
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(1)  Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The Municipal Water District of Orange County (the District) was formed as a municipal water district on January 
11, 1951 under the Municipal Water District Act of 1911.  The District is a wholesale water supplier and resource 
planning agency that serves all of Orange County through 28 cities and water agencies (except the Cities of 
Anaheim, Fullerton, and Santa Ana which are independent member agencies of the Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California (“Metropolitan). As a public agency member of the Metropolitan, the District purchases 
imported water from Metropolitan and provides the water to the District’s 28 member agencies, which provide retail 
water services to approximately 2.3 million residents with the District’s service area of approximately 600 square 
miles.  The District’s primary sources of water from Metropolitan are the California State Water Project (SWP) and 
the Colorado River Aqueduct.  
 
The District is an independent special district of the State of California governed by an elected seven-member 
board.  On January 2001, the District merged with the Coastal Municipal Water District (Coastal) under the 
recommendation of the Local Agency Formation Commission of Orange County (LAFCO) as part of an effort to 
streamline local government. The consolidation of the two agencies allows the new district to more efficiently 
provide wholesale water services at an improved efficiency for the benefit of residents living throughout the service 
area.  
 
The District’s reporting entity includes the accounts of the District and the Municipal Water District of Orange 
County Water Facilities Corporation (WFC).  Formed as a separate California nonprofit corporation on April 20, 
1978 to assist in the financing of the Allen-McColloch Pipeline (AMP) and the Flow Augmentation Project (FAP), 
the WFC has no employees (see Note 5).  The WFC is governed by a seven-member board comprised of the 
District’s board members.  The WFC had no activity or balances for the year ended June 30, 2013 and is kept 
active for potential future financing arrangements.  WFC is a blended component unit of the District and the District 
has operational responsibility for WFC. 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
The District’s basic financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the Notes to the Basic Financial 
Statements. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The District accounts for its activities as an enterprise fund.  An enterprise fund is a proprietary type fund used to 
account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - 
where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or 
(b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, 
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other 
purposes. 
 
The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, and are 
presented on an economic measurement focus reporting all economic resources and obligation for the period 
ended June 30, 2013. 
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Net Position 
 
In the Statement of Net Position, net position is classified in the following categories: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets – This amount consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to 
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets as applicable. 

 
 Restricted net position – This amount consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities.  Generally, a liability 

relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the recognition of a 
liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. 
 

 Unrestricted net position – This amount is the net amount of the assets and liabilities that are not included in 
the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. 
 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources 
first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
The District’s primary purpose is to provide a dependable wholesale supply of imported water for its 28 member 
agencies.  Accordingly, operating revenues, such as charges for services (water sales less the cost of water) result 
from exchange transactions, associated with the principal activity of the District, the purchase and resale of 
imported water to the District’s member agencies. 
 
Revenues from federal and state grants, reimbursements from participants and special projects (see Note 6), as 
well as special projects expenses are defined as operating revenues and expenses, respectively.  Non-operating 
revenues consist of investment income and other miscellaneous income. 
 
Water Sales and Cost of Water Sold 
 
Historically, the District’s primary source of revenue has been from the resale of imported water to the District’s 28 
member agencies located in Orange County.  Based on Metropolitan’s cost of water, each year the Board of 
Directors approves water rates comprised of a per retail connection charge, readiness to serve charge and a per 
acre-foot charge.  Metropolitan’s rates are based on cost of service studies performed on a biennial basis.  Water 
rates are not subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission or by any other local, state, or 
federal agency.  Revenue from sales of water is recognized on the accrual basis as water is delivered. 
 
Over the years, the District’s revenue has been approximately 65% from a per retail connection charges, and 35% 
from per acre-foot charges.  In June 2010, MWDOC and its member agencies came to agreement on changes to 
MWDOC’s structure of charging for its services.  First, MWDOC agreed to segregate our services between “Core” 
services and “Choice” services to give our agencies more “choices” to the services received.  It was also agreed 
that, in addition to the cost of water and other charges from Metropolitan, MWDOC would transition its method of 
charging for “Core” services in the following manner.  Commencing in fiscal year 2011 -12, MWDOC would begin 
transitioning to a 100% fixed charge. In the first year of this process, 80% of MWDOC's water rate charges for its 
operating budget would be fixed, and 20% would be based on water sales charges. Each year for the subsequent 
four years, MWDOC would increase the amount on fixed charges by 5%, reaching 100% in fiscal year 2015-16. 
  Choice services would be charged directly to the agencies as a “fee for service”.  These changes to the rate 
structure were determined to be more equitable among MWDOC’s member agencies. 
 
Investments 
 
The District’s investment policy and delegation of investment authority, is reviewed and approved each year by the 
Board of Directors.  The investment policy authorizes the Director of Finance/Treasurer to invest, reinvest, sell or 
exchange permitted fixed income securities in accordance with the California Government Code.  The District 
accounts for investments in debt securities at fair market value (the value at which a financial instrument could be 
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale).  Investment 
income from restricted assets remains restricted.  
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and short-term, highly liquid investments (i.e., Local Agency 
Investment Fund and Orange County Investment Pool) which are readily convertible to cash and mature within 
ninety (90) days of original purchase.  
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations.  Management believes all accounts 
receivable are collectible.  In the event any accounts receivable are determined they are uncollectible, an 
allowance is recorded. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital Assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and useful 
life greater that one (1) year.  Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of capital assets, the cost and related 
accumulated depreciation are removed from respective accounts and any gains or losses are recognized. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range 
from 3 to 5 years for furniture, fixtures, and equipment, and 30 years for leasehold improvements. 
 
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
Deposits and Prepaid items in the basic financial statements. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
As vacation leave s a vested employee benefit, the District is obligated to compensate employees for all earned but 
unused vacation days.  Employee vacation days are accrued each pay period and reported as accrued liabilities.  
Depending on the length of employment, employees earn a minimum of 10 to a maximum of 26 vacation days per 
year.  Accumulated vacation days may not exceed 1.5 times the number of days earned per year without prior 
approval of the General Manager.  On the other hand, sick leave time is a non-vested employee benefit (i.e. 
accumulated sick leave is not payable in the event of employee termination); is considered a contingent liability; 
and is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
State requires management to make estimates and assumptions that could affect certain reported amounts in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Also, the 
preparation of the financial statements inherently requires rounding of amounts and estimates.  Management 
believes that any differences due to rounding are not material. 
 
Budgetary Policy and Control 
 
The District Administrative Code requires that a budget be prepared each year under direction of the General 
Manager based on estimates of revenues and expected expenditures.  The District’s Board of Directors adopted an 
annual budget of expenditures for the period ended June 30, 2013.  All amendments to the budget, or transfers of 
operating budget appropriations to or from reserve accounts, require Board approval.  The General Manager is 
authorized to transfer budget amounts within programs.  The legal level of budgetary control is at the total fund 
level. 
 
  

Page 81 of 210



Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

 

18 
 

New Accounting and Reporting Requirements 
 
For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 the District is required to apply the following GASB Statements: 
 
GASB Statement No. 62 – In December 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62 – Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.  The 
objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial 
reporting guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which 
does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: 1) Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Statements and Interpretations, 2) Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and 3) Accounting Research Bulletins of 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedure. This 
statement also supersedes Statement No. 20 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and 
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, thereby eliminating the election provided in 
paragraph 7 of that Statement for enterprise funds and business-type activities to apply post-November 30, 1989 
FASB Statements and Interpretation that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  However, those 
entities can continue to apply, as other accounting literature, post-November 30, 1989 FASB pronouncements that 
do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, including this Statement.  The District implemented this 
pronouncement, effective July 1, 2012.   
 
GASB Statement No. 63 – In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63 – Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.  This Statement provides financial 
reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and amends the net asset 
reporting requirements in Statement No. 34 – Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis – for State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure 
and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The Statement is effective for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2011.  The District implemented this pronouncement, effective July 1, 2012.  
 
Effective in Future Years 

 
GASB Statement No. 65 – In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65 – Items Previously Reported as Assets 
and Liabilities.  This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously 
reported as assets and liabilities.  The Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2012, or the 
2013-2014 fiscal year.  The District has not determined the effect on the financial statements.  

 
GASB Statement No. 66 – In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66 – Technical Corrections – 2012 – an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62.  The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from 
the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 
30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.  The Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 
2012, or the 2013-2014 fiscal year.  The District has not determined the effect on the financial statements. 
GASB Statement No. 67 – In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67 – Financial Reporting for Pension Plans – 
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25.  The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by 
state and local governmental pension plans.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the 
effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing 
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating 
additional transparency.  This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 25 – Financial Reporting for 
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and Statement No. 50 – 
Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are not administered through trust covered by the scope 
of this Statement and to defined contribution plans that provide postemployment benefits other than pension.  The 
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013, or the 2013-2014 fiscal year.  This statement is 
specifically for pension plan providers.  

 
GASB Statement No. 68 – In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions.  It also improves information 
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other 
entities.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of 
accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting 
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.  The Statement is 
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effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014, or the 2014-2015 fiscal year.  The District has not determined 
the effect on the financial statements. 

 
GASB Statement No. 69 – In January 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 69 – Government Combinations and 
Disposals of Government Operations.  The objective of this Statement is to establish reporting standards related to 
government combinations and disposals of government operations.  The Statement is effective for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2013, or the 2014-2015 fiscal year.  The District has not determined the effect on the 
financial statements. 

 
GASB Statement No. 70 – In April 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 70 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees.  The objective of this Statement is to improve the recognition, measurement, 
and disclosure guidance for state and local governments that have extended or received financial guarantees that 
are nonexchange transactions.  The Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013, or the 2013-
2014 fiscal year.  The District has not determined the effect on the financial statements. 
 
 

(2) Cash and Investments 
 
Cash and investments at June 30, 2013, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 
 

Statement of net position:  
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Restricted) $ 2,810,231 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Unrestricted) 4,308,620 
Investments (Unrestricted)  2,380,121 

Total Cash and Investments $ 9,498,972 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following: 
 

Cash on hand $            500 
Deposits with financial institutions 432,758 
Investments 9,066,714 

 Total Deposits and Investments $9,498,972 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's Investment Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government 
Code (or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate 
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
 

 
 
Authorized Investment Type 

 
Maximum 
Maturity 

Maximum 
Percentage 
of Portfolio 

Maximum 
Investment 

in One Issuer 
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None 
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities Securities 5 years None None 
Corporate Securities 5 years 30% None 
Corporate Securities (Reserve Fund) 5 years 20% None 
Commercial Paper None 20% 10% 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit None 20% None 
Bankers’ Acceptances None 20% 20% 
Repurchase Agreements None 10% None 
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10% 
County Investment Pool N/A None None 
State Investment Pool N/A None None 
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Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair market value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair market value to 
changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by 
purchasing a combination of shorter-term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so 
that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the 
cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. Information about the sensitivity of the fair market values of the 
District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the 
distribution of the District's investments by maturity: 
 
 

  Remaining Maturity (in Months) 
 
Investment Type 

 12 Months 
or Less 

13 to 24 
Months 

25-60 
Months 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposits $     299,158 $   200,340 $      -       $    98,818 
Corporate Securities 2,080,963        -             -       2,080,963 
County Investment Pool 2,351,961 2,351,961      -            -        
State Investment Pool 4,334,632 4,334,632       -              -        

 $9,066,714 $6,886,933 $       -       $2,179,781 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization.  Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government 
Code or District's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating by Standard and Poor’s (S&P) as of 
the year end of each investment type. 
 

  Minimum Ratings as of Year End 
 
Investment Type 

 Legal 
Rating 

 
A 

 
A- 

 
AA- 

Not 
Rated 

Negotiable Certificates of 
  Deposits $    299,158 N/A 

   
$     299,158 

Corporate Securities 2,080,963 A $782,043 $776,535 $522,385  
County Investment Pool 2,351,961 N/A    2,351,961 
State Investment Pool  4,334,632 N/A                                                 4,334,632 

 $9,066,714  $782,043 $776,535 $522,385 $6,985,751 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any ones issuer 
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  At June 30, 2013 the District had investment in more 
than one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, external investment pools) that represented 5% 
or more of total District investments as follows: 
 

Issuer Amount 
Percent of 
Portfolio 

MetLife Global Funding $522,385 5.76% 
Morgan Stanley $515,930 5.69% 
UBS Financial Services $521,100 5.74% 

 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California Government Code  
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and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: 
 
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state 
law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool 
must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agency.  The Government Code also allows 
financial institutions to secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 
150% of the secured public deposits.  As of June 30, 2013 the District’s deposits with financial institutions are 
covered by FDIC. 
 
Investment in State and County Investment Pool 
 
The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California, and in the Orange 
County Investment Pool (OCIP) under the oversight of the Orange County Treasurer.  The fair market value of the 
District's investment in these pools are reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon 
the District's pro-rata share of the fair market value provided by LAIF and OCIP for the entire LAIF and OCIP 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by LAIF and OCIP, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
 
LAIF is a governmental investment pool managed and directed by the California State Treasurer and is not 
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  An oversight committee comprised of California State 
officials and various participants provides oversight to the management of the fund.  The daily operations and 
responsibilities of LAIF fall under the auspices of the State Treasurer's office. 
 
The Agency is a participant in the County Treasurer’s Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP). The OCIP is an 
external investment pool, is not rated, and is not registered with the Securities Exchange Commission  (SEC). The 
County Treasury Oversight Committee conducts OCIP oversight. Cash on deposit in the OCIP at June 30, 2013, is 
stated at fair value. The OCIP values participant shares on an amortized cost basis during the year and adjusts to 
fair value at year-end. For further information regarding the OCIP, refer to the County of Orange Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. 
 
 

(3) Restricted Assets 
 

Restricted assets are monies held in restricted funds or accounts by the District for the benefit of member 
agencies, including a rate stabilization fund.  As of June 30, 2013, $4,194,452 was included in trustee Activities 

 
 
(4) Capital Assets 

 
The following is a summary of capital assets at June 30, 2013 with changes therein: 
 

 2012 Additions Deletions 2013 

Furniture and fixtures $   619,174 $      -     $(82,786) $   536,388 
Leasehold improvements 2,785,773 10,639      -     2,796,412 
 3,404,947    10,639 (82,786)  3,332,800 
Less accumulated depreciation  (2,288,219) (144,826) 82,786 (2,350,259) 
   Net Capital Assets $1,116,728 $(134,187) $    -     $   982,541 

 
 

(5) Trustee Activities 
 
Since 1978, the District has acted as trustee for certain member agencies in the financing, construction and 
operation of a water pipeline system and related facilities necessary to improve water quality and provide capacity 
to accommodate new development in the southeastern  portion of the District's service area.  The original 1979 
pipeline project consisted of the construction of a 26-mile pipeline, which was augmented in 1989 with the 
construction of a 3-mile parallel pipeline and flow control facility.  Together these projects, known as the Allen-
McColloch Pipeline (AMP) and the Flow Augmentation Project (FAP), were funded through tax-exempt bonds 
originally issued by WFC and cash participation by some participating agencies. 
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In 1995, the Metropolitan acquired the AMP and FAP pipelines and related facilities.  At the same time, all 
participating agencies agreed upon a Revised Percentage of Investment (RPOI) formula for sharing of revenue 
from Metropolitan and other participants for capacity swaps until the final payment of all outstanding debt or 
liabilities in 2016, or sooner. 
 
As trustee, the District records current year transactions to receive payments from the financing member agencies, 
and to make payments to member agencies which paid cash.  For the year ended June 30, 2013, The District 
received $1,595,144 from certain AMP member agencies, and disbursed $1,537,066 by the RPOI formula.  As of  
June 30, 2013, the balance of $1,429,394 included in “Due to Participants” is to be disbursed to the AMP member 
agencies in the first quarter of the following fiscal year. 
 
 

(6) Special Projects Revenue and Expenses 
 
The District receives revenues from member agencies, as well as grants from federal and state agencies, to the 
benefit of the District’s ratepayers for a variety of programs and projects, including water conservation education, 
water use efficiency, and desalinization feasibility studies.  As stipulated in executed grant agreements, the District 
is reimbursed by the granting agency for eligible grant project expenses which are first incurred by the District.  For 
eligible District-Incurred grant expenses not reimbursed by the end of the District’s fiscal year, the District accrues 
revenue for unreimbursed grant funds due the District.  As of June 30 2013, the District accrued $781,972 of grants 
receivable.  The District recognized $3,421,812 in contributions from Metropolitan and member agencies, federal 
and state grant revenue, and corresponding expenses, for the year ended June 30, 2013 

 
 

(7) District Directors and Employees Retirement Plans 
 
(a) Defined Contribution Plan 
 

On January 1, 1997, the District adopted a defined contribution, private Money Purchase Pension Plan (Plan).  
Employee contributions were made to the Plan until the District joined the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS). Effective, March 1, 2003, District employees became members of CalPERS 
and employee contributions to the Plan were frozen.  Currently, Board members participate in the Plan and 
contributions are made by the District on behalf of the current participants.  The District is required to 
contribute 10.5% of a participant’s gross salary, increasing to 13.5% after one year of service.  The District's 
Board of Directors has the authority to amend or terminate the plan at any time.  A summary of this plan’s 
contribution and District payroll information follows: 
 

District contributions for participants $22,639 
District contributions as a percent of covered payroll 10.5% / 13.5% 
Total covered payroll $171,179 
 

Participants become vested in the District’s Plan 20% per year of service until they become fully vested after 
five (5) years of service. 
 

(b) Defined Benefit Plan (CalPERS Employee Retirement Plan) 
 

Plan Description: 
 
Effective March 1, 2003, the District has participated in the California Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries.  CalPERS serves as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public 
entities within the State of California.  Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State 
statute and District ordinance. Copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS 
Executive Office, 400 “P” Street, Sacramento, CA, 95814 (http://www.calpers.ca.gov). 
 
Funding Policy: 
 
The District funded employer payroll contributions to CalPERS for the 2.0% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan 
(Plan) on behalf of eligible District employees.  These contributions covered the employee’s contribution (7% 
of annual covered salary), and the employer’s contribution (10.238% of annual covered salary) consisting of 
the actuarially determined remaining amount necessary to fund benefits for its members.  The contribution 
requirements of the plan member are established by State statute and employer contribution rates is 
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established, and may be amended by CalPERS.  Effective with the 2012/13 budget year, employees began 
paying 1% of the 7% employee contribution.  It is anticipated that this amount will increase by 1% each budget 
year until the 7% employee contribution is fully funded by the employee.  Classic CalPERS members hired 
after March 1, 2013 are required to pay the entire 7% employee contribution rate; and employees hired after 
January 1, 2013 that are new to CalPERS, are enrolled in the 2% @ 62 CalPERS Retirement Formula and are 
required to pay 6.25% of the employee contribution rate with the employer paying 6.25% of the Employer 
contribution rate, this is pursuant to the Public Employees Pension Reform Act (PEPRA).  Employer 
contributions are included and equaled the required contributions for each period.  Recent District contribution 
rates and amounts are presented in the following table. 
 

 
Fiscal Year 

Contribution 
Rate (%) 

Contribution 
Amount ($) 

2012-13 17.238 462,463 
2011-12 17.059 450,105 
2010-11 15.984 433,358 

 
 
(8) Retiree Medical Plan - Other-Post-Employment Benefits 

 
(a) Plan Description: 

 
Effective October 1, 2011, the District established a Post Retirement Healthcare Plan (Plan), and has 
contributed to a Section 115 Irrevocable Exclusive Benefit Trust for the pre-funding of post-employment health 
care costs. Currently, the District provides health insurance for its retired employees and their dependent 
spouses (if married and covered on the District’s plan at time of retirement), or survivors in accordance with 
Board resolutions.  Medical coverage is provided for retired employees who are age 55 or over and who have 
a minimum of 10 years service with the District.   

 
The District pays 100% of the premium for the single retiree and 80% of the married retiree and spouse until 
age 65.  If a retiree in receipt of these benefits dies before reaching age 65, the surviving spouse will continue 
to receive coverage that the retiree would have been entitled to until age 65 only. When a retiree reaches age 
65 and/or is eligible for Medicare, the District reimburses the retiree up to $1,800 per calendar year for the cost 
of Supplemental Medical Insurance and Medicare Prescription Drug (Part D) Insurance.  Retirees who 
complete at least 25 consecutive years of full-time service receive District-paid dental and vision benefits along 
with the above-mentioned medical coverage until the time of the retiree and spouse’s death. Plan benefits and 
contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established, and may be amended, by the 
District’s Board of Directors.   
 
The following parties are responsible for administration of the Plan: 
 
 Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) serves as Trust Administrator and Consultant, 
 US Bank serves as Trustee, and  
 HighMark Capital Management servers as Investment Manager. 
 
PARS issues monthly account reports to the District and HighMark publishes quarterly performance reports. 

 
(b) Funding Policy: 

 
The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established, and may be amended, by the 
District’s Board of Directors.  Currently, contributions are not required from Plan members. The District is 
currently funding the OPEB obligation on a pay-as-you-go basis.  For the year ended 2013, the District paid 
$155,575 in health care costs for its retirees and their covered dependents 

 
(c) Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: 

 
The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the Annual Required Contribution of the 
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB Statement 45.  The most recent 
GASB 45 actuarial valuation is dated July 1, 2011.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
on-going basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded liabilities of the 
Plan over a period not-to-exceed 30 years. 
 
 

Page 87 of 210



Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

 

24 
 

The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB costs for FY 2012-13, the amount  
actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB Asset. 
 
 Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $  205,390 
 Interest on Net OPEB Obligation        24,507 
 Adjustment to ARC      (29,674) 
 Annual OPEB Cost     200,223 
 Contribution made     155,575 
 Increase in Net OPEB Obligation       44,648 
 Net OPEB Asset June 30, 2012      (12,692) 
 
 Net OPEB Obligation at June 30, 2013 $    31,956 
 

(d) Three-Year Trend Information: 
 
For fiscal year 2012, the District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) of $200,223 was equal to the ARC.  
Information on the annual OPEB cost, Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed, and Net OPEB 
Obligation (Asset) are presented below: 
 

  
Actual 

Percentage 
of 

 

Fiscal Annual Contribution Annual Net OPEB 
Year OPEB (Net of OPEB Cost Obligation 

    Ended             Cost       Adjustments)  Contributed    (Asset)   
6/30/2011 $170,117 $ 34,155 20.08% $408,455 
6/30/2012 200,223 621,370(1) 310.34% (12,692) 
6/30/2013 200,223 155,575 77.70% 31,956 

 
(1) Included $500,000 contribution to irrevocable trust. 

 
(e) Funded Status and Funding Progress: 

 
As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was zero percent funded.  The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $1,610,754, and the actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) of $1,610,754.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $2,796,645 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 
57.60%. 
 
Actuarial valuations of an on-going plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trends.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of 
the Plan and the annual required contributions of the District are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The schedule of 
funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 
(f) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan 
members at that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed 
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
In the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation report, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial 
assumptions included a 6.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), a trend rate for the 
fiscal year beginning 2012 of 7% for healthcare costs, and an inflation rate of 6%.  The District’s unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability will be amortized by a 30 year level dollar contribution over an open period. 
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(9) Risk Management 
 
The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
(Insurance Authority).  The Insurance Authority is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions 
of California Government Code Sections 6500 et. seq.  The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer 
programs of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage for 
member agencies. 
 
The Insurance Authority bills the District a deposit premium at the beginning of each year, which is placed in a 
reserve fund to cover the self-insurance portion of any claim.  Settlements and/or expenses related to claims during 
the year are then charged to the reserve.  If the balance of the reserve at the end of the year is deemed too low in 
relation to the amount of outstanding claims, the District is billed for additional premiums.  When the claims are fully 
settled, any amounts remaining in the reserve are refunded to the District. 
At June 30, 2013, the District participated in the self-insurance programs of the Insurance Authority as follows: 
 
Property Loss - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per occurrence and has 
purchased excess insurance coverage up to $100 million (total insurable value of $1,248,142).  The District has a 
$1,000 deductible for buildings, personal property and fixed equipment. 
 
General Liability - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $2 million per occurrence, and has 
purchased excess insurance coverage up to $60 million. 
 
Auto Liability - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $2 million per occurrence, and has 
purchased excess insurance coverage up to $60 million. 
 
Public Officials’ Liability - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $2 million per occurrence and 
has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $60 million. 
 
Fidelity Bond - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per occurrence and has 
purchased excess insurance coverage up to $2 million.  The District has a $1,000 deductible. 
 
Workers’ Compensation - The Insurance Authority is self-insured up to $2 million per occurrence and has 
purchased excess insurance coverage up to the statutory limit.  Employer’s liability is insured up to a $4 million limit 
with pooled self-insurance up to $2 million, and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $2 million. 
 
The District pays annual premiums to the Insurance Authority for all coverage’s.  There were no instances in the 
past three years when a settlement exceeded the District’s coverage. 
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(10) Additional Information 
 

Refund of Tier 2 Rate Surcharge 
 

The Tier 2 Contingency Fund was established to cover the differential costs between METROPOLITAN’s Tier 1 
and Tier 2 water supply in years where MWDOC purchases Tier 2 water (purchases above 228,130 Acre Feet 
(AF))  The reason of the fund was to reduce rate volatility and minimize financial risk to the member agencies. 
 
In 2012, MWDOC received an increase to its annual Tier 1 limit by additional 52,000 AF, which significantly 
minimizes MWDOC’s future exposure to Tier 2 purchases; and based on MWDOC’s past three year average 
purchases of 193,000 AF, allowed for the opportunity to refund $3.7 million of the $4.7 million fund back to the 
member agencies. 
 
In 2013, the MWDOC Board authorized staff to distribute $3.7 million back to the member agencies according to 
the amount they contributed into the fund. 
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Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

 
 
 

Retiree Healthcare Plan 
 

 
Actuarial 
Valuation 
Date (1) 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 

(a) 

Actuarial 
Value 
of Plan 
Assets 
(AVA) 

(b) 

Unfunded 
Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(UAAL) 
(a) – (b) 

 
Funded 
Ratio  
(b)/(a) 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll  

(c) 

UAAL as a 
% of Payroll
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
[(a)-(b)]/(c) 

     

7/1/2008 $1,428,095 $         -         $1,428,095 0.00% $2,707,871 52.74% 
7/1/2011 $1,610,754 $         -         $1,610,754 0.00% $2,796,645 57.60% 

 
Note (1):  GASB 45 actuarial valuation reports prepared by Demsey, Filliger & Associates. 
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Budgeted (Y/N):  Yes Budgeted amount:  n/a Core  Choice  

Action item amount:  n/a Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):  Staff and Legal Counsel time.  This item is marked 
Core because it represents an open offer of assistance in seeking funding for local project 
development. 
 

 

Item No. 5 
 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM 
January 15, 2014 

 
 
TO: Planning and Operations Committee 
 (Directors Osborne, Barbre & Hinman) 
 
 
FROM: Robert Hunter, General Manager 
 
 Staff Contact:  Karl Seckel and MWDOC Legal Counsel Russ Behrens and 

Joseph Byrne  
 
 
SUBJECT: DWR Proposition 50 Grant for Desalination – Application for Doheny 

Desal Funding 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION (revised recommendation) 
 
It is recommended that the Board authorize staff to proceed with a Grant Proposal if it can 
be ascertained that our proposal would be considered by DWR.  Staff has changed the 
recommended action to a simple receive and file – staff will NOT be seeking funding from 
this grant, as our options are not in line with the grant offering. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee concurred with staff recommendation to seek funding opportunities if we have a 
good chance of securing funding with staff noting that they had already received a negative 
response from DWR staff regarding the environmental documentation proposal for 
submittal.  Staff indicated they were still waiting to hear on the second concept proposal on 
groundwater and geologic sampling via horizontal directional drilling.  Ultimately, DWR 
responded with a rather neutral/non-committal statement on the second concept.  In 
addition, insufficient time remains to put together a solid technical proposal and a local 
funding commitment of $500,000 or more for such a research project at this time.  We will 
keep this concept alive for future funding options that might come along.  No action is 
required other than a “receive and file” since staff will NOT be submitting a proposal.  
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SUMMARY 
 
DWR recently published a grant solicitation for desalination.  MWDOC has previously 
applied twice under this program and been successful.  This solicitation package was 
drafted in a narrow manner by DWR.  MWDOC has submitted two requests to DWR to see 
if they would consider these under the format of the grant.  DWR indicated our first request 
would NOT qualify; we are awaiting to hear on the second request before drafting and 
submitting a proposal.  It is also possible that MWDOC would submit a proposal in 
conjunction with West Basin MWD. 
 
According to the Project Solicitation Package drafted by DWR, the following categories of 
water desalination projects will be funded by these grants. 
 

• Construction project with a completed feasibility study or facility plan, and 
permitting and design either ready to proceed or already proceeding 
towards construction of a full- scale desalination treatment or brine disposal 
facility 

• Pilot or demonstration project with a completed feasibility study or facility 
plan to assess one or more components of a specific, planned facility 

• Feasibility study, which may include environmental documentation, to assess 
the viability of implementing a brackish groundwater desalination project in a 
specific area 

• Environmental documentation to supplement a completed feasibility 
study of a desalination project 

• Research project that supports permitting agencies in establishing policies 
and regulatory criteria for water desalination projects and that is not for the 
sole purpose of assessing a specific project 

 

The highlighted sections in each of these provisions presents constraints in submittal of a 
grant for the Doheny Desal Project.  Staff wanted to submit a proposal in such a manner as 
to use the MET Foundational Action Funding as the matching funding in the following two 
areas: 

 
1. Environmental Documentation related to the environmental baseline monitoring and 

issues associated with the Coastal Lagoon.  Staff drafted a summary and sent it to 
DWR and they indicated that our proposal would not qualify as it did not cover the 
full environmental documentation for the project – this round of funding is 
specifically to move projects forward that are ready to move into construction to 
achieve quick results – Doheny is NOT at that stage. 

2. Research into sampling offshore geology and water quality via horizontal directional 
drilling.  This method would involve the possibility of drilling down through the 
existing well to sample the geology and water quality at various locations out under 
the ocean to help us with additional information in the groundwater modeling work 
under MET’s Foundational Action Program.  It is likely that this project will be fairly 
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expensive and will require additional local dollars (maybe $500,000 to $750,000).  
We have not heard back on this concept. 

 

Staff will continue the discussions regarding this grant process into early 2014 to see if a 
successful proposal can be developed.  If so, Board Action would likely be required on 
January 15 and the Grant submittal is due on January 16. 
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Budgeted (Y/N):   Budgeted amount:   Core __ Choice __ 

Action item amount:   Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

 

Item No. 6-1 
 

 
 

ACTION ITEM 
January 15, 2014 

 
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: Robert Hunter 
 General Manager 
   
SUBJECT: REORGANIZATION OF THE MWDOC BOARD OF DIRECTORS; 
 ELECTION OF PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors nominate and by resolution(s) elect the 
President and Vice President of the Board. 
        Res. Nos. _____ & ______ 
SUMMARY 
In accordance with MWDOC’s Administrative Code, the President and Vice President of the 
Board of Directors shall serve a one-year term and shall be elected to such term by the 
members of the Board at its first regular meeting in January of each year.  Nominations will 
be taken from the floor and a roll call vote shall be taken.  
 
Attached are the proposed resolutions for the election of the President and Vice President 
of the Board.   
 
Administrative Code Sections 1303-1304 outline the duties of the President and Vice 
President (as follows): 
 
§1303 DUTIES AND POWERS OF PRESIDENT 
The President of the Board of Directors shall be the presiding officer and shall preserve 
order and decorum at all MWDOC meetings.  In the absence of the President, Vice 
President shall act as President.  In the absence of the President and Vice President, the 
Secretary acts as President until the Board selects one of its members President Pro 
Tempore, who shall have all of the powers of the President during the continuance of the 
meeting as well as during the absence of the President. 
 
§1304 DUTIES AND POWERS OF VICE PRESIDENT 
In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice President shall perform all of the 
duties of the President. 
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RESOLUTION NO._____ 

 MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
 
 RE: ELECTION OF THE PRESIDENT 

OF THE BOARD 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Municipal Water District of 
Orange County, in accordance with Resolution No. 1231 and Administrative Code Section 
1301, that at its first meeting in the month of January of each year, the Board shall elect one 
of its members President; and 
 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors has prescribed the use of 
nominations from the floor and a roll call vote as its method of electing the President of the 
Board, as set forth in Roberts Rules of Order (newly revised). 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Municipal Water 
District of Orange County that in accordance with the procedures set forth above, 
______________________ be and is hereby elected President of the Board of Directors 
of Municipal Water District of Orange County, effective January 15, 2014, for a one-year 
term of office. 
 
  

Adopted and approved this 15th day of January 2014, by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES:        
NOES:       

      ABSENT:  
      PRESENT:  

________________________________ 
Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary 
Municipal Water District of Orange County  
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RESOLUTION NO._____ 

 MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
 
 RE: ELECTION OF THE VICE PRESIDENT 

OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Municipal Water District of 
Orange County, in accordance with Resolution Nos. 1231 and 1756 and Administrative 
Code Section 1301, that at its first meeting in the month of January of each year, the Board 
shall elect a member of the Board to the office of Vice President, to serve a one year term, 
until a successor is elected; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors has prescribed the use of 
nominations from the floor and a roll call vote as its method of electing the President and 
Vice President of the Board, as set forth in Roberts Rules of Order (newly revised). 
 
 

THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Municipal 
Water District of Orange County that in accordance with the procedures set forth above, 
____________________ be and is hereby elected Vice President of the Board of 
Directors of Municipal Water District of Orange County, effective January 15, 2014, for a 
one-year term of office. 
  

Adopted and approved this 15th day of January 2014, by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES:        
NOES:       

      ABSENT:  
      PRESENT:  

________________________________ 
Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary 
Municipal Water District of Orange County  
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Budgeted (Y/N):  N/A Budgeted amount:   Core __ Choice __ 

Action item amount:   Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

 

Item No. 6-2 
 

 
 

ACTION ITEM 
January 15, 2014 

 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Robert Hunter, General Manager  
  
SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARY, TREASURER(S), AND LEGAL 

COUNSEL 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors:  Adopt Resolution(s) appointing the Board 
Secretary, Treasurer(s), and Legal Counsel. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
In May 2005, the MWDOC Board of Directors adopted a policy which states that at its first 
regular meeting in January, the Board shall appoint the Secretary, Treasurer and Legal 
Counsel.  An excerpt from Administrative Code Section 1301 is as follows: 
 

The Board shall appoint, by majority vote, at its pleasure, a Secretary, Treasurer, Legal 
Counsel, General Manager and Auditor and shall define their duties and fix their 
compensation.  At its first regular meeting in January of each year, the Board shall 
appoint the Secretary, Treasurer, and Legal Counsel.  The Board may also appoint a 
Deputy Secretary and Deputy Treasurer.   

 
The current incumbents are:   
 
  Maribeth Goldsby  Board Secretary 
  Vacant    Treasurer 
  Hilary Chumpitaza  Deputy Treasurer 

Judy Pfister   Deputy Treasurer 
  Robert Hunter  Alternate Deputy Treasurer 
  Russell G. Behrens  Legal Counsel 
 
Attached is a copy of the proposed Resolution.  Note that separate resolutions may also be 
adopted. 
 
Following are the Administrative Code Sections outlining the duties of the Secretary, 
Treasurer, and Legal Counsel. 
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§1305 DUTIES OF SECRETARY 
 
The Secretary shall post all notices and agendas required by law, shall keep a record of all 
proceedings had at meetings of the Board, and shall be custodian of the MWDOC Seal and all 
documents pertaining to MWDOC affairs.  In accordance with California Code of Regulations, 
Title 2, Section 18227, the Secretary shall serve as filing officer or filing official, responsible for 
receiving, forwarding or retaining statements of economic interest or campaign statements.  
The Secretary, in addition to the duties imposed by law, shall perform such duties as may be 
assigned by the Board.  The Board may appoint one or more Deputy Secretaries.  Under the 
direction of the Board and the Secretary, each such Deputy Secretary shall assist the 
Secretary in performance of the Secretary's duties, and shall perform such other duties as 
provided by the Board.  
 
§1306 DUTIES OF TREASURER 
 
The Treasurer and/or such other persons as may be authorized by the Board, shall invest and 
monitor MWDOC funds and draw checks or warrants to pay demands when such demands 
have been audited and approved in the manner prescribed by the Board. The Board may 
appoint one or more Deputy Treasurers or Alternate Deputy Treasurers who shall perform the 
duties of the Treasurer in the absence of the Treasurer.  
 
§1308 DUTIES OF LEGAL COUNSEL 
 
The Legal Counsel shall be the legal adviser of MWDOC and shall perform such duties as 
may be prescribed by the Board.  The Legal Counsel shall serve at the pleasure of the Board, 
and shall be compensated for services as determined by the Board. 
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RESOLUTION NO.  _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
APPOINTING DISTRICT SECRETARY, TREASURER, 

DEPUTY TREASURERS, ALTERNATE DEPUTY TREASURER, 
AND LEGAL COUNSEL 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Administrative Code Section 1031, the Board shall appoint 
the Secretary, Treasurer, Deputy Treasurer, and Legal Counsel on an annual basis (at the 
first regular meeting in January); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance has historically served as Treasurer, and, due to 
the vacancy in that position, a Treasurer will be appointed at a later date; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 
 _________________is hereby appointed as Secretary of the Board of the Municipal 

Water District of Orange County effective immediately; the term of office to be at the 
pleasure of the Board; 

 
 _________________is hereby appointed as Deputy Treasurer of the Municipal 

Water District of Orange County effective immediately; the term of office to be at the 
pleasure of the Board; 

 
 _________________is hereby appointed as Deputy Treasurer of the Municipal 

Water District of Orange County effective immediately; the term of office to be at the 
pleasure of the Board; 

 
 _________________is hereby appointed as Alternate Deputy Treasurer of the 

Municipal Water District of Orange County effective immediately; the term of office 
to be at the pleasure of the Board; and 

 
 _________________ of ___________________, is hereby appointed as Legal 

Counsel of the Municipal Water District of Orange County effective immediately, the 
term of office to be at the pleasure of the Board. 

 
 Said Resolution was adopted, on roll call, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:    
 NOES:    
 ABSTAIN:  
 ABSENT:  
 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 
No. _____, adopted by the Board of Directors of Municipal Water District of Orange County 
at its meeting of January 15, 2014. 
    ____________________________________ 
    Secretary 
    Municipal Water District of Orange County 
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Budgeted (Y/N):  N/A Budgeted amount:  N/A Core __ Choice _X_ 

Action item amount:  N/A Line item:  N/A 

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):  N/A 
 

 

Item No. 6-3 
 

 
 

ACTION ITEM 
January 15, 2014 

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Planning & Operations Committee 
 (Directors Osborne, Barbre, Hinman) 
 
 Robert Hunter  Staff Contact:   J. Berg 
 General Manager     WUE Programs Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART Grant Resolution 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt the proposed resolution in support of 
MWDOC’s 2014 WaterSMART: Water and Energy Efficiency grant application to be 
submitted to the Bureau of Reclamation by January 23, 2014. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee concurred with staff recommendation. 
 
 
DETAILED REPORT 
 
In November 2013, the Bureau of Reclamation released its “WaterSMART: Water and 
Energy Efficiency Grants for FY2014” Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).  The 
objective of this announcement is to invite proposals to leverage investments and 
resources by cost sharing with Reclamation on projects that save water, improve energy 
efficiency, address endangered species and other environmental issues, and facilitate 
water transfers to new uses.  A total of $12 million is available for project awards within 
the 17 western states.  The Bureau has established two funding groups: Group 1 
includes projects that will be awarded up to $300,000 each; and Group 2 includes 
projects that will be awarded up to $1 million each. 
 
Staff will be submitting an application for a Water Smart Landscape Project: Spray to 
Drip Irrigation Conversion.  The FOA requires all applications to include an official Board 
Resolution supporting the grant application.  The proposed Resolution containing the 
required content is attached for your consideration.   
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RESOLUTION NO ______ 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

OF ORANGE COUNTY SUPPORTING A BUREAU OF RECLAMATION WATER 
SMART: WATER AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY GRANT APPLICATION  

 
 WHEREAS, the Municipal Water District of Orange County submitted an 
application to the Bureau of Reclamation for funding for an Water Smart Landscape 
Program: Spray to Drip Irrigation Conversion to improve urban landscape water use 
efficiency in the Municipal Water District of Orange County service area,  
 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Water District of Orange County is committed to 
developing and implementing a comprehensive water use efficiency program designed 
to meet our local water supply reliability goals, comply with the Best Management 
Practices for urban water conservation in California, and exceed the Governor’s call for 
a 20% reduction in urban per capita water use by 2020,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Municipal Water District of 

Orange County Board of Directors designates Robert J. Hunter, General Manager, as 
the official who has reviewed and supports the application submittal and the legal 
authority to enter into an agreement on behalf of the District, and designates Joseph M. 
Berg, Water Use Efficiency Programs Manager, as the District’s representative to sign 
the progress reports and approve reimbursement claims. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Municipal Water 

District of Orange County Board of Directors assures its capability to provide the 
amount of funding and in-kind contributions specified in the funding plan. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Municipal Water 
District of Orange County will work with Reclamation to meet established deadlines for 
entering into a cooperative agreement. 
 

Said Resolution was adopted on January 15, 2014, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of 
Resolution No. ____ adopted by the Board of Directors of Municipal Water District of 
Orange County at its meeting held on January 15, 2014. 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Maribeth Goldsby, Secretary 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
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Budgeted (Y/N):  Yes Budgeted amount:  n/a Core  Choice  

Action item amount:  n/a Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):  Staff and Legal Counsel time.  This item is marked 
Core because it represents an open offer of assistance in seeking funding from MET for local 
projects. 
 

 

Item No. 6-4 
 

 
 

ACTION ITEM 
January 15, 2014 

 
 
TO: Planning and Operations Committee 
 (Directors Osborne, Barbre & Hinman) 
 
 
FROM: Robert Hunter, General Manager 
 
 Staff Contact:  Karl Seckel and MWDOC Legal Counsel Russ Behrens and 

Joseph Byrne  
  
 
SUBJECT: Foundational Action Program Funding Agreements for Consideration:   

(1) Agreement Between MWDOC and MET and Agreement Between 
MWDOC and South Coast Water District and Laguna Beach County 
Water District for the Doheny Desal Project 

(2) Agreement Between MWDOC and MET and Agreement Between 
MWDOC and San Juan Basin Authority (SJBA) for the SJBA Project 

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board authorize staff to execute all four agreements 
substantially in the form presented, subject to final review and comment by Legal Counsel.  
At the time of production of this packet item, the final form of the agreements is still under 
consideration, both by MET and by South Coast WD, Laguna Beach CWD and the SJBA; 
attached to the packet are the most current versions.  Board action by South Coast WD, 
Laguna Beach CWD and SJBA are expected the first three weeks in January. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION (and staff update) 
 
Committee concurred with staff recommendation with staff noting that the Agreements 
would go before South Coast Water District on January 9 for consideration and later in the 
month to Laguna Beach CWD and to the San Juan Basin Authority (SJBA).  Director 
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Hinman and Karl Seckel participated in the South Coast Board meeting on January 9 and 
are happy to report that South Coast Water District approved the agreements, substantially 
in the form presented, and authorized funding in the amount up to $300,000.  For reference 
purposes, as far as MWDOC is concerned, MET is passing through $200,000 while South 
Coast and Laguna Beach CWD, combined, are responsible for $300,000 in funding 
(however they agree to split the amount).  Unfortunately, Laguna Beach CWD has not 
scheduled a meeting in January and will be meeting to get approval of the Agreement and 
their funding amount on February 4.  With the South Coast funding commitment on January 
9, if for whatever reason Laguna Beach CWD does not approve any funding, South Coast 
has committed to step in for the entire amount.  The expectations remain that Laguna 
Beach CWD will fund between $100,000 and $150,000 towards the local match of 
$300,000.  A minor amount of language editing has occurred since the P&O Committee, but 
no substantial modifications have been made in either the MET Agreement or the South 
Coast and Laguna Beach Agreements.  Staff is still recommending approval substantially in 
the form presented to allow a final round of editing prior to execution. 
 
Another item discussed at the P&O Committee was whether or not MWDOC would be 
awarding the consultant contracts.  At that time, it was not clear, but still a possibility that 
MWDOC would award the contracts.  Since that meeting, South Coast WD has agreed to 
do all the contracting and at their meeting on January 9 approved funding for the 
Geoscience Support Services contract for $252,040 and the Carollo Engineering contract 
for $128,000.  Those actions will relieve MWDOC from awarding and administering the 
contracts. 
 
Staff has received the write up for the San Juan Basin Authority (SJBA) meeting to take 
place on January 14 and does not anticipate any problems with approval.  Staff will provide 
a verbal update at the meeting to confirm the action taken by the SJBA. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
In June, the MWDOC Board approved seeking funding from MET for Foundational Action 
Funding.  MWDOC was successful in three efforts.  West Basin is managing the funding 
agreement for the Direct Potable Reuse.  The topic of this action item is to approve funding 
agreements toward: 

 

• Doheny Desal Project for $200,000 

• San Juan Basin Authority Project for $200,000 

 

Overall, four agreements are included: 

1. Agreement Between MWDOC and MET for the Doheny Desal Project 

2. Agreement Between MWDOC and South Coast Water District and Laguna Beach 
County Water District for the Doheny Desal Project 

3. Agreement Between MWDOC and MET for the SJBA Project 
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4. Agreement Between MWDOC and San Juan Basin Authority (SJBA) for the SJBA 
Project 

 

The form of Agreements for 1&3 are very similar and the form of Agreements for 2 & 4 are 
very similar. 

 
Key Provisions of the Agreements 

• The term goes through June 30, 2017, roughly two years to complete the work.  Both 
projects should be completed within that time frame without any problems. 

• The agreement may be terminated by either Party with or without cause upon 30 
days notice (a MET provision). 

• Failure to provide progress reports on time will be considered a breach of contract. 

• The agreement can be terminated immediately by MET if work has NOT started by 
January 31, 2014.  MET has agreed that “start of work” means procuring consultant 
contracts to complete the work.  It does mean that we need executed agreements 
with MET and with our agencies before the end of the month. 

• Local agencies are responsible for all conduct of the work and compliance with 
CEQA. 

• MET has requested specific language in any consultant agreements for: 

o Indemnification and hold harmless 

o Insurance provisions 

o Intellectual Property 

• Any “Intellectual Property” shall be owned by MWDOC but shall be made available 
to MET and the MET Member Agencies at no cost. 

• MET payment shall not exceed $200,000 or 50% of the project, whichever is less. 

• MET is withholding 25% of the payment until a “Final Invoice” is submitted. 

• A Final Report must be prepared along with a one-year post report update. 

• In-kind services are NOT eligible for any aspect of reimbursement. 

• MWDOC’s agreements with the local agencies have the same provisions as the 
MET Agreements, although the Doheny Desal Project Scope of Work in the 
MWDOC Agreement is broader and covers work that is not part of the MET 
Agreement.  The Doheny agreement includes about $35,000 of reimbursable work to 
be done by Richard Bell.  For the Doheny Project overall, the Scope of Work in MET 
Agreement is estimated at $419,240 and Metropolitan will pay up to $200,000.  The 
study task summary in the MWDOC Agreement includes a total amount of work 
estimated at $500,000.  For the avoidance of doubt, SCWD and LBCWD will be 
responsible for up to $300,000 in funding to complete all of the activities outlined. 
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Attached are all four Agreements in DRAFT Form. 

 

The Final Form of Agreements from MET are expected in early January; Board Action by 
the local agencies, South Coast WD, Laguna Beach CWD and SJBA is expected in the first 
three weeks in January. 
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Agreement No. 139834 Page 1 of 6 DRAFT 2013 FAF PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 

 

MWD 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

 
 

FOUNDATIONAL ACTIONS FUNDING PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
Agreement No. 139834 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made and entered into on _, 2013, between 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) and 
Municipal Water District of Orange County (Agency). 
Metropolitan and Agency may be collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually as “Party.” 

Recitals 

A. Metropolitan, through its Foundational Actions Funding Program (FAF Program), provides funding to persons or entities for 
technical studies or pilot projects that reduce barriers to future production of recycled water, stormwater, seawater 
desalination, and groundwater resources. This Program was established per authorization detailed in Board Letter No.8-4 in 
April 2013. 

B. Agency was selected through a Request for Proposal (RFP). Metropolitan and Agency agree to enter into an agreement for 
Overcoming Barriers to Slant Well Seawater Desalination – Siting, Groundwater, Water Quality and Treatment (Project). 

C. This Agreement provides the terms for Agency’s participation in the FAF Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, the Parties do agree as follows: 

Section 1: Project Description 

1.1 Agency shall carry out the Project as described in Exhibit A (Scope of Work, Cost, and Schedule), which is hereby incorporated 
into this Agreement. 

1.2 Agency shall provide the Project deliverables according to the schedule as set forth in Exhibit A. 

Section 2: Agreement Term 

2.1 This Agreement shall be effective on , 2013 and the term shall be through June 30, 2017, or when all of 

the Parties’ obligations under this Funding Agreement have been fully satisfied, whichever occurs earlier. Extensions of time to 
complete all or portions of the Project, including any required deliverables, shall be requested in writing by Agency and may be 
authorized at the sole discretion of Metropolitan in writing by Metropolitan. Any written authorization for an extension of time 
shall be attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. 

2.2 This Agreement may be terminated by either Party with or without cause upon 30 days written notice to the other Party. 
Metropolitan’s only obligation in the event of termination will be payment of approved invoices in conformity with this 
Agreement up to and including the effective date of termination. 

2.3 Failure of an Agency to submit progress reports or the final report within the timeframe established in Exhibit A or any 
extension of time authorized in accordance with Section 2.1 above will be a breach of this Agreement. 

2.4 This Agreement may be terminated immediately by Metropolitan upon written notice to the Agency if work on the Project has 
not started by January 31, 2014. 

Section 3: Agreement Administrators 

3.1 Ms. Stacie Takeguchi is appointed Agreement Administrator for Metropolitan for the purpose of administering this Agreement. 
The Agreement Administrator appointed by Agency for the purpose of administering this Agreement is . 

3.2 The designated Agreement Administrator may be changed by providing written notice to the other Party. Any communication 
required to administer this Agreement shall be in writing and will be deemed received upon personal delivery or 48 hours after 
deposit in any United States mail depository, first class postage prepaid, and addressed to the Party for whom intended, as 
follows: 
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If to Metropolitan: If to Agency: 
 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Municipal Water District of Orange County 
P. O. Box 54153 18700 Ward Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90054-0153 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 
Attention: Ms. Stacie Takeguchi Attention: [Insert Agency Agreement Administrator Name] 
Or by email to: stakeguchi@mwdh2o.com Or by email to: [Insert Agency Administrator email] 

Either Party may change such address by giving notice to the other Party as provided herein. 

Section 4: Responsibilities and Ownership 

4.1 Agency shall be responsible for all necessary services and materials for Project implementation including, but not limited to, 
providing the following: Project administration, data collection, analyses, and reporting. 

4.2 Agency shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations and is solely responsible for any such 
obligations, including, without limitation, compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act. 

4.3 Metropolitan and Agency agree that each party shall be responsible for its own actions, and the actions of its officers, 
employees and agents, in performing services under this Agreement. Metropolitan and Agency each agree to indemnify and 
hold the other Party and its officers and agents harmless and agree to defend the other Party against any claim or asserted 
liability arising out of its actions, either willful or negligent, or the actions of its officers, employees and agents, in performing 
services pursuant to this Agreement. Such indemnity includes any losses relating to any claim made, whether or not a court 
action is filed, and attorney fees and administrative and overhead costs related to or arising out of such claim or asserted 
liability. 

4.4 Agency is solely responsible for the performance of its staff or representatives in complying with the terms of this Agreement 
and for the proper allocation of funds provided by Metropolitan for the purpose of implementing the Project under this 
Agreement. 

4.5 Agency shall be responsible for the design, implementation, personnel, equipment and supplies, and all capital and operating 
costs related to and incurred by Project. All materials and equipment necessary to implement Project are the exclusive property 
of Agency. Metropolitan shall have no ownership, right, title, security interest, or other interest in any Project facilities,  
materials, or equipment, nor any rights, duties, or responsibilities for operation or maintenance thereof. 

4.6 Agency shall include this Agreement, language stating that the terms of this Agreement prevail if there is a conflict in any terms  
in a separate agreement, and the following language in its agreement with any consultant, contractor, or organization retained  
by or partnering with Agency to work on the Project: "(Consultant) agrees at its sole cost and expense to protect, indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California and its Board of Directors, officers, 
representatives, agents and employees from and against any and all claims and liability of any kind (including, but not limited to, 
any claims or liability for injury or death to any person, damage to property, natural resources or to the environment, or water 
quality problems) that arise out of or relate to Agency’s approval, construction, operation, repair or ownership of the Project. 
Such indemnity shall include all damages and losses related to any claim made, whether or not a court action is filed, and shall 
include attorney’s fees, administrative and overhead costs, engineering and consulting fees and all other costs related to or 
arising out of such claim or asserted liability.” Agency shall be solely responsible for all payments and other contractual 
requirements required by any such separate agreement. 

Section 5: Intellectual Property and Use of Materials 

5.1 All intellectual property developed pursuant to this Agreement shall be owned by Agency and Agency hereby grants 
Metropolitan and its member public agencies a nonexclusive license, at no cost, to use the intellectual property developed in 
the course of the work performed under this Agreement by Agency or any contractor and consultant working on Project as 
described in Exhibit A. This intellectual property includes, but is not limited to, all inventions, patents, data, design, drawings, 
specifications, raw results, computer programs, final report, as well as any other presentations, reports, findings or related 
materials developed during the Project. 

5.2 The Parties agree that the granting of the nonexclusive license to use the intellectual property developed pursuant to this 
Agreement is beneficial to all Metropolitan member agencies and the Southern California region. 

5.3 Agency agrees that all results produced in the performance of this Agreement may be released to the public. 

5.4 Agency shall include the following language in its agreement with any consultant or contractor retained by Agency to 
work on the Project: “All intellectual property developed pursuant to this Agreement is owned by 
Municipal Water District of Orange County (Agency). This intellectual property includes, but is not limited to, 
all inventions, patents, data, design, drawings, specifications, raw results, computer programs, final report, 
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as well as any other presentations, reports, findings or related materials developed during the Project. All results produced 
in the performance of this Agreement may be released to the public.” 

5.5 Agency shall notify Metropolitan in writing of all intellectual property conceived or developed in the course of the work 
performed under this Agreement. 

5.6 Agency shall cooperate in the execution of all documents necessary to perfect and protect Metropolitan’s and its member 
public agencies’ right to intellectual property under this Agreement as requested by Metropolitan. 

5.7 When requested by Metropolitan or its member public agencies, or upon termination of this Agreement, Agency shall furnish 
a copy of all documents and other tangible media containing intellectual property developed by Agency during the course of 
this Agreement, including all prototypes and computer programs. 

Section 6: Metropolitan’s Payment 

6.1 Metropolitan’s payment for the Project is not to exceed $200,000, or fifty (50) percent of the total cost expended per task as 
established in Exhibit A, whichever is less. Agency shall be responsible for all costs in excess of Metropolitan’s payment. 

6.2 Metropolitan shall reimburse Agency only upon receipt and approval by Metropolitan of a required quarterly progress report 
and associated quarterly invoice in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement and as scheduled in Exhibit A.  
Twenty five (25) percent of eligible reimbursable costs shall be withheld per invoice until a final report is accepted by 
Metropolitan. Agency shall submit quarterly invoices with related quarterly progress reports to Metropolitan’s Accounts 
Payable Section, whose mailing address is P.O. Box 54153, Los Angeles, California 90054-0153, with a copy to the Agreement 
Administrator via email at the address provided under Section 3.2. Agency’s Agreement Administrator shall sign and certify the 
invoices to be true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge. Agency’s invoices shall include at a minimum the information 
requested in Exhibit B (Sample Invoice). Invoices shall itemize allowable expenses and include receipts for which   
reimbursement is sought. Attached receipts should itemize each cost and provide descriptive information so that expenses are 
separately identified. The final invoice, including any requests for release of retention, shall be clearly marked “FINAL INVOICE.” 

6.3 In-kind services are not eligible for reimbursement and shall not be included in Agency invoices to Metropolitan. In-kind 
services include, but are not limited to, work performed by staff of Agency or of Agency’s partner(s) contributing funding to 
Project, and related expenses (e.g., travel, overhead, etc.). 

6.4 All invoices related to the Project must be submitted by Agency to Metropolitan by April 15, 2016, to be considered for payment 
under the provisions of this agreement. Invoices received after April 15, 2016, will not be paid unless Metropolitan, in its sole 
discretion, grants Agency, in writing, an extension of time to complete the work and submit its invoices. 

6.5 Invoices to Metropolitan will be paid 30 days after approval of the invoices, provided the work achieved complies with the 
conditions set forth in section 6.2 of this Agreement and Exhibit A. 

Section 7: Reporting Requirements 

7.1 Agency shall submit to Metropolitan quarterly progress reports with the associated invoices by the 15th of January, April, July, 
and October for the preceding quarter. The progress reports shall include, at a minimum, the items listed in Exhibit C 
(Progress Report Format). Agency shall document all activities and expenditures in progress reports. The submittal of these 
reports is a requirement for initial and continued disbursement of funds. 

7.2 Agency shall prepare and submit to Metropolitan, upon completion of the Project, a Final Report, which shall include, at a 
minimum, the items listed in Exhibit D (Final Report Format). The Final Report shall be provided in hard copy and digital format 
prior to final payment of funds retained by Metropolitan. 

7.3 Upon written request by Metropolitan, Agency shall prepare and submit to Metropolitan a Post-Project Update Report one year 
following the acceptance of the Final Report. The Post-Project Update Report shall provide a summary of related post-funding 
project activities and include, at a minimum, the items listed in Exhibit E (Post-Project Update Report Format). 

Section 8: Verification 

8.1 Agency shall be responsible for verifying completion of Consultant’s or Subcontractor’s work in accordance with the 
Scope of Work as shown in Exhibit A. 

Section 9: Representations 

9.1 Each Party represents that it is represented by legal counsel, that it has reviewed this Agreement and agrees that: 
a. This Agreement is legally enforceable; 
b. Payments made by Metropolitan to Agency pursuant to this Agreement are a legal use of Metropolitan’s funds; and, 
c. Metropolitan may legally recover the costs incurred by Metropolitan pursuant to this Agreement in the water rates 

charged to its Member Agencies, including Agency. 
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Section 10: Insurance 

10.1 Agency shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement a program of commercial insurance or documented 
self-insurance program to protect against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Agency, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

10.2 Agency shall sustain proof of insurance coverage in an updated ACORD form, attached hereto as Exhibit F 
(Agency Proof of Insurance Coverage) and incorporated by reference, during the term of this Agreement. 
Failure to provide the updated insurance ACORD form annually may result in the withholding of Agency’s invoice payment. 
Agency shall list the agreement number on the ACORD form and email to: AgreementInsurance@mwdh2o.com or fax 
to (213-576-6158). Alternatively, if unable to email or fax, Agency shall send the ACORD form via U.S. mail as follows: 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
P.O. Box 54153 
Los Angeles, CA 90054 
Attention: Ms. Stacie Takeguchi 
Agreement No. 139834 

10.3 Minimum Scope of Insurance 

a. Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

i. Insurance Services Office Commercial Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG0001). 

ii. Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1, (any auto). 

iii. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

iv. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the Agency's profession. 
Architects' and engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability." 

10.4 Minimum Limits of Insurance 

a. Agency shall maintain limits no less than: 

i. General Liability: Including operations, products and completed operations as applicable, 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. 
If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, 
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the project or location, or the 
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

ii. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

iii. Workers’ Compensation: Shall be furnished in accordance with statutory requirements of the State of California 
and shall include Employer’s Liability coverage of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

iv. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per claim, with a $2 million aggregate. 

10.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 
Metropolitan. At the option of Metropolitan, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respect to Metropolitan, its officers officials, employees, agents and volunteers; or the Agency shall provide a 
financial guarantee satisfactory to Metropolitan guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration 
and defense expenses. 

10.6 Verification of Coverage: Agency shall furnish Metropolitan with original certificates and amendatory endorsements effecting 
coverage required by this clause. The endorsements and certificates are to be received and approved by Metropolitan prior to 
the commencement of work. Metropolitan reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, including endorsements effecting coverage, and coverage binders required by these specifications at any time. 

10.7 Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with California admitted insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VIII. A non-admitted carrier may be used with prior approval from Metropolitan, with an A.M. Best rating of no less than 
A: X. An exception to these standards will be made for the State Compensation Insurance Fund when not specifically rated. 
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10.8 General Liability and Automobile Liability Endorsements 

a. The commercial general liability policy and automobile policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
the following provisions: 

i. Metropolitan, its officers, officials, employees and agents are to be covered as insureds as respect to liability 
arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Agency; or automobiles owned, leased, 
hired or borrowed by the Agency. 

ii. For any claims related to this project, the Agency’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect to 
Metropolitan, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
Metropolitan, its officers, officials, employees or agents shall be excess of the Agency’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

iii. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled by 
either party, except after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to Metropolitan. 

iv. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of the additional insured in 
any case where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of 
Section 2782 of the Civil Code. 

10.9 Other Endorsements and Insurance Provisions 

a. All rights of subrogation under the property insurance policy (if any) have been waived against Metropolitan. 

b. The workers’ compensation insurer, agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against Metropolitan for injuries to 
employees of the insured (Agency) resulting from work for Metropolitan or use of Metropolitan’s premises or facilities. 

c. If General Liability, Pollution and/or any Asbestos Pollution Liability and/or professional liability or Errors & Omissions 
coverages are written on a claims-made form: 

i. The “Retro Date” must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of contract work. 

ii. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a 
“Retro Date” prior to the contract effective date, the Agency must purchase “extended reporting” coverage 
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work. 

iii. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to Metropolitan for review. 

Section 11: Miscellaneous 

11.1 This Agreement may be amended by written mutual agreement executed by both Parties. Any alteration or variation of   
the terms of this Agreement will not be valid unless made in writing and signed by both Parties. This Agreement constitutes 
the entire agreement between the Parties. 

11.2 This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Metropolitan and Agency and their respective successors. 
This Agreement is not assignable by either Party in whole or in part. 

11.3 If any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, in whole or in part, such provision shall be 
modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it legal, valid, and enforceable, and the legality, validity, and enforceability 
of the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby. 

11.4 This Agreement shall be deemed a contract under the laws of the State of California, and for all purposes will be interpreted    
in accordance with such laws. Metropolitan and Agency hereby agree and consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of 
the State of California, and that the venue of any action brought hereunder will be in Los Angeles County, California. 

 
Attachments incorporated in this Agreement include: 

 
Exhibit A: Scope of Work, Cost, and Schedule 
Exhibit B: Sample Invoice 
Exhibit C: Quarterly Progress Report Format 
Exhibit D: Final Report Format 
Exhibit E: Post-Project Update Report Format 
Exhibit F: Agency Proof of Insurance Coverage 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed and entered into this Agreement as of the date last written below. 
 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
 

Marcia L. Scully 
General Counsel 

 
 

By:     
Setha E. Schlang 
Senior Deputy General Counsel 

Jeffrey Kightlinger 
General Manager 

By: 
 
 

Debra C. Man 
Assistant General Manager/COO 

Date:   Date: 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

By: 

By: 
 
 

Legal Counsel (if necessary) Name: 
Title: 

Date: Date: 
 
 
 

In Duplicate 
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Scope of Work, Costs, and Schedule 
For 

Overcoming Barriers to Slant Well Seawater Desalination – 
Siting, Groundwater, Water Quality and Treatment 

 
 

1.0 Project Objective 
 

The objective of this study is to further the understanding and utilization of slant well intakes 
for development of an ocean desalination project. 

 
2.0 Background Information 

 
Seawater desalination offers the potential to provide a reliable and high quality water supply. 
Subsurface slant beach well intakes offer an alternative intake system that can lower the cost of 
supply and protect local basins from seawater intrusion. Additional study, as described herein, 
can help overcome barriers and pave the way for use of these facilities. 

 
Changing Regulatory Environment. Ocean intake regulations are becoming increasingly 
stringent. The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) has acted to phase out 
once-thru-cooling systems and is in the process of amending the Ocean Plan with an ocean 
desalination policy for intakes and brine disposal. The costs for open water intakes are likely 
to increase. Slant wells offer a cost-effective alternative for small and mid-sized projects. 

 
Prior Slant Well Technology Research & Development. Since 2003, the Municipal Water District 
of Orange County (MWDOC) along with five project participants have been investigating a 
seawater desalination project that would be sited on South Coast Water District (SCWD) San Juan 
Creek property and along Doheny State Beach. The Doheny Desal Project (formerly South Orange 
Coastal Ocean Desalination Project), has been considering the use of a slant well subsurface intake 
system because of their cost advantages and their avoidance of impingement and entrainment impacts to 
marine organisms.  In 2006, MWDOC with Metropolitan, State and Federal grants constructed a Test Slant 
Well on Doheny State Beach, conducted various studies, and with five project participants funding and 
additional State and Federal grants by June 2010 installed a test facility and ran the Phase 3 Extended 
Pumping and Pilot Plant Test Project (Phase 3) to evaluate feedwater quality, aquifer pretreatment 
filtration capabilities and other related tests. These tests were completed in May 2012. 

 
Concurrently, MWDOC developed a regional groundwater flow model to study the sustainable 
yield of the San Juan Basin, seawater intrusion potential, and potential impacts on the basin 
from a seawater desalination project slant well field situated along Doheny State Beach. 
This work was cooperatively prepared with the San Juan Basin Authority’s (SJBA) technical 
assistance and was used by SJBA to develop its 2013 San Juan Basin Groundwater and 
Facilities Master Plan. 

Page 114 of 210



Exhibit A

Agreement No. 139834 Page 2 of 13 DRAFT 2013 FAF PROGRAM AGREEMENT

 

 

 
 

The Phase 3 Extended Pumping and Pilot Plant Testing Project draft reports have been 
completed and released for review to our project participants. These reports will be finalized 
by September 2013. The reports are contained in three volumes: Project Development; 
Operations, Testing and Evaluation (forthcoming); and San Juan Basin Regional Groundwater 
Flow Model. They are available for review on the MWDOC website: 
http://www.mwdoc.com/services/desalination. 

 
Going Forward. This project is focused on advancing both slant well technology and 
groundwater flow / water quality modeling methodologies by addressing coastal geotechnical 
and environmental risks and issues that pose challenges and potential barriers to seawater 
desalination utilizing slant well intakes. The potential for slant wells impacts on upstream 
groundwater requires evaluation of feasible mitigation approaches, including coastal injection 
wells, to control drawdown effects on the basin. 

 
Following on the recommendations from the Phase 3 Expert Panel review, one the key goals of 
this project is to develop and apply advanced geoscience analytical methodologies to answer 
remaining slant well application questions. These include understanding feedwater quality to be 
produced over time from a slant well system, understanding with precision drawdown effects 
and environmental strategies for along coastal reaches, and the behavior of seawater flows and 
intrusion control in a multiple layered aquifer system. In addition, it is critical to understand and 
develop protective approaches for geotechnical risks related to placement of slant wells on 
beaches. These are key issues to be resolved wherever coastal slant wells are to be considered 
and utilized. 

 
3.1 Project Description 

 
This project is focused on overcoming identified barriers to the use of slant wells in San Juan 
Basin with similar issues expected in other locations and understanding long-term pumped water 
quality, slant well performance and institutional and physical mitigation measures such as 
injection wells to minimize drawdown impacts. 

 
The five areas of investigation are: 

 
• Advancement of Slant Well Technology 
• Geologic, Seismic and Ocean Risk Analysis for Siting Slant Wells 
• Prediction of Coastal/Ocean Groundwater Flow and Water Quality 
• Modeling of Slant Well Feedwater Supply, Impacts and Mitigation Approaches 
• Coastal Environment Drawdown Issues and Regulatory Strategies 

 
These five elements will help to reduce barriers to implementation of slant well seawater 
desalination intakes by developing the following information and methods that are 
transferable: 

 
• Slant well intake and wellhead technology application considerations and concepts; 
• Well placement criteria for long-term service and consistent operations; 
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• The effectiveness of physical injection wells to significantly reduce drawdowns on 
groundwater users and pumping of basin water compared to non-physical mitigation; 

• The interaction between the ocean and groundwater basins and optimizing slant well 
sizing and placement for yield and groundwater basin seawater intrusion control; 

• Aquifer response to slant well shutdown on water levels and ocean water movement; 
• Drawdown effects on the coastal stream reaches and seasonal lagoon and injection well 

barrier placement and operation to minimize these effects (as one alternative); 
• Improved prediction of salinity and water quality over time, through better 

understanding of the geochemistry of the offshore marine groundwater system from 
static conditions (dissolved minerals/metals, anoxia, acidic conditions) to slant well 
pumped flow dynamic conditions (transition to steady state - salinity, anoxia, percent 
ocean, minerals/metals); 

• Steady state Fe/Mn levels when the marine aquifer is fully recharged by ocean water 
with and without injection barriers and by injection barrier source-of-supply to aid 
analysis of any need for Fe/Mn removal; 

• Assessment of cost-effective methods to collect water samples from offshore aquifers; 
and 

• Applicability to other similar locations in southern California. 
 
While many of these activities will need to be analyzed on a local basis, the applicability of this 
promising technology, methods of analysis, and lessons learned are valuable and transferable 
to many coastal locations within the region. 

 
This study will assess advanced modeling tools that have the necessary level of precision to 
resolve the barriers that currently exist to the use of slant wells. A feasibility assessment with 
advanced and more precision modeling capabilities will be conducted. This assessment will 
evaluate the effectiveness of using a fine grid coastal/ocean flow and water quality model 
capable of prediction of time variation of (1) source water flows to slant wells, (2) water quality 
using an array of the most capable modeling software for solute transport, variable density 
flows, natural isotopes, and geochemistry reactions, and (3) analysis of seawater intrusion 
through multiple layered aquifer systems. 

 
  Source water quality for injection alternatives and regulatory requirements  for recycled 
water will be handled by the San Juan Basin Authority under their FAP work.  Task 4.4 in this 
scope of work has been accordingly revised.  Participating Entities 

 
Under MWDOC, the following agencies are participating in the project: 

 
The Doheny Desal Project Participants for the study are: 

• South Coast Water District 
• Laguna Beach County Water District 

 

Consulting Technical support will be provided by: 
• Geoscience 
• Separation Processes 
• Carollo Engineers 
• Woods Hole Oceanographic Institute 
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• Ninyo and Moore 
 

4.0 Description of Tasks 
 

The objective of this work plan is to develop methodologies to overcome barriers to 
implementation of slant well technology. 

 
Beach slant wells for ocean desalination must be sited carefully and consider impacts to coastal 
resources and groundwater. The way to responsibly site such intakes is to define and 
understand the extraction and movement of water resources in these areas. This requires 
precision modeling. 

 
TASK 1 – Advancement of Slant Well Technology 

 
1.1 Slant Well Technology Assessment 

 
This task will describe the initial prototype design for the Test Slant Well, its constraints 
and limitations, knowledge gained, and lessons learned over the past several years of 
research and development work at the Doheny State Beach test site. Based on this 
knowledge and experience, an assessment will be made on how to advance slant well 
technology for future implementation. Areas of slant well technology to be addressed 
fall in six categories: (1) full-scale well drilling technology, capability, limitations and 
modifications, (2) casing and screen, (3) selection and placement of gravel packing, 
(4) well development and testing, (5) submersible pumps (subsurface installation is 
necessary for subsurface beach applications), and (6) downhole instrumentation. 

 
1.2 Achieving Long-Term Performance 

 
To gain the necessary knowledge on slant well long-term performance considerations, 
it is important to have a thorough understanding of slant well technology: 
(1) engineering, materials, design, construction practices, O&M, and 
forensics/rehabilitation, and (2) the sciences of metallurgy, microbiology and 
chemistry and their interactions at marine aquifer/well interfaces and for well 
corrosion, biofouling and iron oxidation. This task will assess the knowledge gained in 
Phase 3, conduct an updated literature review, and scope out a plan to inspect the 
test slant well/pump to evaluate rehabilitation techniques for future application to 
full scale slant wells. 
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1.3 Application Considerations and Concepts 

 
Develop a conceptual level assessment to resolve potential barriers to full-scale slant 
well siting, construction and O&M on beaches. This work will evaluate full-scale, fully 
buried slant well layout concepts, including angle, screen length, depth of completion, 
types of pumps, wellhead considerations, and other appurtenant facilities. This 
conceptual plan will be utilized to enable discussions with State Parks, land use and 
regulatory agencies for determining permitting requirements and issues such that an 
acceptable approach can be developed. This will be necessary before moving a project 
forward to preliminary design, CEQA and permitting steps which will provide guidance 
for use in siting at other locations. 

 
TASK 2.0 – Geologic, Seismic and Ocean Risk Analysis for Siting Slant Beach Wells 

 
The purpose of this task is to prepare a preliminary geotechnical study for slant well siting, 
placement and protective measures for subsurface slant wells, wellheads and pipelines that can 
be constructed on beaches. This work is necessary for feasibility assessments, facility plans and 
subsequent environmental documentation, permit application support, and design guidance for 
this and other projects. The task will include evaluation of design protection measures that may 
be implemented to protect the project facilities against potential geologic hazards such as 
earthquake induced liquefaction or ground failure, tsunami run up and scour, flood scour, sea 
level rise and beach retreat. The findings will be presented in a technical report. 

 
TASK 3.0 – Prediction of Coastal / Ocean Groundwater Flow and Water Quality 

 
The completed Phase 3 project included development of a coarse grid regional surface and 
groundwater flow model for the San Juan Basin. This model was used to estimate the basin 
yield using the 1947-2010 hydrology and a general assessment of the ocean desalination 
project drawdown effects. The existing regional model is limited and is not capable of 
adequately assessing multiple layered coupled coastal/ocean systems nor is it able to 
accurately predict slant well pumped water quality over time, injection water flow/water 
quality/reactants, and seawater intrusion. This work is necessary to understand the 
groundwater basin and seasonal coastal lagoon drawdown effects, issues which may be 
encountered in other locations. These methods would then be applied by 
development/calibration of a fine grid multiple layered aquifer model to address the main 
issues of precision: basin/coastal drawdowns, seawater intrusion, and pumped water quality 
with and without mitigation measures. This level of detail is necessary if barriers to the use 
of slant beach wells are to be overcome and is precedent to project development. 

 
3.1 State-of-the-Art Groundwater Models and Selection of Preferred 

Models / Modules 
 

Groundwater flow and water quality models will be evaluated and assessed for 
application. At this time, the apparent preferred modeling software likely to be used in 
this process includes the latest versions of USGS developed and support modeling 
software: (1) MODFLOW – basic flow model (2) MT3DMS – solute transport module, and 
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(3) SEAWAT – variable density module. Calibration of the selected and developed 
model will be made against 21 months of Phase 3 extended pumping test data, post-test 
groundwater level recovery data, and use of the innovative natural isotope model 
developed in Phase 3. 

 
3.2 Development and Calibration for Geochemical Modules 

 
This task will develop a geochemical module tool for the precision model developed in 
subtask 3.1. This effort will help to improve the ability to predict water quality from 
both offshore and onshore aquifers incorporating the geochemical interactions of 
minerals and flow, including salinity, anoxia state, iron/manganese and other 
constituents. Several models are available for application and this task will review 
models most suited for this application. A candidate is the USGS “PHREEQC” model. 
Development of the geochemical module will enable an understanding of process 
treatment issues unique to the use of slant well intakes which include understanding the 
pump out of old marine groundwater and its water quality for determination of use or 
disposal and treatment requirements and understanding change in water quality over 
time as the aquifer is fully recharged with ocean water. It will also help to assess the 
degree and type of any pretreatment that may be required. The model elements and 
approach will be applicable to other locations considering slant wells. The modeling 
analysis for testing the merits of this technique will be undertaken in subtask 4.2. 

 
3.3 Development and Calibration of Preferred Model/Modules to Assess Feasibility 

 
This task will develop and calibrate a fine grid coastal/ocean groundwater flow and 
water quality model building on the existing coarse grid regional model and earlier 
variable density model. This task will develop and calibrate the preferred 
model/modules selected in subtask 3.1 for groundwater flow and water quality and for 
geochemistry reactions for the module from subtask 3.2. When calibrated, the advanced 
precision coastal model would be incorporated into an existing regional watershed 
surface water/groundwater basin model for evaluation of basin supply/recharge terms 
and regional effects from coastal slant wells and mitigation injection wells and other 
measures. This same or similar configuration is expected at other coastal groundwater 
locations and this modeling approach is transferable to those locations. 

 
3.4 California Department of Fish & Wildlife (CDFW) Streambed Alteration 

Agreements and Assessment for Compliance 
 

Evaluate the CDFW Streambed Alteration Agreements and types of conditions that 
could be imposed on projects using slant wells. The results of this task can be used to 
inform the analysis of other coastal beach well settings. This work draws from 
Subtask 4.3. 
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TASK 4.0 – Modeling Slant Well Feedwater Supply, Impacts and Mitigation Approaches 
 
In order to overcome the barriers to the use of slant wells, this task will utilize the advanced 
modeling techniques and fine grid coastal/ocean groundwater flow and water quality model 
developed in Task 3 to enable a more precise analysis for a range of slant well siting, production 
capacities and yields, drawdowns, time variable water quality, seawater intrusion control, and 
mitigation approaches and effectiveness. The focus will be twofold: (1) to quantify with 
sufficient precision impacts on a groundwater basin and coastal seasonal lagoon due to slant 
beach well extraction and (2) to evaluate mitigation measures such as coastal injection wells. 
The objective of this task is to demonstrate the use of advanced modeling methods necessary 
to resolve impacts. 

 
4.1 Assessment of Sustainable Yield for Baseline Comparison 

 
Integrate the subtask 3.3 model into the existing regional model to estimate 
groundwater basin pumping with no ocean water intrusion to establish a 
"sustainable yield" baseline to compare with other alternatives. This analysis would 
be run to evaluate well and basin yields, storage volumes, water levels with the 
seawater intrusion control point near the ocean. This approach has applicability in 
other coastal groundwater basins. 

 
4.2 Prediction of Transition and Steady State Pumped Water Quality 

 
This task will utilize the advanced model developed in Task 3 to estimate pumped water 
quality vs. time for anoxia state, iron/manganese, salinity, pH, temperature and other 
constituents. This work will also allow evaluation of pumped water quality by capacity, 
screen length, and depth of completion. Projections of conservative and non-
conservative constituents will be made including time to reach steady state, estimate of 
time to pump out old marine groundwater, determination of rate of connectivity to the 
ocean, evaluation of effects of organic carbon content in ocean floor sediments on 
microbial uptake of dissolved oxygen and pumped water state, and prediction of water 
quality over the transition to steady state with ocean water recharge. Task results will 
also be used to predict water quality for use in establishing pretreatment requirements. 

 
4.3 Analysis of Pumping Impacts 

 
This task would test a range of slant well production rates to evaluate drawdowns on 
upstream groundwater users, and would compare the effects with and without slant 
wells.  Source waters to the slant wells include ocean, old marine groundwater, deep 
aquifer, inland groundwater, and streamflow. This task would also evaluate rising 
groundwater, surface water and ocean flows into and out of the seasonal lagoon with a 
comparison of these results with existing CDFW Streambed Alteration Agreement 
groundwater levels within the shallow aquifer. 
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4.4 Assessment of Institutional and Physical Mitigation Approaches 
 

Examine mitigation options, including reassignment of supply sources and physical 
mitigation. The Phase 3 work indicated for a 30 mgd slant well feedwater supply the 
draw on the groundwater basin would average about 1.5 mgd; this would be the 
amount for reassignment from desalination plant yield and is roughly the rate for 
injection mitigation. The model will determine injection rates and their effectiveness. 
Injection wells would be evaluated for spacing, type and capacity. Seawater  
intrusion control will be evaluated over a range of hydrologies and groundwater 
basin operations. The regulatory requirements for the use of recycled water as a 
source of injection water is being evaluated by the SJBA in their complementary 
Foundational Action project.  
 
This task would review means to reduce institutional barriers for each approach, 
including an evaluation of a smaller sized initial project.  In addition, the smaller 
sized initial project will be conceptualized and the value of a phased approach to 
both validate Phase 3 data and to provide design data for the larger project will be 
evaluated.   

 
TASK 5.0 – Coastal Environmental Drawdown Issues and Regulatory Strategies 

 
If the fine grid modeling analysis indicates that the slant wellfield will result in 
significant lowering of water levels in the seasonal coastal lagoon of San Juan Creek 
(the mouth is slowly closed off from sand accretion during non-stormflow periods), 
this task will evaluate the environmental/regulatory issues and mitigation approaches.  
This task would review drawdown issues under intermittent streamflows and seasonal 
lagoons. This task would evaluate issues such as connectivity of the underlying 
formation and groundwater support to the overlying surface waters. This task will also 
review how to develop appropriate regulatory terms and conditions, including 
monitoring and assessment, for any required streambed alteration agreements or 
other agency permits related to these potential issues. This will be evaluated together 
with mitigation strategies for placement of injection barriers that would both reduce 
impacts on upstream groundwater users and drawdown impacts on seasonal coastal 
lagoons. Evaluate how the use of the advanced modeling techniques can help to 
demonstrate pre and post project conditions and mitigation, if necessary. This 
approach will be foundational for evaluation and application to other areas along the 
coast. 

 
TASK 6.0 – Project Management 

 
6.1 Project Management 

 
Project management work includes execution of work, grant administration, staffing 
project committees, convening scientific/technical panels, technical reviews, meetings, 

 
 

public outreach and input, permitting and regulatory support, Cal Desal support, 
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preparing invoices and billing, preparing submittals, and Board and Participants 
reporting. 

 
6.2 Convene Science Review Panel 

 
The National Water Research Institute (NWRI) will manage a Scientific Review Panel 
(“Panel”) to address scientific and technical questions. The goal is to ensure the best 
science/technology are used in the study work and that water management decisions 
are made to protect public health and the environment. The scope of the Panel review 
may involve regulatory assessment. NWRI will convene the Panel to advise the study 
team at specific intervals. Specifically, the Panel will review both the study design 
(including study protocol, methodology, analytical tools, calibration, and QA/QC 
procedures) and the study report. The panel review will be conducted through in-person 
meetings supplemented by email and conference calls. The product of this review will 
be written reports. 

 
6.3   Progress Reports 
 
Provide quarterly progress reports and invoices documenting activities scheduled, 
description of work completed, % completed, project issues, as described in this 
Agreement. 

 

6.4   Final Report 
 
Provide a detailed written final report of project outcomes, lessons learned, cost-
effectiveness, feasibility of regional implementation, recommendations for future 
actions, next steps, as described in this Agreement. 
 

 

6.5   Long-Term Reporting 
 
Prepare a post-project update report to Metropolitan one year following the acceptance 
of the Final Report, as described in this Agreement. 
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5.0 Deliverables 

Task/Subtask Deliverables Submittal 
Due Date 

1. Advancement of Slant Well Technology
1.1 Slant Well Technology Assessment • Technical Memorandum on how to 

advance slant well technology, 
including an updated literature review 
and scope to evaluate rehabilitation 
techniques 

• Conceptual plan of a full-scale slant 
well 

 
10/15/2014 

1.2 Achieving Long-Term Performance
1.3 Application Considerations and Concepts

2. Geologic, Seismic and Ocean Risk analysis for Sitting Slant Beach Wells
 Preliminary geotechnical study • Technical Memorandum including a 

geotechnical study for siting, 
placement, and protective measures 
for construction on beaches 

 
10/15/2014 

3. Prediction of Coastal / Ocean Groundwater Flow and Water Quality
3.1 State-of-the-Art Groundwater Models and 

Selection of Preferred Models/Modules 
• Technical Memorandum describing 

model selection, development, and 
calibration, and CDFW compliance 

• Calibrated fine grid coastal/ocean 
groundwater flow and water quality 
precision model, including a 
geochemical module tool 

 
 
 
4/15/2015 

3.2 Development and Calibration for 
Geochemical Modules 

3.3 Development and Calibration of Preferred 
Model/Modules to Assess Feasibility 

3.4 California Department of Fish & Wildlife 
(CDFW) Streambed Alteration Agreements 
and Assessment for Compliance 

4. Modeling Slant Well Feedwater Supply, Impacts and Mitigation Approaches
4.1 Assessment of Sustainable Yield for 

Baseline Comparison  
• Technical Memorandum, quantifying 

sustainable yield, water quality vs 
time, slant well extraction impacts and 
evaluating mitigation measures  

 
 
1/15/2016 

4.2 Prediction of Transition and Steady State 
Pumped Water Quality 

4.3 Analysis of Pumping Impacts 
4.4 Assessment of Institutional and Physical 

Mitigation Approaches 
5. Coastal Environmental Drawdown Issues and Regulatory Strategies

 Coastal Environmental Drawdown Issues 
and Regulatory Strategies 

• Technical Memorandum, describing 
drawdown issues and development of 
appropriate regulatory terms and 
conditions, and evaluation of 
mitigation strategies 

 
1/15/2016 

6. Coastal Environmental Drawdown Issues and Regulatory Strategies
6.1 Project Management • Reports given to Agency Board and 

project Participants/Stakeholders 
Quarterly 
(see pg 14) 

6.2 Convene Science Review Panel • Reports on the review panel activity 
and results, including panel bios 

As needed

6.3 Progress Reports Quarterly Progress Reports Quarterly 
(see pg 14) 

6.4 Final Report Final Report to Metropolitan 2/1/2016
6.5 Long-Term Reporting Post-Project Update Report 4/15/2017
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6.0 Cost Estimate 
 

Task No. Task Total 
Project Cost 

Maximum Cost to 
Metropolitan 

 
Task 1 

 
Advancement of Slant Well Technology $45.000 

 
$21,467 

 
Task 2 Geologic, Seismic and Ocean Risk Analysis for 

Siting Slant Beach Wells $77,200 
 

$36,829 

Task 3 Prediction of Coastal / Ocean Groundwater Flow 
and Water Quality $128,440 $61,273 

Task 4 Modeling Slant Well Feedwater Supply, Impacts 
and Mitigation Approaches $114,000 $54,384 

Task 5 Coastal Environmental Drawdown Issues and 
Regulatory Strategies $7,200 $3,435 

Task 6 Project Management $47,400 $22,612 

Grand Total $419,240 $200,000 
Note: MET share = $200,000/$419,240 = 0.47705.  Additional local, non-match work at $80,760 not shown.
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7.0 Schedule 

The following illustrates the expected quarterly progress schedule per task. The costs shown represent estimated costs to Metropolitan. 
 

Overcoming Barriers to Slant Well Seawater Desalination – 
Siting, Groundwater, Water Quality and Treatment

  Start- 
Dec

Jan- 
Mar

Apr- 
Jun 

Jul- 
Sep

Oct- 
Dec

Jan- 
Mar

Apr- 
Jun

Jul- 
Sep

Oct- 
Dec

Jan- 
Mar

2013 2014 2015 2016 
Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 

Task Task Name           

1 Advancement of Slant Well Technology 
 

$21,467 
      

2 Geologic, Seismic and Ocean Risk Analysis for Siting Slant 
Beach Wells 

 
$36,829 

      

3 Prediction of Coastal / Ocean Groundwater Flow and Water 
Quality 

 
$61,273 

    

4 Modeling Slant Well Feedwater Supply, Impacts and 
Mitigation Approaches 

    
$54,384 

 

5 Coastal Environmental Drawdown Issues and Regulatory 
Strategies 

      
$3,435 

 

6 Project Management 
 

$22,612 

 
Note:   A minimum 25% of eligible reimbursable costs will be withheld per invoice until a final report (due 2/1/2016) is accepted by 

Metropolitan. 

Post-project reporting to Metropolitan is not shown on this schedule, but should be submitted upon request by Metropolitan one 
year following Metropolitan’s acceptance of the Final Report. 
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Reporting Schedule 
• Progress Report 2013 Q4 (Start – December 2013).................................. January 15, 2014 
• Progress Report 2014 Q1 (January 2014 – March 2014)............................... April 15, 2014 
• Progress Report 2014 Q2 (April 2014 – June 2014) .........................................July 15, 2014 
• Progress Report 2014 Q3 (July 2014 – September 2014) .........................October 15, 2014 
• Progress Report 2014 Q4 (October 2014 – December 2014)................... January 15, 2015 
• Progress Report 2015 Q1 (January 2015 – March 2015).............................. April 15, 2015 
• Progress Report 2015 Q2 (April 2015 – June 2015) .........................................July 15, 2015 
• Progress Report 2015 Q3 (July 2015 – September 2015) .........................October 15, 2015 
• Progress Report 2015 Q4 (October 2015 – December 2015)................... January 15, 2016 
• Final Report............................................................................................... February 1, 2016 
• Progress Report 2016 Q1 (January 2016 – March 2016)............................... April 15, 2016 
• Post-Project Update Report........................................................................... April 15, 2017 
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BILL TO 
Exhibit B – Sample Invoice 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
Accounts Payable Section 
P.O. Box 54153 
Los Angeles, CA 90054-0153 

INV OICE 

AGENCY NAME INVOICE DATE INVOICE PERIOD 
   

 

ADDRESS PROJECT NAME 
 
 
 
 

CO NTACT CONTACT PHONE AGREEMENT NUMBER 
   

 

M AXIMUM AWARD AM OUNT AM OUNT PREVIOUSLY INVOICED AWARD AM OUNT REM AINING 

   

ITEMIZED EXPENSES 
 

TASK DETAILED DESCRIPTION 
(e.g., consultant costs an d hours, m a teri als a n d su pp lies, l a b c osts, et c.) 

 
CO ST 

   

   

   

   

   

TOTAL CO STS  
 
 

TOTAL ELIGIBLE REIMBURSABLE C OSTS (UP TO 50% OF TOTAL C OSTS)  

WITHHOLDING (25%)  

TOTAL REIMBURSABLE REQUEST (UP TO 37.5% OF TOTAL COSTS)  
 

BY SIGNING THIS INVOICE, AGENCY CERTIFIES THAT WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN IS AN ACCURATE AND CO RRECT RECO RD OF SERVICES 
PERFORMED FOR METROPOLITAN UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND THIS WORK HAS NOT BEEN BILLED ON ANY OTHER CLIENT OR PROJECT 
PARTNER INVOICES. 

PROJECT M ANAGER 
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AGREEMENT 
NUMBER 

 

BILL TO 
 
 

M etro p olit a n Wa t er Distric t of Southern C alifornia 
Acc ounts Payab le Se c tion 
P.O. Box 54153 
Los An g eles, CA 90054-0153 

 
BUDGET 

PROJECT NAME INVOICE 
PERIOD 

 
 
 
 

A B C D E F G H 
 

 
TASK 

CUMULATIVE COSTS 
THROUGH PREVIOUS 

QUARTER 

TOTAL COSTS 
FOR  CURRENT 

QUARTER 

CURRENT QUARTER’S 
ELIGIBLE REIMBURSABLE 

COSTS (UP TO 50%) 

CUMULATIVE  ELIGIBLE 
REIMBURSABLE COSTS 

TO DATE 

TOTAL AWARD 
AM OUNT 

REM AINING 
AWARD 

BALANCE 

PERCENT 
COMPLETE 

        

        

        

        

TOTAL        
 
 

Description of the Example Budget Table Columns: 

A. Task number and name 
B. Cumulative total Project costs through the previous quarter (does not include current quarter’s costs) 
C. Total Project costs for the current quarter 
D. Eligible reimbursable costs for the current quarter (up to 50% of the total Project cost of the task for the current quarter). Example: D  =  C  x  0.50 
E. Cumulative eligible reimbursable costs to date (includes the current quarter’s reimbursable costs). Do not subtract out Metropolitan withholding. 
F. Total award amount per task as established in Exhibit A (Scope of Work, Costs, and Schedule) of the Agreement 
G. Remaining award balance. G  =  F  -  E 
H. Percent complete. H  =  E  ÷  F 
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Exhibit C: Quarterly Progress Report Format 
 

Agency shall include, at minimum, the following items in the Quarterly Progress Reports. 
 

1. Cover Letter 

Provide a brief description of the submittal, including the amount invoiced in the respective 
invoice period, a list of items being submitted, and contact information. 

The letter must be signed and include the following language: 

“I am informed and believe that the information contained in this report is true and that the 
supporting data is accurate and complete.” 

 
2. Quarterly Progress Report 

2.1 Report Status 
a) Describe work performed during the quarter, by task. 
b) Describe major accomplishments, such as: 

i. Tasks achieved 
ii. Milestones met 

iii. Meetings held or attended 
iv. Press release, etc. 

c) Where applicable, describe how the activities carried out differed from the plans 
outlined in the Project Scope of Work. Identify any problems encountered in the 
performance of the work under this Agreement, and how these matters were 
addressed. 

d) If the quarter’s objectives were not met, explain why and how these goals will be 
approached for the next reporting period. 

2.2 Cost Information 
a) Identify costs incurred during the quarter by Agency and each partnering/supporting 

entity working on the Project. 
b) Discuss how the actual budget is progressing in comparison to the latest Project 

budget. Justify any differences that occurred, identifying budget impacts and/or 
problems encountered, and describe how these matters will be addressed for the next 
reporting period. 

c) Provide a revised budget, by task, if changed from the latest Project budget. 

2.3 Schedule Information 
a) Provide a Project schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress from the 

latest schedule. 
b) Discuss how the actual schedule is progressing in comparison to the latest Project 

schedule. Justify any differences that occurred, identifying schedule impacts and/or 
problems encountered, and describe how these matters will be addressed for the next 
reporting period. 

c) Provide a revised schedule, by task, if changed from the latest Project schedule. 
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Exhibit D: Final Report Format 
 
Agency shall include, at minimum, the following items in the Final Report. 

 
1. Cover Letter 

Provide a brief description of the submittal, including the total amount of funds disbursed, a list of 
items being submitted, and contact information. 

The letter must be signed and include the following language: 

“I am informed and believe that the information contained in this report is true and that the 
supporting data is accurate and complete.” 

 
2. Final Report 

2.1 Executive Summary 
a) Briefly summarize the content of the main report. 

2.2 Introduction 
a) Provide an overview of the work performed and accomplishments achieved throughout 

the duration of the Project. 
b) Briefly describe the findings of the study. 
c) Describe the role/involvement of each partnering/supporting entity and their relationship to 

the Project. 

2.3 Cost Summary 
a) Include a summary of the costs incurred and of funds disbursed throughout the duration of 

the Project. 
b) Provide a comparison between the planned budget in the Agreement and the actual budget. 

Justify any differences that occurred, identifying budget impacts and/or problems 
encountered, and how these matters were addressed. 

2.3 Schedule Summary 
a) Include a summary of all tasks accomplished throughout the duration of the Project. 
b) Provide a comparison between the planned schedule in the Agreement and the actual 

schedule. Justify any differences that occurred, identifying schedule impacts and/or problems 
encountered, and how these matters were addressed. 

2.4 Project Results and Analysis 
a) Describe and provide an analysis of the Project results and findings in detail. 
b) Were the Project goals and objectives as proposed achieved? Explain. 
c) Discuss any major problems that occurred in meeting the Project goals and objectives, 

including how, and if, they were resolved. 
d) Explain how the findings of the Project can be applied to other areas of the region. 

What types of obstacles, if any, would be anticipated before implementation/application can 
occur, and how could these matters be addressed? 

2.5 Conclusion 
a) Describe lessons learned. 
b) Describe the next steps of the Project (e.g., applicability of the results, topics that may require 

additional research, new programs that should be developed, policy amendments, etc.). 
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Exhibit E: Post-Project Update Report Format 
 
Agency shall include, at minimum, the following items in the Post-Project Update Report. 

 
1. Accomplishments and Applicability 

a) What has been accomplished since the submittal of the Final Report? 
How have the Project findings/results of the Final Report been applied/implemented 
(e.g., regional application of results, pilot study results used for full-scale 
implementation, additional research performed, impacts on regulations/legislation, 
technical advances, etc.)? 

b) Discuss new information obtained during this reporting period, and how this 
knowledge will further future efforts. 

c) If applicable, provide additional data obtained since the submittal of the Final Report 
(e.g., pilot project water quality data, etc.). 

 
2. Next Steps 

a) Describe specific plans, if any, for continuing work on this Project or related projects 
(e.g., what questions will be investigated, what programs will be developed, etc.). 
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DOHENY OCEAN DESALINATION  
FOUNDATIONAL ACTIONS FUNDING PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 
 

This Foundational Actions Funding Program Agreement for the Doheny Ocean 
Desalination Project (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the ___ of January 2014  by and 
between the Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC), South Coast Water District 
(“SCWD”), and Laguna Beach County Water District (“LBCWD”).  MWDOC, SCWD, and 
LBCWD may be collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually as a “Party.”  SCWD and 
LBCWD may also be referred to as the “Participating Agencies.” 
 
Section 1.  Recitals. 
 
A. On behalf of the Participating Agencies, MWDOC recently submitted a proposal to the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (“Metropolitan”), through Metropolitan’s 
Foundational Actions Funding  Program (“FAF Program”) for funding of a project entitled 
“Overcoming Barriers to Slant Well Seawater Desalination - Siting, Groundwater, Water Quality 
and Treatment” for the Doheny Desal Project (the “Study”).   

 
B. MWDOC is a public agency member of Metropolitan and applied for the FAF Program 
funding for the Study on behalf of SCWD and LBCWD, as well as additional agencies that have 
not yet decided whether to participate in the Study.   
 
C. The objective of the Study is to further the understanding and utilization of slant well 
intakes for the development of an ocean desalination project.  Specifically, the Study is focused 
on overcoming identified barriers to the use of slant wells for ocean water intake purposes where 
the ocean connects to the San Juan Groundwater Basin with similar issues expected in other 
locations and understanding long-term pumped water quality, slant well performance, and 
institutional and physical mitigation measures such as injection wells to minimize drawdown 
impacts.   
 
D. In November 2013, Metropolitan notified MWDOC that the Metropolitan Board of 
Directors authorized funding through its FAF Program for the Study for an amount not to exceed 
$200,000.  
 
E. MWDOC plans to enter into an agreement with Metropolitan regarding the FAF Program 
for the Study concurrent with the execution of this Agreement to initiate work prior to January 31, 
2014.  A copy of the Metropolitan Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Metropolitan 
Agreement”). 
 
F. SCWD and LBCWD will provide funds in the amount of $200,000 to match the 
Metropolitan funds and will provide such additional funding to complete the Study and, through 
this Agreement, intend to administer the Study and assume all of the obligations, responsibilities, 
and liabilities imposed on MWDOC in the Metropolitan Agreement. 
 
I. This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions by which the Parties will proceed 
with the Study, including the roles, responsibilities, and financial obligations of each Party. 
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 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, 
the Parties agree as follows:  
 
Section 2.  Study Responsibilities  
 
A. SCWD and LBCWD shall collectively carry out the Study as described in the Scope of 
Work, Cost and Schedule set forth in the attached Exhibit BA to the Metropolitan Agreement, 
which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A..   
 
B.  In addition, as part of the Study, SCWD and LBCWD shall collectively fund, carry out, 
and complete the additional tasks that are included in the study task summary chart, which is 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit CB.  The additional tasks in Exhibit BC are above and 
beyond the requirements in Exhibit BA to the Metropolitan Agreement and shall be funded by 
the Participating Agencies, not by MWDOC.  With respect to the funding, the Scope of Work in 
Exhibit BA to the Metropolitan Agreement is estimated at $419,240 and Metropolitan will pay 
up to $200,000.  The study task summary in Exhibit BC is for a total amount of work estimated 
at $500,000.  For the avoidance of doubt, SCWD and LBCWD will be responsible for up to 
$300,000 in funding to complete all of the activities in Exhibit CB. 
 
C. SCWD and LBCWD shall collectively provide the Study deliverables to MWDOC and 
Metropolitan according to the schedule set forth in Exhibit BA to the Metropolitan Agreement, 
which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3.  Agreement Term  
 
A. This Agreement shall be effective on the effective date of the Metropolitan Agreement 
with MWDOC and the term shall be through June 30, 2017, or when all of the Parties’ 
obligations under this Agreement and the Metropolitan Agreement have been fully satisfied, 
whichever occurs earlier. Extensions of time to complete all or portions of the Study, including 
any required deliverables, shall be requested in writing by LBCWD and SCWD and may be 
authorized by MWDOC only if Metropolitan agrees to a corresponding extension of the 
Metropolitan Agreement.  Any written authorization for an extension of time shall be attached to 
and incorporated into this Agreement. 
 
B. This Agreement may be terminated by either MWDOC or by the Participating Agencies 
with or without cause upon 30 days written notice to the other.  MWDOC’s only obligation in 
the event of termination will be payment of approved invoices in conformity with this 
Agreement and the Metropolitan Agreement up to and including the effective date of 
termination.  Notwithstanding the previous sentence, MWDOC shall have no obligation to pay 
any invoices to the Participating Agencies if they are not approved by Metropolitan.  In the event 
of termination, the Participating Parties are responsible for providing all information, reports, 
data and consultant and other documents available that were developed up to the point of 
Termination to MWDOC.   
 
C. Failure of the Participating Agencies to submit progress reports or the final report to 
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MWDOC within the timeframe established in Exhibit BA to the Metropolitan Agreement or any 
extension of time authorized in accordance with Section 3(A) of this Agreement will be a breach 
of this Agreement and may result in termination of the agreement. 
 
Section 4.  Responsibilities and Ownership 
 
A. The Participating Agencies shall be responsible for all necessary services and materials 
for the Study implementation including, but not limited to, the hiring of consultants and others to 
conduct the work, Study administration, data collection, and reporting and completion of the 
final report. 
 
B. The Participating Agencies shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws, 
ordinances and regulations and are solely responsible for any such obligations, including, 
without limitation, compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act.  
 
C. The Participating Agencies shall be responsible for the design, implementation, 
personnel, equipment, and supplies, and all capital and operating costs related to and incurred by 
the Study.  All materials and equipment necessary to implement the Study are the exclusive 
property of the Participating Agencies.  MWDOC shall have no ownership, right, title, security 
interest, or other interest in any Study facilities, materials, or equipment, nor any rights, duties, 
responsibilities for operation or maintenance thereof pursuant to this Agreement., except as 
otherwise provided in the “Wind Up Agreement for Phase 3,” which is attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit B. 
 
D. The following language must be included in all contracts entered into by the Participating 
Agencies with any subcontractors or consultants regarding completion of the Study: 
 

i. “(Consultant or Responsible Party) agrees at their sole cost and expense to 
protect, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Municipal Water District of 
Orange County and the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, and 
their respective Boards of Directors, officers, representatives, agents, and 
employees from and against any and all claims and liability of any kind 
(including, but not limited to, any claims or liability for injury or death to any 
person, damage to property, natural resources or to the environment, or water 
quality problems) that arise out of Consultant’s actions or relate to the approval, 
construction, operation, repair or ownership of the Study.  Such indemnity shall 
include all damages and losses related to any claim made, whether or not a court 
action is filed, and shall include attorney’s fees, administrative and overhead 
costs, engineering and consulting fees and all other costs related to or arising out 
of such claim or asserted liability”.    

 
ii. “(Consultant or Responsible Party) will maintain the types and levels of insurance 

in compliance with the requirements in the Doheny Ocean Desalination 
Foundational Actions Funding Program Agreement entered into between the 
Municipal Water District of Orange County and _______  (“Participating 
Agency”).” 
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iii. “All intellectual property developed pursuant to this Agreement is owned by 

MWDOC.  This intellectual property includes, but is not limited to, all inventions, 
patents, data, design, drawings, specifications, raw results, computer programs, 
final report, as well as any other presentations, reports, findings or related 
materials developed during the Study.  All results produced in the performance of 
the Agreement may be released to the public”. 

 
Section 5.  Indemnity 
 
A. The Participating Agencies agree at their sole cost and expense to protect, indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless MWDOC and Metropolitan, and their respective Boards of Directors, 
officers, representatives, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims and liability 
of any kind (including, but not limited to, any claims or liability for injury or death to any 
person, damage to property, natural resources or to the environment, or water quality problems) 
that arise out of the Participating Agencies’ actions or relate to their approval, construction, 
operation, repair or ownership of the Study.  Such indemnity shall include all damages and losses 
related to any claim made, whether or not a court action is filed, and shall include attorney’s fees, 
administrative and overhead costs, engineering and consulting fees and all other costs related to 
or arising out of such claim or asserted liability.    
 
Section 6.    Intellectual Property and Use of Materials 
 
A. All intellectual property developed pursuant to this Agreement is owned by MWDOC.  
This intellectual property includes, but is not limited to, all inventions, patents, data, design, 
drawings, specifications, raw results, computer programs, final report, as well as any other 
presentations, reports, findings or related materials developed during the Study.  All results 
produced in the performance of the Agreement may be released to the public. [This exact 
language is required by the MET Agreement to be in this Agreement.] 
 
B. MWDOC grants to the Participating Agencies a nonexclusive license, at no cost, to use the 
intellectual property developed in the course of the work performed under this Agreement by any 
of the Parties or any contractor and consultant working on the Study as described in Exhibit A.. 
 
C. The Participating Agencies shall notify MWDOC in writing of all intellectual property 
conceived or developed in the course of the work performed under this Agreement. 
 
D. When requested by MWDOC, or upon termination of this Agreement, the Participating 
Agencies shall furnish a copy of all documents and other tangible media containing intellectual 
property developed by the Participating Agencies during the course of this Agreement, including 
prototypes and computer programs.  
 
Section 7.  Payment 
 
A. MWDOC’s payment for the Study is not to exceed $200,000, or fifty (50) percent of the 
total cost expended per task as established in Exhibit BA to the Metropolitan Agreement, which 
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is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A, whichever is less.  Notwithstanding the previous 
sentence, MWDOC will not be responsible for any payments of any amount in connection with 
this Agreement unless such payments are first approved and reimbursed to MWDOC by 
Metropolitan.  AFor the avoidance of doubt, all payments required to be made by MWDOC to 
the Participating Agencies pursuant to this Agreement are contingent upon such payments being 
first approved by Metropolitan and reimbursed to MWDOC by Metropolitan.  The Participating 
Agencies are responsible for any and all costs in excess of the payments approved by 
Metropolitan.   
 
B. The Participating Agencies must submit quarterly progress reports and associated quarterly 
invoices to MWDOC as described in Section 8 below.  Twenty five (25) percent of eligible 
reimbursable costs shall be withheld per invoice until a final report is submitted to MWDOC and 
accepted by Metropolitan.  The Participating Agencies’ invoices shall include at a minimum the 
information requested in Exhibit B (the Sample Invoice)  to the Metropolitan Agreement, which is 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit DA. Invoices shall itemize allowable expenses and include 
receipts for which reimbursement is sought. Attached receipts should itemize each cost and 
provide descriptive information so that expenses are separately identified.  The final invoice, 
including any requests for release of retention, shall be clearly marked “FINAL INVOICE.” 
 
C. In-kind services are not eligible for reimbursement and shall not be included in any 
invoices to MWDOC.  In-kind services include, but are not limited to, work performed by staff 
of MWDOC and the Participating Agencies, and related expenses (e.g. travel, overhead, etc.). 
 
D. All invoices related to the Study must be submitted by the Participating Agencies to 
MWDOC by April 5, 2016, to be considered for payment under the provisions of this 
Agreement.  Invoices received after April 5, 2016 will not be paid unless MWDOC obtains from 
Metropolitan, an extension of time, in writing, to complete the work and submit MWDOC’s 
invoices to Metropolitan pursuant to the Metropolitan Agreement.    
 
E. Invoices to MWDOC will be paid by MWDOC to the Participating Agencies within 10 
days after MWDOC’s receipt of payment from Metropolitan for the invoice, and only in the 
amount approved and paid by Metropolitan to MWDOC. 
 
Section 8.  Reporting Requirements 
 
A. The Participating Agencies shall submit to MWDOC quarterly progress reports with the 
associated invoices by the 5th of January, April, July, and October for the preceding quarter.  
The progress reports shall include, at a minimum, the items listed in the Exhibit C (Progress 
Report Format, which is attached ) to the Metropolitan Agreement, which is attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit EA.  The Participating Agencies shall document all activities and 
expenditures in progress reports.  The submittal of these reports is a requirement for initial and 
continued disbursement of funds.     
 
B. The Participating Agencies shall prepare and submit to MWDOC, upon completion of the 
Study, a Final Report, which shall include, at a minimum, the items listed in the Exhibit D (Final 
Report Format)) to the Metropolitan Agreement, which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 
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FA.  The Final Report shall be provided in hard copy and digital format prior to final payment of 
funds retained by MWDOC. 
 
C. Upon request by MWDOC, the Participating Agencies shall prepare and submit to 
MWDOC a Post-Study Update Report one year following the acceptance of the Final Report.  
The Post-Study Update Report shall provide a summary of related post-funding Study activities 
and include, as a minimum, the items listed in Exhibit GE (Post-Study Update Report Format) to 
the Metropolitan Agreement, which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A.   
 
Section 9.  MWDOC Work. 
MWDOC shall perform certain services for the Participating Agencies as described in Exhibit B.  
The Participating Agencies shall be responsible for paying MWDOC for such services and any 
costs associated with such in an amount not to exceed  $_______.   The Participating Agencies 
may not use funds provided to the Participating Agencies by MWDOC pursuant to this 
Agreement to pay MWDOC for such services. 
 
Section 10.  Verification.   
The Participating Agencies shall be responsible for verifying completion of any consultant’s or 
subcontractor’s work in accordance with the Scope of Work as shown in Exhibit B. 
 
Section 11.  Representations.   
Each Party represents that it is represented by legal counsel, that it has reviewed this Agreement 
and agrees that the Agreement is legally enforceable. 
 
Section 12.  Insurance.   
The Participating Agencies shall comply with the insurance requirements imposed on “Agency” in 
the Metropolitan Agreement (“Insurance Requirements”) and as more particularly described below.   
 
A. Agency shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement a program of 
commercial insurance or documented self-insurance program to protect against claims for injuries 
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder by the Participating Agencies, their agents, representatives, or employees. 
 
B. The Participating Agencies shall sustain proof of insurance coverage in an updated ACORD 
form, attached as Exhibit GHF to the Metropolitan Agreement (Agency Proof of Insurance 
Coverage), and incorporated by reference, during the term of this Agreement.  Failure to provide the 
updated insurance ACORD form, or an equivalent form provided by the ACWA JPIA, annually to 
MWDOC may result in the withholding of the Participating Agencies’ invoice payment.   
 
C. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 
 1.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

i.  Insurance Services Office Commercial Liability coverage (occurrence Form 
CG00001). 
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ii. Insurance Service Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, 
Code 1, (any auto). 
 
iii. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance. 
 
iv. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to 
the Agency’s profession.  Architects’ and engineers’ coverage is to be endorsed to 
include contractual liability. 

 
D. Minimum Limits of Insurance 
 
 1.  The Participating Agencies shall maintain limits no less than: 
 

i.  General Liability:  General Liability: Including operations, products and 
completed operations as applicable, $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 
personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance 
or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to the project or location, or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 
 
ii. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage. 
 
iii. Workers’ Compensation: Shall be furnished in accordance with statutory 
requirements of the State of California and shall include Employer’s Liability 
coverage of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 
 
iv. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per claim, 
with a $2 million aggregate. 

 
E. Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by MWDOC. At the option of MWDOC, either: the insurer 
shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respect to MWDOC, its 
officers officials, employees, agents and volunteers; or the Participating Agencies shall provide a 
financial guarantee satisfactory to MWDOC guaranteeing payment of losses and related 
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 
  
F. Verification of Coverage: The Participating Agencies shall furnish MWDOC with original 
certificates and amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause. The 
endorsements and certificates are to be received and approved by MWDOC prior to the 
commencement of work. MWDOC reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements effecting coverage, and coverage binders 
required by these specifications at any time. 
 
G. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with California admitted insurers with 
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a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII.  A non-admitted carrier may be used with 
prior approval from MWDOC, with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A: X. An exception to 
these standards will be made for the State Compensation Insurance Fund when not specifically 
rated.  The Participating Agencies may participate in and provide evidence of pooled equivalent 
coverage through joint powers agency insurance authorities such as CSRMA or ACWA JPIA. 
 
H. General Liability and Automobile Liability Endorsements 
 

1.  The commercial general liability policy and automobile policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

 
i.  MWDOC and Metropolitan, their officers, officials, employees and agents are to 
be covered as insureds as respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Participating Agencies; or automobiles owned, 
leased, hired or borrowed by the Participating Agencies. 
 
ii. For any claims related to this Study, the Participating Agencies’ insurance 
coverage shall be primary insurance as respect to MWDOC and Metropolitan, and 
their officers, officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by MWDOC and Metropolitan, their officers, officials, employees or 
agents shall be excess of the Participating Agencies’ insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 
 
iii.  Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that 
coverage shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) says prior 
written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to 
MWDOC.   
 
iv. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence 
of the additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the 
additional insured would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the 
Civil Code. 

 
I. Other Endorsements and Insurance Provisions 
 

1.  All rights of subrogation under the property insurance policy (if any) have been waived 
against MWDOC and Metropolitan. 
 
2.  The workers’ compensation insurer, agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against 
MWDOC and Metropolitan for injuries to employees of the insured (Participating 
Agencies) resulting from work for MWDOC or Metropolitan or use of MWDOC or 
Metropolitan’s premises or facilities. 
 
3.  If General Liability , Pollution and/or any Asbestos Pollution Liability  and/or 
professional liability or Errors & Omissions coverages is are written on a claims-made 
form: 
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i.  The “Retro Date” must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract or 

the beginning of contract work. 
 
ii. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-

made policy form with a “Retro Date” prior to the contract effective date, the Participating 
Agencies must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years 
after completion of contract work. 

 
iii. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to MWDOC and 

Metropolitan for review. 
 

4.  Any consultants or subcontracts who contract with either of the Participating Agencies 
in connection with performing work on the Study must  maintain insurance in compliance 
with the requirements in this Agreement and must name MWDOC as an additional 
insured consistent with the requirements of Section 121 of this  Agreement.  Any 
professional engineering firms conducting studies under Exhibit B and C of this 
Agreement shall provide evidence of Professional Errors & Omissions coverage meeting 
coverage amounts of $1,000,000 per claim, with a $2 million aggregate. 

 
Section 13.  Miscellaneous 
 
A. This Agreement may be amended by written mutual agreement executed by the Parties.  
Any alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement will not be valid unless made in writing 
and signed by all of the Parties.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties. 
 
B. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties and their 
respective successors.  This Agreement is not assignable by any Party in whole or in part. 
 
C. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, in 
whole or in part, such provision shall be modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it 
legal, valid, and enforceable, and the legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall 
not be affected thereby. 
 
D. This Agreement shall be deemed a contract under the laws of the State of California, and 
for all purposes will be interested in accordance with such laws.  The Parties hereby agree to 
consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the state of California, and that the venue of 
any action brought hereunder will be in Los Angeles County, California.  
 
E. Notice.   Any notice, invoice, report, or payment made pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
sent to the Parties at their respective addresses shown below, including any notice that must be 
sent to Metropolitan. 
 
If to MWDOC: Municipal Water District of Orange County 
   18700 Ward St. 
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   P.O. Box 20895 
   Fountain Valley, CA 92728 
   Attn:  General Manager 
   Email: rhunter@mwdoc.com 
 
If to SCWD:  South Coast Water District 
   31592 West Street 
   Laguna Beach, CA 92651 
   Attn: General Manager 
   Email: abrunhart@scwd.org 
 
If to LBCWD:  Laguna Beach County Water District 
   306 Third Street 
   P.O. Box 987 
   Laguna Beach, CA 92652 
   Attn: General Manager 
   Email: rhinchey@lbcwd.org 
 
F. Counterparts.  This Agreement and any amendment hereto may be executed in two or 
more counterparts, and by each Party on a separate counterpart, each of which, when executed 
and delivered, shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument, with 
the same force and effect as through all signatures appeared on a single document. 
 
G. Signatures.  The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they 
have the legal capacity and authority to do so on behalf of their respective agencies. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date below. 
 
 
Date ______________  

 

By_________________________________ 
_______________________ 
Andrew Brunhart 
General Manager 
SCWD 

Date _________________ 

 

By ___________________________             
Robert Hunter 
General Manager 
MWDOC 

                        
  
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
Date ________________________  
 
By: _________________________ 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
Date ________________________  
 
By: _________________________ 
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      Betty Burnett  
 General Counsel 

 

      Russell G. Behrens  
 General Counsel 

 
 
Date _________________ 

 

By ___________________________             
Renae M. Hinchey 
General Manager 
LBCWD 
                       
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
Date ________________________  
 
By: _________________________ 

      General Counsel 
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Task Budget

Average 
Hrly 
Rate

Est. 
Hrs

Est. 
Cost

Average 
Hrly 
Rate

Est. 
Hrs Est. Cost

Average 
Hrly 
Rate

Est. 
Hrs Est. Cost

Average 
Hrly 
Rate

Est. 
Hrs Est. Cost

Average 
Hrly 
Rate

Est. 
Hrs Est. Cost

1.0 Advancement of Slant Well Technology   $50,760   $32,400 $12,600 $5,760
1.1 Slant Well Technology Assessment $11,400 $180 40 $7,200 $175 24 $4,200 $120 16 $1,920
1.2 Achieving Long-Term Performance  $15,800 $180 80 $14,400 $175 8 $1,400 $120 16 $1,920
1.3 Application Considerations and Concepts  $17,800 $180 60 $10,800 $175 40 $7,000 $120 16 $1,920

2.0 Geologic, Seismic and Ocean Risk Analysis for Siting Slant Beach Wells $80,200 $180 40 $7,200 $140 500 $70,000 $120 25 $3,000
3.0 Prediction of Coastal/Ocean Groundwater (GW) Flow and Water Quality $138,040  $128,440 $0 $9,600

3.1 State-of-the-Art GW Models and Selection of Preferred Model/Modules $4,320 $180 24 $4,320
3.2 Development and Calibration for Geochemical Modules $29,800 $200 149 $29,800
3.3 Development and Calibration for Preferred Model/Modules to Assess Feasibility $90,000 $180 500 $90,000
3.4 CDFW Streambed Alteration Agreements & Assess Compliance $4,320 $180 24 $4,320 $120 80 $9,600

4.0 Modeling Slant Well Feedwater Supply, Impacts and Mitigation Approaches $114,000  $72,000 $42,000
4.1 Assessment of Sustainable Yield for Baseline Comparison $14,400 $180 80 $14,400
4.2 Prediction of Transition and Steady State Pumped Water Quality $14,400 $180 80 $14,400
4.3 Analysis of Pumping Impacts $14,400 $180 80 $14,400
4.4 Assessment of Institutional and Physical Mitigation Approaches $70,800 $180 160 $28,800 $175 240 $42,000

5.0 Coastal Environmental Drawdown Issues and Regulatory Strategies $26,400 $180 40 $7,200 $120 160 $19,200
6.0 Project Management, PM Support, Science Panel and Reports $90,600   $4,800 $4,200 $38,400 $43,200 $0

6.1 Project Management (PM) and PM Support (Planning, Technical and Regulatory) $0 $120 160 $19,200
6.2 Convene Science Advisory Committee (4 Meetings) $47,400 $200 24 $4,800 $175 24 $4,200 $120 320 $38,400
6.3 Annual Post Grant Activities Reporting (for 5 years) $0 $120 120 $14,400
6.4 Quarterly Progress and Interim Study/Documents Reporting & Final Report $0 $120 80 $9,600

Totals $500,000 $252,040 $128,800 $38,400 $43,200 $37,560
Estimated Direct Costs (included in hourly rates above)  $2,500  $500 $1,500 $500
Notes: 1. Geoscience labor hours/costs includes subcontractor Dr. Matt Charrette (WHOI) at $30,000 for Subtask 3.2 Geochemical Module

2. Carollo Engineers labor hours/cost includes subcontractors Ninyo & Moore at $70,000 for Task 2.0 and SPI at $10,000 for Subtask 4.4
3. All labor hours are estimates at this time and require final negotiation.

MWDOC

Exhibit B: Study Budget Task Summary

Geoscience (1) Carollo (2) NWRI SCWD 
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   MWD 
   Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

 
FOUNDATIONAL ACTIONS FUNDING PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

Agreement No. 139835 
 

Agreement No. 139835 Page 1 of 6 DRAFT 2013 FAF PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made and entered into on____________, 2013, between  
The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) and  
The Municipal Water District of Orange County (Agency).   
Metropolitan and Agency may be collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually as “Party.” 

Recitals 

A. Metropolitan, through its Foundational Actions Funding Program (FAF Program), provides funding to persons or entities for 
technical studies or pilot projects that reduce barriers to future production of recycled water, stormwater, seawater 
desalination, and groundwater resources.  This Program was established per authorization detailed in Board Letter No.8-4  
in April 2013. 

B. Agency was selected through a Request for Proposal (RFP).  Metropolitan and Agency agree to enter into an agreement for  
the San Juan Basin Groundwater and Desalination Optimization Program (Project). 

C. This Agreement provides the terms for Agency’s participation in the FAF Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, the Parties do agree as follows: 

Section 1:  Project Description 

1.1 Agency shall carry out the Project as described in Exhibit A (Scope of Work, Cost, and Schedule), which is hereby incorporated 
into this Agreement. 

1.2 Agency shall provide the Project deliverables according to the schedule as set forth in Exhibit A. 

Section 2:  Agreement Term 

2.1 This Agreement shall be effective on __________________, 2013 and the term shall be through June 30, 2017, or when all of 
the Parties’ obligations under this Funding Agreement have been fully satisfied, whichever occurs earlier.  Extensions of time to 
complete all or portions of the Project, including any required deliverables, shall be requested in writing by Agency and may be 
authorized at the sole discretion of Metropolitan in writing by Metropolitan.  Any written authorization for an extension of time 
shall be attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. 

2.2 This Agreement may be terminated by either Party with or without cause upon 30 days written notice to the other Party.  
Metropolitan’s only obligation in the event of termination will be payment of approved invoices in conformity with this 
Agreement up to and including the effective date of termination.   

2.3 Failure of an Agency to submit progress reports or the final report within the timeframe established in Exhibit A or any 
extension of time authorized in accordance with Section 2.1 above will be a breach of this Agreement.  

2.4 This Agreement may be terminated immediately by Metropolitan upon written notice to the Agency if work on the Project has 
not started by January 31, 2014. 

Section 3:  Agreement Administrators 

3.1 Ms. Stacie Takeguchi is appointed Agreement Administrator for Metropolitan for the purpose of administering this Agreement.  
The Agreement Administrator appointed by Agency for the purpose of administering this Agreement is ___________________. 

3.2 The designated Agreement Administrator may be changed by providing written notice to the other Party.  Any communication 
required to administer this Agreement shall be in writing and will be deemed received upon personal delivery or 48 hours after 
deposit in any United States mail depository, first class postage prepaid, and addressed to the Party for whom intended, as 
follows: 
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If to Metropolitan:  If to Agency: 
 
The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Municipal Water District of Orange County 
P. O. Box 54153 18700 Ward Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90054-0153 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 
Attention:  Ms. Stacie Takeguchi Attention: [Insert Agency Agreement Administrator Name]  
Or by email to: stakeguchi@mwdh2o.com Or by email to: [Insert Agency Administrator email] 

Either Party may change such address by giving notice to the other Party as provided herein. 

Section 4:  Responsibilities and Ownership 
4.1 Agency shall be responsible for all necessary services and materials for Project implementation including, but not limited to, 

providing the following: Project administration, data collection, analyses, and reporting. 

4.2 Agency shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations and is solely responsible for any such 
obligations, including, without limitation, compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act. 

4.3 Metropolitan and Agency agree that each party shall be responsible for its own actions, and the actions of its officers, 
employees and agents, in performing services under this Agreement.  Metropolitan and Agency each agree to indemnify and 
hold the other Party and its officers and agents harmless and agree to defend the other Party against any claim or asserted 
liability arising out of its actions, either willful or negligent, or the actions of its officers, employees and agents, in performing 
services pursuant to this Agreement.  Such indemnity includes any losses relating to any claim made, whether or not a court 
action is filed, and attorney fees and administrative and overhead costs related to or arising out of such claim or asserted 
liability.   

4.4 Agency is solely responsible for the performance of its staff or representatives in complying with the terms of this Agreement 
and for the proper allocation of funds provided by Metropolitan for the purpose of implementing the Project under this 
Agreement. 

4.5 Agency shall be responsible for the design, implementation, personnel, equipment and supplies, and all capital and operating 
costs related to and incurred by Project.  All materials and equipment necessary to implement Project are the exclusive property 
of Agency.  Metropolitan shall have no ownership, right, title, security interest, or other interest in any Project facilities, 
materials, or equipment, nor any rights, duties, or responsibilities for operation or maintenance thereof. 

4.6 Agency shall include this Agreement, language stating that the terms of this Agreement prevail if there is a conflict in any terms 
in a separate agreement, and the following language in its agreement with any consultant, contractor, or organization retained 
by or partnering with Agency to work on the Project: "(Consultant) agrees at its sole cost and expense to protect, indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California and its Board of Directors, officers, 
representatives, agents and employees from and against any and all claims and liability of any kind (including, but not limited to, 
any claims or liability for injury or death to any person, damage to property, natural resources or to the environment, or water 
quality problems) that arise out of or relate to Agency’s approval, construction, operation, repair or ownership of the Project.  
Such indemnity shall include all damages and losses related to any claim made, whether or not a court action is filed, and shall 
include attorney’s fees, administrative and overhead costs, engineering and consulting fees and all other costs related to or 
arising out of such claim or asserted liability.”  Agency shall be solely responsible for all payments and other contractual 
requirements required by any such separate agreement.   

Section 5:  Intellectual Property and Use of Materials 

5.1 All intellectual property developed pursuant to this Agreement shall be owned by Agency and Agency hereby grants 
Metropolitan and its member public agencies a nonexclusive license, at no cost, to use the intellectual property developed in 
the course of the work performed under this Agreement by Agency or any contractor and consultant working on Project as 
described in Exhibit A.  This intellectual property includes, but is not limited to, all inventions, patents, data, design, drawings, 
specifications, raw results, computer programs, final report, as well as any other presentations, reports, findings or related 
materials developed during the Project.  

5.2 The Parties agree that the granting of the nonexclusive license to use the intellectual property developed pursuant to this 
Agreement is beneficial to all Metropolitan member agencies and the Southern California region.  

5.3 Agency agrees that all results produced in the performance of this Agreement may be released to the public. 

5.4 Agency shall include the following language in its agreement with any consultant or contractor retained by Agency to work on 
the Project: “All intellectual property developed pursuant to this Agreement is owned by Municipal Water District of Orange 
County (Agency).  This intellectual property includes, but is not limited to, all inventions, patents, data, design, drawings, 
specifications, raw results, computer programs, final report, as well as any other presentations, reports, findings or related 
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materials developed during the Project.  All results produced in the performance of this Agreement may be released to the 
public.” 

5.5 Agency shall notify Metropolitan in writing of all intellectual property conceived or developed in the course of the work 
performed under this Agreement. 

5.6 Agency shall cooperate in the execution of all documents necessary to perfect and protect Metropolitan’s and its member 
public agencies’ right to intellectual property under this Agreement as requested by Metropolitan. 

5.7 When requested by Metropolitan or its member public agencies, or upon termination of this Agreement, Agency shall furnish a 
copy of all documents and other tangible media containing intellectual property developed by Agency during the course of this 
Agreement, including all prototypes and computer programs. 

Section 6:  Metropolitan’s Payment 

6.1 Metropolitan’s payment for the Project is not to exceed $200,000, or fifty (50) percent of the total cost expended per task as 
established in Exhibit A, whichever is less.  Agency shall be responsible for all costs in excess of Metropolitan’s payment.   

6.2 Metropolitan shall reimburse Agency only upon receipt and approval by Metropolitan of a required quarterly progress report 
and associated quarterly invoice in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement and as scheduled in Exhibit A.   
Twenty five (25) percent of eligible reimbursable costs shall be withheld per invoice until a final report is accepted by 
Metropolitan.  Agency shall submit quarterly invoices with related quarterly progress reports to Metropolitan’s Accounts 
Payable Section, whose mailing address is P.O. Box 54153, Los Angeles, California 90054-0153, with a copy to the Agreement 
Administrator via email at the address provided under Section 3.2.  Agency’s Agreement Administrator shall sign and certify the 
invoices to be true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge.  Agency’s invoices shall include at a minimum the information 
requested in Exhibit B (Sample Invoice).  Invoices shall itemize allowable expenses and include receipts for which 
reimbursement is sought.  Attached receipts should itemize each cost and provide descriptive information so that expenses are 
separately identified.  The final invoice, including any requests for release of retention, shall be clearly marked “FINAL INVOICE.” 

6.3 In-kind services are not eligible for reimbursement and shall not be included in Agency invoices to Metropolitan.  In-kind 
services include, but are not limited to, work performed by staff of Agency or of Agency’s partner(s) contributing funding to 
Project, and related expenses (e.g., travel, overhead, etc.). 

6.4 All invoices related to the Project must be submitted by Agency to Metropolitan by April 15, 2016, to be considered for payment 
under the provisions of this agreement.  Invoices received after April 15, 2016, will not be paid unless Metropolitan, in its sole 
discretion, grants Agency, in writing, an extension of time to complete the work and submit its invoices.  

6.5 Invoices to Metropolitan will be paid 30 days after approval of the invoices, provided the work achieved complies with the 
conditions set forth in section 6.2 of this Agreement and Exhibit A.  

Section 7:  Reporting Requirements  
7.1 Agency shall submit to Metropolitan quarterly progress reports with the associated invoices by the 15th of January, April, July, 

and October for the preceding quarter.  The progress reports shall include, at a minimum, the items listed in Exhibit C  
(Progress Report Format).  Agency shall document all activities and expenditures in progress reports.  The submittal of these 
reports is a requirement for initial and continued disbursement of funds.   

7.2 Agency shall prepare and submit to Metropolitan, upon completion of the Project, a Final Report, which shall include, at a 
minimum, the items listed in Exhibit D (Final Report Format).  The Final Report shall be provided in hard copy and digital format 
prior to final payment of funds retained by Metropolitan. 

7.3 Upon written request by Metropolitan, Agency shall prepare and submit to Metropolitan a Post-Project Update Report one year 
following the acceptance of the Final Report.  The Post-Project Update Report shall provide a summary of related post-funding 
project activities and include, at a minimum, the items listed in Exhibit E (Post-Project Update Report Format). 

Section 8:  Verification  
8.1 Agency shall be responsible for verifying completion of Consultant’s or Subcontractor’s work in accordance with the  

Scope of Work as shown in Exhibit A. 

Section 9:  Representations  

9.1  Each Party represents that it is represented by legal counsel, that it has reviewed this Agreement and agrees that: 
a. This Agreement is legally enforceable; 
b. Payments made by Metropolitan to Agency pursuant to this Agreement are a legal use of Metropolitan’s funds; and, 
c. Metropolitan may legally recover the costs incurred by Metropolitan pursuant to this Agreement in the water rates 

charged to its Member Agencies, including Agency. 
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Section 10: Insurance 

10.1  Agency shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement a program of commercial insurance or documented  
self-insurance program to protect against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Agency, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

10.2  Agency shall sustain proof of insurance coverage in an updated ACORD form, attached hereto as Exhibit F  
(Agency Proof of Insurance Coverage) and incorporated by reference, during the term of this Agreement.   
Failure to provide the updated insurance ACORD form annually may result in the withholding of Agency’s invoice payment.  
Agency shall list the agreement number on the ACORD form and email to: AgreementInsurance@mwdh2o.com or fax  
to (213-576-6158).  Alternatively, if unable to email or fax, Agency shall send the ACORD form via U.S. mail as follows: 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
  P.O. Box 54153 
  Los Angeles, CA 90054 
  Attention:  Ms. Stacie Takeguchi 
  Agreement No. 139835 

10.3  Minimum Scope of Insurance 

a. Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

i. Insurance Services Office Commercial Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG0001). 

ii. Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1, (any auto). 

iii. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

iv. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the Agency's profession.  
Architects' and engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability." 

10.4  Minimum Limits of Insurance 

a. Agency shall maintain limits no less than: 

i. General Liability:  Including operations, products and completed operations as applicable,  
$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.   
If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used,  
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the project or location, or the  
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

ii. Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

iii. Workers’ Compensation:  Shall be furnished in accordance with statutory requirements of the State of California 
and shall include Employer’s Liability coverage of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

iv. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability:  $1,000,000 per claim, with a $2 million aggregate. 

10.5  Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions:  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by      
Metropolitan.  At the option of Metropolitan, either:  the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respect to Metropolitan, its officers officials, employees, agents and volunteers; or the Agency shall provide a 
financial guarantee satisfactory to Metropolitan guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration 
and defense expenses. 

10.6  Verification of Coverage:  Agency shall furnish Metropolitan with original certificates and amendatory endorsements effecting 
coverage required by this clause.  The endorsements and certificates are to be received and approved by Metropolitan prior to 
the commencement of work.  Metropolitan reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, including endorsements effecting coverage, and coverage binders required by these specifications at any time. 

10.7  Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with California admitted insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VIII.  A non-admitted carrier may be used with prior approval from Metropolitan, with an A.M. Best rating of no less than 
A: X.  An exception to these standards will be made for the State Compensation Insurance Fund when not specifically rated. 
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10.8  General Liability and Automobile Liability Endorsements 

a. The commercial general liability policy and automobile policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain,  
the following provisions: 

i. Metropolitan, its officers, officials, employees and agents are to be covered as insureds as respect to liability 
arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Agency; or automobiles owned, leased,  
hired or borrowed by the Agency. 

ii. For any claims related to this project, the Agency’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect to 
Metropolitan, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
Metropolitan, its officers, officials, employees or agents shall be excess of the Agency’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

iii. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled by 
either party, except after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to Metropolitan. 

iv. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of the additional insured in  
any case where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of  
Section 2782 of the Civil Code. 

10.9  Other Endorsements and Insurance Provisions 

a. All rights of subrogation under the property insurance policy (if any) have been waived against Metropolitan. 

b. The workers’ compensation insurer, agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against Metropolitan for injuries to 
employees of the insured (Agency) resulting from work for Metropolitan or use of Metropolitan’s premises or facilities. 

c. If General Liability, Pollution and/or any Asbestos Pollution Liability and/or professional liability or Errors & Omissions 
coverages are written on a claims-made form: 

i. The “Retro Date” must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of contract work. 

ii. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a  
“Retro Date” prior to the contract effective date, the Agency must purchase “extended reporting” coverage  
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work. 

iii. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to Metropolitan for review. 

Section 11:  Miscellaneous 
11.1 This Agreement may be amended by written mutual agreement executed by both Parties.  Any alteration or variation of  

the terms of this Agreement will not be valid unless made in writing and signed by both Parties.  This Agreement constitutes  
the entire agreement between the Parties. 

11.2 This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Metropolitan and Agency and their respective successors.   
This Agreement is not assignable by either Party in whole or in part. 

11.3 If any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, in whole or in part, such provision shall be 
modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it legal, valid, and enforceable, and the legality, validity, and enforceability 
of the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby. 

11.4 This Agreement shall be deemed a contract under the laws of the State of California, and for all purposes will be interpreted  
in accordance with such laws.  Metropolitan and Agency hereby agree and consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of 
the State of California, and that the venue of any action brought hereunder will be in Los Angeles County, California. 

 
Attachments incorporated in this Agreement include: 
 

Exhibit A: Scope of Work, Cost, and Schedule 
Exhibit B: Sample Invoice 
Exhibit C: Quarterly Progress Report Format 
Exhibit D: Final Report Format 
Exhibit E: Post-Project Update Report Format  
Exhibit F: Agency Proof of Insurance Coverage  
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed and entered into this Agreement as of the date last written below. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

Marcia L. Scully 
General Counsel 

Jeffrey Kightlinger 
General Manager 

By: 

By: 

Setha E. Schlang          
Senior Deputy General Counsel 

Debra C. Man             
Assistant General Manager/COO 

Date: Date: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

By: 
Legal Counsel (if necessary) Name:                

Title: 
Date: Date: 

In Duplicate 
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Scope of Work, Costs, and Schedule  
For 

San Juan Basin Groundwater and Desalination Optimization Program 

1.0 Project Objective 

The project analyzes options for sustainable, long-term use of an impaired watershed that is 
typical to Southern California.   Without adaptive management and expanded recharge of the 
watershed there is limited opportunity for production of potable water.  The watershed has a 
stream morphology that extends offshore and currently the aquifer is underutilized.  The 
project is an innovative approach not generally used on a small basin, it takes the tools that 
have historically been applied to larger basins and incorporates them with the goal of 
producing a new sustainable water supply. 

2.0 Background Information 

Many small groundwater basins within The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
(Metropolitan) service area have the following attributes: limited yield, limited storage, natural 
and anthropogenic contamination sources, chronically impaired water, and overlying lands that 
are completely developed.  The classic approach to utilizing these small basins is to treat the 
groundwater at its sustainable yield and rely on imported water to meet demands in excess of 
the underlying groundwater. The San Juan Basin in South Orange County is typical of these 
marginalized basins.  In its current state, the San Juan Basin: can sustain on average about 9,300 
acre-ft/yr of production, which will range from about 7,700 to about 11,200 acre-ft/yr, limited 
by hydrology and water in storage; has a storage capacity of about 40,000 acre-ft and currently 
has about 27,000 acre-ft in storage; has impaired groundwater with a TDS concentration of 
about 2,200 mg/L; has both natural and anthropogenic degradation sources; and very 
high concentrations of iron and manganese.  The near term production goal is about 
11,400 acre-ft/yr, and thus the Basin, under its current management scheme, is projected to 
chronically fail to meet the production needs of the local agencies.  Currently, groundwater 
desalters are used to treat the groundwater that is produced for municipal uses.  

The program elements contains the efforts to develop practical spatial and temporal 
groundwater production plans based on storage conditions that are related to production, 
natural hydrologic variability, artificial recharge, and prevailing DPH and Basin Plan 
requirements.  There are also overlying producers that may have to convert to recycled and or 
municipal water to enable the implementation. 

[Discussion Points: Since a portion of this work is being submitted through this study proposal 
and the “Overcoming Barriers to Slant Well Seawater Desalination – Siting, Groundwater, Water Quality 
and Treatment.” proposal, the actual funding/scope will be negotiated if both are funded to 
ensure there is no duplication of work.] 
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3.0      Project Description 

The 2013 San Juan Basin Groundwater and Facilities Master Plan (SJBGFMP) is being developed 
in a stakeholder process to meet the water management goals of the SJBA and other 
stakeholders.  The 2013 SJBGFMP proposes a novel and unprecedented approach to 
aggressively manage the San Juan Creek Basin that will result in a sustainable increase in Basin 
production to over 20,000 acre-ft/yr – an increase of over 100 percent.  This is proposed to be 
accomplished by: the construction and operation of a seawater extraction barrier near the 
coast where San Juan Creek discharges into the Pacific Ocean; new stormwater recharge in 
and possibly adjacent to San Juan Creek and the Arroyo Trabuco; seasonal recharge of 
tertiary-treated recycled water; and managed groundwater production and treatment.  The 
expanded yield developed from the 2013 SJBGFMP will be used by the local water 
agencies to reduce their demand on imported water and to improve local reliability.  The 
program elements of the 2013 SJBGFMP and the process under which they were developed 
can be exported to any of the small impaired groundwater basins in the Metropolitan 
service area.  The program elements of the 2013 SJBGFMP and the scope of work for this 
study are described below. 
Conduct Groundwater Modeling Studies for Proposed Seawater Extraction Barrier.  The 2013 
SJBGFMP includes a seawater extraction barrier that will prevent seawater intrusion and 
provide up to 4,000 acre-ft/yr of potable water.  The extraction wells will be located between 
the coast and Stonehill Drive with a treatment plant possibly being co-located at the existing 
SCWD groundwater treatment plant.  The current estimated cost to produce water from the 
extraction barrier project is about $1,330 per acre-ft. The scope of work herein is to conduct 
groundwater modeling studies, utilizing a recently (2013) calibrated model1 of the coastal zone 
of the San Juan Basin, to investigate extraction barrier well locations, sustainable production 
rates, and projected salinity concentrations.  The analysis will apply to similar stream 
morphology that extends offshore and currently may be underutilized.  An updated facilities 
and operating plan will be prepared along with updated cost estimates.   

Conduct Hydraulic Investigations to Increase Stormwater Recharge.  The 2013 SJBGFMP 
includes in-stream stormwater recharge using either “T” and “L” levees, as utilized by 
the Orange County Water District (OCWD); rubber dams for in-stream recharge; and rubber 
dams for in-stream recharge and diversion to off-stream recharge facilities.  The increase in 
recharge anticipated by the “T” and “L” levees alternative could range from 500 to 2,000 
acre-ft/yr and for the rubber dam alternative could range from 1,000 to 4,000 acre-ft/yr.  
Under either  in-stream recharge alternative, the cost to recharge stormwater will range 
from $200 per acre-ft to $800 per acre-ft.  San Juan Creek and the Arroyo Trabuco have 
been listed as habitat for Steelhead Trout and the stream bottom may have other habitat 
values.  The scope of work herein is to conduct a hydraulic investigation to refine the 
“T” and “L” levees alternative, develop hydraulic and fish passage requirements for 
both alternatives, and refine the stormwater recharge estimates for all three 
alternatives.  Groundwater modeling, using a recently developed groundwater model,2 
will be done to assess the groundwater basin.

1 A variable-density model developed by the MWDOC for the investigation of the South Orange County Ocean 
Desalter (SOCOD) project. 
2 A regional groundwater flow model developed by the MWDOC for the investigation of the South Orange County 
Ocean Desalter (SOCOD) project. 
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response, mounding, and the need to revise groundwater production plans to accommodate 
new recharge.  The data developed may be utilized in other streambed applications in 
urbanized areas. An updated facilities and operating plan will be prepared along with updated 
cost estimates.   

Conduct Hydraulic Investigations to Recycled Water Recharge.  The 2013 SJBGFMP includes 
in-stream recycled water recharge using seasonally constructed ponds along San Juan Creek 
or rubber dams.  The recycled water recharge anticipated by the SJBGFMP could ramp up 
from an initial 2,000 acre-ft/yr and eventually reach about 10,000 acre-ft/yr.  Under either 
recharge alternative, the cost to recharge recycled water will range from $50 to $100 per 
acre-ft, not including recycled water production facilities. The rubber dam alternative used 
for stormwater recharge could also be utilized for recycled water recharge if 
constructed.  This program element will have the same habitat challenges as the 
stormwater recharge program element.  The scope of work herein is to conduct a 
hydraulic investigation to refine the layout and operation of the temporary seasonal 
recharge ponds, develop hydraulic and fish passage requirements for both alternatives, 
and refine the recycled water recharge estimates for both alternatives.  Groundwater 
modeling, using a recently developed groundwater model,3 will be completed to assess the 
groundwater basin response, mounding, and the need to revise groundwater production 
plans to accommodate the new recharge. Recycled water distribution system retrofits for 
irrigation purposes in urban areas of Southern California may be difficult and costly, the 
Project recharge analysis may be applicable for beneficial indirect use analysis. An updated 
facilities and operating plan for recycled water will be prepared along with revised cost 
estimates.   

Develop Adaptive Production Management.  The implementation of the extraction barrier and 
recharge program elements will change the location, magnitude, and timing of recharge in the 
basin.  Existing groundwater production and treatment facilities will have to be modified to 
maximize the new yield, to ensure there is groundwater storage capacity to accept the 
recharge, to minimize potential for liquefaction, continue to protect the health of the public 
and to ensure maximum beneficial use of the produced water.  This program element contains 
the efforts to develop practical spatial and temporal groundwater production plans based on 
storage conditions that are related to production, natural hydrologic variability, artificial 
recharge, and prevailing DPH4 and Basin Plan requirements.  There are also overlying producers 
that may have to convert to recycled and or municipal water to enable the implementation of 
the 2013 SJBGFMP.  The scope of work for this program element includes: groundwater 
modeling to develop spatial and temporal groundwater production plans tied to groundwater 
storage, underground residence time for recycled water prior to production, and recycled water 
contribution; expected groundwater treatment requirements to produce potable water; and 
the water type and cost to replace the groundwater currently used by overlying producers.  A 
reconnaissance-level Title 22 engineering assessment will be prepared pursuant to the existing 

3 A regional groundwater flow model developed by the MWDOC for the investigation of the South Orange County 
Ocean Desalter (SOCOD) project coupled with MT3D to estimate the recycled water contribution and underground 
residence time. 
4 http://www.cdph.ca.gov/healthinfo/environhealth/water/pages/waterrecycling.aspx  
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draft Title 22 regulations for a groundwater recycled reuse project.5  An updated facilities and 
operating plan will be prepared along with updated cost estimates. The updated facilities and 
operation plan will include the locations of new wells, raw water conveyance, treatment 
facilities, product water conveyance, and the phasing of these facilities as recycled water 
recharge is ramped up from 2,000 to 10,000 acre-ft/yr.  The results of the work can be 
transferred to other similar situated basins in Southern California. 

Participating Entities 

Under Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC), the following agencies are 
participating in the project: 

• San Juan Basin Authority (SJBA), which is a joint powers authority.  The San Juan Basin
has a drainage area of over 111,000 acres and includes Oso Creek, Trabuco Creek, Horno
Creek, Chiquita Canyon, Canada Gobernadora and Bell Canyon. The SJBA is designed to
carry out and oversee water resource development of the San Juan Basin. The SJBA is
comprised of the following member agencies:

o Santa Margarita Water District (SMWD)
o Moulton Miguel Water District (MNWD)
o South Coast Water District (SCWD)
o City of San Juan Capistrano (CSJC)

In addition, the following entities will provide an assessment and input on regulatory and 
feasibility issues with the project: 

• State of California Department of Public Health, Division of Drinking Water and
Environmental Management District Engineer has discussed the project with the
proponents and will be included on the technical advisory team to review the project
and groundwater recharge relative to of current and proposed regulations

• National Water Research Institute (NWRI) has been involved in similar projects in other
areas of California and the southwest involving groundwater recharge of recycled water.
In addition to efforts to review key regulatory issues concerning recycled water, NWRI
and SJBA have the opportunity for development of a Blue Ribbon Panel to conduct a
peer review of the project scope and findings.

4.0 Description of Tasks 

TASK 1 – Project Management 

1.1 Project Management and Administration  

The work completed in this task includes project management (resourcing, scheduling, 
cost controls, etc.), timely invoicing, internal technical reviews, and coordination with 
Metropolitan.  The work products include progress reports and invoices.   

5 Ibid 
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1.1a Progress Reports  
Provide quarterly progress reports and invoices documenting activities 
scheduled, description of work completed, % completed, project issues, as 
described in this Agreement. 

1.1b Final Report 
Provide a detailed written final report of project outcomes, lessons learned, 
cost-effectiveness, feasibility of regional implementation, recommendations for 
future actions, next steps, as described in this Agreement. 

1.1c Long-Term Reporting 
Prepare a post-project update report to Metropolitan one year following the 
acceptance of the Final Report. 

1.2 Progress Reports to the SJBA Board and Stakeholder Process Meetings 

Quarterly oral presentations will be conducted at the SJBA Board meetings to brief the 
SJBA Board, other stakeholders and the public on the progress of the work.  The 
objective of the oral presentations is to keep the SJBA Board and stakeholders current 
on the ongoing work and to receive input and direction from the SJBA Board.  There will 
be detailed technical public workshops included in Tasks 2, 3 and 5 below. 

• The work products will be presentations, handouts, and presentation
summaries, all of which will be posted on the SJBA website.

1.3 Technical Advisory Committee Meetings 

The objective of this task is to meet and review the program elements as they evolve 
with the SJBA technical advisory committee (TAC).   

• The work products will include meeting handouts (preliminary facilities plans,
operation plans, cost opinions, institutional and environmental challenges
and solutions, etc.), the meeting handouts and meeting summaries will be
posted on the SJBA website.

TASK 2 - Develop Preliminary Alternatives for Each Program Element 

2.1 Develop Design Criteria, Cost Estimating Methodology and Identify Potential 
Project Participants and Points of Delivery 

The objectives of this task are: to identify and obtain agreement on facility design and 
operating criteria and assumptions before engineering work begins; to obtain 
agreement on the cost and financial assumptions to be used in the preparation of cost 
opinions; and to identify potential purchasers of the water and where they would take 
delivery and the capacity limitations at the points of delivery. A draft technical 
memorandum (TM) will be prepared and submitted to the TAC that contains this 
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information as a straw man proposal.  The TAC will review, provide direction and the TM 
will be finalized.  The TM will subsequently be incorporated into an appendix to the 
project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include draft and final TMs, the final TM being posted
on the SJBA website.

2.2 Develop Preliminary Extraction Barrier Alternatives 

The objective of this task to develop up to three extraction barrier alternatives that will 
prevent seawater intrusion and increase local supplies by intercepting and treating 
seawater induced landward by the extraction barrier wells.  These alternatives will be 
analyzed in detail in Task 3. Operating plans, well field layouts, raw water conveyance 
and treatment facilities, brine disposal facilities and product water conveyance facilities 
will be developed.  The recent extensive hydrogeologic work done for the Doheny 
Desalter investigations and the SJBA groundwater-monitoring program will be relied 
upon. A draft TM that describes the three extraction barrier alternatives will be 
prepared and submitted to the TAC.  The TAC will review, provide direction and the TM 
will be finalized.  The TM will subsequently be incorporated into the project report in 
Task 5.   

• The work products will include draft and final TMs, the final TM being posted
on the SJBA website.

2.3 Develop Preliminary Storm Water Recharge Alternatives 

The objective of this task is to identify the range of storm water recharge alternatives 
overlying the San Juan Basin and to formulate up to six recharge alternatives for 
detailed analysis in Task 3.  The 2013 SJBGFMP considered two in-stream recharge 
alternatives involving “T” and “L” levees as used by the OCWD on the Santa Ana River, 
and a series of rubber dams.  These in-stream alternatives and as well as off-stream 
recharge in new recharge basins and infiltration galleries located near San Juan Creek 
and Arroyo Trabuco will be considered.  Facility layouts and operating schemes for each 
alternative will be developed. The 2013 SJBGFMP and recent extensive hydrology 
modeling work done for the Doheny Desalter investigations will be relied upon.  A draft 
TM will be prepared and submitted to the TAC that describes the six storm water 
recharge alternatives.  The TAC will review, provide direction and the TM will be 
finalized.  The TM will subsequently be incorporated into the project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include a draft and final TMs, the final TM being
posted on the SJBA website.

2.4 Develop Preliminary Recycled Water Recharge Alternatives 

The objective of this task is to identify the range of recycled water recharge alternatives 
overlying the San Juan Basin and to formulate up to six recharge alternatives for 
detailed analysis in Task 3.  The 2013 SJBGFMP considered two in-stream recharge 
alternatives involving a series of seasonal temporary cascading ponds in San Juan Creek 
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and Arroyo Trabuco, as well as a series of rubber dams on the same creeks. 
Consideration will be given to these in-stream alternatives and off-stream alternatives 
with recharge, including recharge basins, injection wells and infiltration galleries located 
near San Juan Creek and Arroyo Trabuco.  Facility layouts and operating schemes for 
each alternative will be developed. The 2013 SJBGFMP, SJBA groundwater-monitoring 
program and planning information provided by the South Orange County Wastewater 
Authority (SOCWA) will be relied upon to formulate these alternatives.  A draft TM will 
be prepared and submitted to the TAC that describes the six recycled water recharge 
alternatives.  The TAC will review, provide direction and the TM will be finalized.  The 
TM will subsequently be incorporated into the project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include a draft and final TMs, the final TM being
posted on the SJBA website.

2.5 Develop Preliminary Adaptive Production Management Alternatives 

The objectives of this task are: to identify the range of adaptive production 
management alternatives that include existing and new wells and expanded 
groundwater treatment to enable groundwater production to be increased to exploit 
the existing basin as well as possible storm and recycled water recharged as part of this 
project; and to determine how production should be managed during critical dry 
periods.  Up to six alternatives will be developed considering: selected amounts of new 
storm and recycled water recharge; determination of the approximate number of new 
wells and treatment capacity required to increase groundwater production to recover 
the new recharge; maximizing groundwater production during dry periods and comply 
with the then current draft DPH Groundwater Replenishment with Recycled Water 
(GRRP) regulations; and the location of existing wells that may need to be abandoned. 
Facility layouts and operating schemes will be developed for each alternative. The 2013 
SJBGFMP, the SJBA groundwater-monitoring program, hydrogeologic and planning 
information from the Doheny Desalter project and planning information provided by the 
SOCWA will be relied upon to formulate these alternatives.  A draft TM will be prepared 
and submitted to the TAC that describes the six adaptive production management 
alternatives.  The TAC will review, provide direction and the TM will be finalized.  The 
TM will subsequently be incorporated into the project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include draft and final TMs, the final TM being posted
on the SJBA website.

2.6 Develop a Presentation Summarizing Preliminary Program Elements 

The objective of this task is to prepare a comprehensive presentation with notes to 
document the history of the project and the results of Task 2-1 through 2-5.  This 
presentation will be used in Task 2.7 (below) and will be made available to all 
stakeholders for their subsequent review and use.  

• The work product will be a presentation file that will be posted to the SJBA
website.

Page 156 of 210



Exhibit A 

Agreement No. 139835 Page 8 of 16 DRAFT 2013 FAF PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

2.7 Review Program Elements with SJBA Board, Other Stakeholders, DPH, SWRCB 
and the RWQCB 

The objective of this task is to conduct one or more workshops with the above-
mentioned parties to summarize Task 2 results, answer questions, and to receive 
comments and suggestions.  

• The work products will be the technical presentations, handouts, workshop
summaries all of which will be posted on the SJBA website.

TASK 3 – Evaluate Feasibility of All Program Elements 

3.1 Evaluate Groundwater Extraction Barrier Program Element Alternatives 

The objective of this task is to evaluate the preliminary extraction barrier alternatives, 
refine them as necessary, rank them and recommend an alternative. The evaluation will 
include: modifying and updating a recently calibrated variable-density groundwater 
model and applying that model for each of the preliminary alternatives to determine 
extraction barrier effectiveness, sustainable yield, and expected salinity.  These model 
results will be used to refine the operating and facilities plan including: the phasing of 
groundwater treatment capacity; and the preparation of a construction cost opinion and 
unit cost of water produced. A preliminary recommendation for the extraction barrier 
alternative will be prepared. The factors that contribute to uncertainty in extraction 
barrier performance, the investigations required to reduce the uncertainty to an 
acceptable level, and the cost of these investigations will be described.  A draft TM will 
be prepared and submitted to the TAC that describes the evaluation of the extraction 
barrier alternatives, the recommended alternative and the basis of the 
recommendation.  The TAC will review, provide direction and the TM will be finalized. 
The TM will subsequently be incorporated into the project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include draft and final TMs, the final TM being posted
on the SJBA website.

3.2 Evaluate Storm and Recycled Water Recharge Program Element Alternatives 

The objective of this task is to evaluate the preliminary storm and recycled water 
recharge alternatives, refine them as necessary, rank them and recommend an 
alternative.  The evaluation of storm and recycled water recharge alternatives were 
combined herein because many of the same types of proposed facilities are being 
considered for both types of water. The evaluation will include: modifying and updating 
a recently calibrated, fine-grain regional groundwater model and applying that model 
for each of the preliminary recharge alternatives to determine: recharge capacity for 
each type of water and combinations of water types; mounding limitations; mitigation 
measures that can be incorporated into the project to maximize recharge; refining the 
facility and operating plans for each alternative based on model results; and preparing a 
construction cost opinion and unit cost of water recharged. The preliminary 
recommendations for the top three recharge alternatives, the recommended 
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alternative, and the basis for the recommendation will be prepared. The factors that 
contribute to uncertainty in storm and recycled water recharge performance, the 
investigations required to reduce the uncertainty to an acceptable level, and the cost of 
these investigations will be described.  A draft TM will be prepared and submitted to the 
TAC that describes the three extraction barrier alternatives.  The TAC will review, 
provide direction and the TM will be finalized.  The TM will subsequently be 
incorporated into the project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include draft and final TMs, the final TM being posted
on the SJBA website.

3.3 Evaluate and Refine Adaptive Management Alternatives 

The objective of this task is to evaluate the preliminary management alternatives for 
production of raw water, refine them as necessary based on work in Task 3-2, rank them 
and recommend an alternative. The evaluation will include: development and 
application of a new MT3D (solute transport) model to be used in conjunction with the 
existing fine-grain regional flow model to assess underground residence time for 
recycled water for each existing and proposed well, and to estimate recycled water 
contribution for each existing and proposed well; refining the facility and operating 
plans for each alternative based on model results; refining recycled water and 
groundwater treatment plans and cost; conducting a salt and nutrient loading 
assessment consistent with the Basin Plan and SWRCB policy; and, preparing a 
construction cost opinion and unit cost of water produced.  The recommendations for 
the top three adaptive management alternatives, including a recommended alternative 
and the basis for the recommendation will be prepared. The factors that contribute to 
uncertainty in adaptive production management performance, the investigations 
required to reduce the uncertainty to an acceptable level, and the cost of these 
investigations will be described.  A draft TM will be prepared and submitted to the TAC 
that describes the top 3 adaptive production management alternatives, the 
recommended alternative and the basis for the recommendation.  The TAC will review, 
provide direction and the TM will be finalized.  The TM will subsequently be 
incorporated into the project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include draft and final TMs, the final TM being posted
on the SJBA website.

3.4 Develop a Presentation Summarizing Preliminary Program Elements 

The objective of this task is to prepare a comprehensive presentation with notes to 
document the history of the project and the results of Task 3-1 through 3-3.  This 
presentation will be used at project workshop(s) described in Task 3-5 (below) and will 
be made available to all stakeholders for their subsequent review and use.  

• The work product will be a presentation file that will be posted to the SJBA
website.
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3.5 Review Task 3 Results with SJBA Board, Other Stakeholders, DPH, SWRCB and 
the RWQCB 

The objective of this task is to conduct one or more workshops with the above-
mentioned parties to summarize the results of Task 3, answer questions, and to receive 
comments and suggestions.  

• The work products will be the technical presentations, handouts, workshop
summaries all of which will be posted on the SJBA website.

TASK 4 – Develop Implementation Plan 

4.1 Identify Potential Habitat and Environmental Opportunities for the Project 
Alternatives 

The objectives of this task are to identify the types of environmental impacts and to 
determine elements to include in the planning effort to move the project forward, 
including development of preliminary cost estimates. The results will be incorporated 
into an appendix in the project report prepared in Task 5. 

• The work products will be a study which will be posted on the SJBA website.

4.2 Develop Phasing and Monitoring Plans 

The objective of this task is develop a plan to implement the project in phases that will 
allow the project participants to move forward with some of the project elements 
immediately and the remainder of the program elements in an incremental manner. 
For example the extraction barrier program element could be implemented 
independently of the recharge and adaptive management program for production of 
raw water elements, can be implemented more rapidly than the other program 
elements, and will likely be easier to implement.  The recharge and adaptive production 
management program elements will still have some technical uncertainty and the 
regulators, specifically the DPH, will likely require that the recycled water recharge be 
slowly ramped up and monitoring be done to demonstrate compliance to the then 
current GRRP regulations.  A phasing and monitoring plan will be developed based: on 
the work completed in Task 3; input from the regulatory community; funding 
availability; cost of alternative water supplies; the initial study findings from Task 4.1; 
and other considerations. A draft TM will be prepared and submitted to the TAC that 
describes the proposed phasing and monitoring plans.  The TAC will review, provide 
direction and the TM will be finalized.  The TM will subsequently be incorporated into 
the project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include draft and final TMs, the final TM being posted
on the SJBA website.
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4.3 Revise Cost Opinions 

The objective of this task is to revise the cost opinions and unit water cost projections 
based on the results of Tasks 3.5, 4.1 and 4.2. A draft TM will be prepared and 
submitted to the TAC that describes the revised cost opinions.  The TAC will review, 
provide direction and the TM will be finalized.  The TM will subsequently be 
incorporated into the project report in Task 5.   

• The work products will include draft and final TMs, the final TM being posted
on the SJBA website.

TASK 5 – Prepare Project Report 

The objective of this task is to prepare a formal project report to document the technical work 
and the stakeholder process.  The project report will be prepared using the following process: 
prepare an administrative draft report for review by the SJBA TAC; preparation and distribution 
of the public review draft; public workshop to summarize the report findings, answer questions, 
receive comments and suggestions; and finalize and distribute final report. 

5.1 Prepare an Administrative Draft Technical Report 

Prepare a detailed report outline produced at the conclusion of Task 2 and an 
administrative draft report.   

5.2 Review the Administrative Draft Technical Report with SJBA TAC 

5.3 Prepare Draft Technical Report for Public Review and Distribute 

Public review of the draft report, which will be posted on the SJBA website. 

5.4 Review Draft Technical Report with DPH and Regional Board Staffs 

5.5 Finalize Technical Report 

The final report will be posted on the SJBA website.  
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5.0      Deliverables 
 

Task/Subtask Deliverables Submittal 
Due Date 

1 - Project Management 

  
  
  

1.1 Project Management and Administration   

1.1a Progress Reports Quarterly Progress Reports Quarterly 
(see pg 12) 

1.1b Final Report Final Report to Metropolitan 2/1/2016 
1.1c Long-term Reporting Post-Project Update Report 4/15/2017 

1.2 Progress Reports to the SJBA Board and 
Stakeholder Process Meetings 

Presentations, handouts, and 
presentation summaries 

Every other 
Quarter 

1.3 Technical Advisory Committee Meetings 

Meeting handouts (preliminary 
facilities plans, operation plans, cost 
opinions, institutional and 
environmental challenges and 
solutions, etc.) 

Every 
Quarter 

2 - Develop Preliminary Alternatives for Each Program Element 

  
  
  

2.1 
Develop Design Criteria, Cost Estimating 
Methodology and Identify Potential 
Project Participants and Points of Delivery 

Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 4/15/2014 

2.2 Develop Preliminary Extraction Barrier 
Alternatives Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 7/15/2014 

2.3 Develop Preliminary Stormwater Recharge 
Alternatives Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 7/15/2014 

2.4 Develop Preliminary Recycled Water 
Recharge Alternatives Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 7/15/2014 

2.5 Develop Preliminary Adaptive Production 
Management Alternatives  Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 7/15/2014 

2.6 Develop a Presentation Summarizing 
Preliminary Program Elements Presentation file 10/15/2014 

2.7 
Review Program Elements with SJBA 
Board, Other Stakeholders, DPH, SWRCB 
and the RWQCB 

Technical presentations, handouts, 
workshop summaries 10/15/2014 

3 - Evaluate Feasibility of All Program Elements 

  
  
  
  
  

3.1 Evaluate Groundwater Extraction Barrier 
Program Element Alternatives Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 1/15/2015 

3.2 Evaluate Storm and Recycled Water 
Recharge Program Element Alternatives Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 1/15/2015 

3.3 Evaluate and Refine Adaptive 
Management Alternatives Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 4/15/2015 

3.4 Develop a Presentation Summarizing 
Preliminary Program Elements Presentation file 1/15/2015 

Page 161 of 210



 Exhibit A 

Agreement No. 139835 Page 13 of 16 DRAFT 2013 FAF PROGRAM AGREEMENT  

Task/Subtask Deliverables Submittal 
Due Date 

3.5 
Review Task 3 Results with SJBA Board, 
Other Stakeholders, DPH, SWRCB and the 
RWQCB 

Technical presentations, handouts, 
workshop summaries 7/15/2015 

4.  Develop Implementation Plan 

  
  
  

4.1 
Identify Potential Habitat and 
Environmental Opportunities for the 
Project Alternatives 

Technical Memorandum 10/15/2015 

4.2 Develop Phasing and Monitoring Plans Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 10/15/2015 
4.3 Revise Cost Opinions Draft and Final Technical Memoranda 10/15/2015 

5. Prepare Project Report 

  
5.1 Prepare Admin Draft 

Detailed report outline produced at 
the conclusion of Task 2, and an 
Administrative Draft Technical Report 

10/15/2014, 
10/15/2015 

 5.2-
5.3 

Review Admin Draft with SJBA TAC, 
Prepare Draft Technical Report for Public 
Review and Distribute 

Draft Technical Report for Public 
Review 10/15/2015 

 5.4-
5.5 

Review Draft Technical Report with DPH 
and Regional Board Staffs, 
Finalize Technical Report 

Final Technical Report 1/15/2016 
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6.0      Cost Estimate 

Task No. Task Total 
Project Cost 

Maximum Cost to 
Metropolitan 

Task 1 Project Management $68,000 $34,000 

Task 2 Develop Preliminary Alternatives for Each 
Program Element $64,400 $32,200 

Task 3 Evaluate Feasibility of All Program Elements $162,400 $81,200 

Task 4 Develop Implementation Plan $47,000 $23,500 

Task 5 Prepare Project Report $58,200 $29,100 

Grand Total $400,000 $200,000 
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7.0      Schedule 

The following illustrates the expected quarterly progress schedule per task.  The costs shown represent estimated costs to Metropolitan. 

Note: A minimum 25% of eligible reimbursable costs will be withheld per invoice until a final report (due 2/1/2016) is accepted by 
Metropolitan. 

Post-project reporting to Metropolitan is not shown on this schedule, but should be submitted upon request by Metropolitan one 
year following Metropolitan’s acceptance of the Final Report. 

San Juan Basin Groundwater and Desalination Optimization Program 
Start- 
Dec 

Jan- 
Mar 

Apr- 
Jun 

Jul- 
Sep 

Oct- 
Dec 

Jan- 
Mar 

Apr- 
Jun 

Jul- 
Sep 

Oct- 
Dec 

Jan- 
Mar 

2013 2014 2015 2016 
Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 

Task Task Name 

1 Project Management $34,000 

2 Develop Preliminary Alternatives for Each Program Element $32,200 

3 Evaluate Feasibility of All Program Elements $81,200 

4 Develop Implementation Plan $23,500 

5 Prepare Project Report $29,100 
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Reporting Schedule 
• Progress Report 2013 Q4 (Start – December 2013) .................................. January 15, 2014 
• Progress Report 2014 Q1 (January 2014 – March 2014) ............................... April 15, 2014 
• Progress Report 2014 Q2 (April 2014 – June 2014) ......................................... July 15, 2014 
• Progress Report 2014 Q3 (July 2014 – September 2014) ......................... October 15, 2014 
• Progress Report 2014 Q4 (October 2014 – December 2014) ................... January 15, 2015  
• Progress Report 2015 Q1 (January 2015 – March 2015) ..............................  April 15, 2015 
• Progress Report 2015 Q2 (April 2015 – June 2015) ......................................... July 15, 2015 
• Progress Report 2015 Q3 (July 2015 – September 2015) ......................... October 15, 2015 
• Progress Report 2015 Q4 (October 2015 – December 2015) ................... January 15, 2016 
• Final Report ............................................................................................... February 1, 2016 
• Progress Report 2016 Q1 (January 2016 – March 2016) ............................... April 15, 2016 
• Post-Project Update Report ........................................................................... April 15, 2017 

 

Page 165 of 210



Agreement No. 139835 Page 1 of 2 DRAFT 2013 FAF PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

Exhibit B – Sample Invoice BILL TO 
INVOICEMetropolitan Water District of Southern California 

Accounts Payable Section 
P.O. Box 54153 
Los Angeles, CA 90054-0153 
AGENCY NAME INVOICE DATE INVOICE PERIOD 

ADDRESS PROJECT NAME 

CONTACT CONTACT PHONE AGREEMENT NUMBER 

MAXIMUM AWARD AMOUNT AMOUNT PREVIOUSLY INVOICED AWARD AMOUNT REMAINING 

ITEMIZED EXPENSES 

TASK DETAILED DESCRIPTION  
(e.g., consultant costs and hours, materials and supplies, lab costs, etc.) COST 

TOTAL COSTS 

TOTAL ELIGIBLE REIMBURSABLE COSTS (UP TO 50% OF TOTAL COSTS) 

WITHHOLDING (25%) 

TOTAL REIMBURSABLE REQUEST (UP TO 37.5% OF TOTAL COSTS) 

BY SIGNING THIS INVOICE, AGENCY CERTIFIES THAT WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN IS AN ACCURATE AND CORRECT RECORD OF SERVICES 
PERFORMED FOR METROPOLITAN UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND THIS WORK HAS NOT BEEN BILLED ON ANY OTHER CLIENT OR PROJECT 
PARTNER INVOICES. 

PROJECT MANAGER 
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BILL TO  

BUDGET 

PROJECT NAME INVOICE 
PERIOD 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
Accounts Payable Section 
P.O. Box 54153 
Los Angeles, CA 90054-0153 

  

AGREEMENT 
NUMBER 

 

        

A B C D E F G H 

TASK 
CUMULATIVE COSTS 
THROUGH PREVIOUS 

QUARTER  

TOTAL COSTS 
FOR CURRENT 

QUARTER 

CURRENT QUARTER’S 
ELIGIBLE REIMBURSABLE 

COSTS (UP TO 50%) 

CUMULATIVE ELIGIBLE 
REIMBURSABLE COSTS 

TO DATE 

TOTAL AWARD 
AMOUNT 

REMAINING 
AWARD 

BALANCE 

PERCENT 
COMPLETE 

   
     

   
     

   
     

   
     

TOTAL         

 

Description of the Example Budget Table Columns: 

A. Task number and name 
B. Cumulative total Project costs through the previous quarter (does not include current quarter’s costs) 
C. Total Project costs for the current quarter 
D. Eligible reimbursable costs for the current quarter (up to 50% of the total Project cost of the task for the current quarter).  Example: D  =  C  x  0.50 
E. Cumulative eligible reimbursable costs to date (includes the current quarter’s reimbursable costs).  Do not subtract out Metropolitan withholding. 
F. Total award amount per task as established in Exhibit A (Scope of Work, Costs, and Schedule) of the Agreement 
G. Remaining award balance.  G  =  F  -  E 
H. Percent complete.  H  =  E  ÷  F 
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Exhibit C: Quarterly Progress Report Format 

Agency shall include, at minimum, the following items in the Quarterly Progress Reports. 

1. Cover Letter

Provide a brief description of the submittal, including the amount invoiced in the respective
invoice period, a list of items being submitted, and contact information.

The letter must be signed and include the following language:

“I am informed and believe that the information contained in this report is true and that the
supporting data is accurate and complete.”

2. Quarterly Progress Report

2.1 Report Status
a) Describe work performed during the quarter, by task.
b) Describe major accomplishments, such as:

i. Tasks achieved
ii. Milestones met

iii. Meetings held or attended
iv. Press release, etc.

c) Where applicable, describe how the activities carried out differed from the plans
outlined in the Project Scope of Work.  Identify any problems encountered in the
performance of the work under this Agreement, and how these matters were
addressed.

d) If the quarter’s objectives were not met, explain why and how these goals will be
approached for the next reporting period.

2.2 Cost Information 
a) Identify costs incurred during the quarter by Agency and each partnering/supporting

entity working on the Project. 
b) Discuss how the actual budget is progressing in comparison to the latest Project

budget.  Justify any differences that occurred, identifying budget impacts and/or 
problems encountered, and describe how these matters will be addressed for the next 
reporting period. 

c) Provide a revised budget, by task, if changed from the latest Project budget.

2.3 Schedule Information 
a) Provide a Project schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress from the

latest schedule. 
b) Discuss how the actual schedule is progressing in comparison to the latest Project

schedule.  Justify any differences that occurred, identifying schedule impacts and/or 
problems encountered, and describe how these matters will be addressed for the next 
reporting period. 

c) Provide a revised schedule, by task, if changed from the latest Project schedule.
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Exhibit D: Final Report Format 

Agency shall include, at minimum, the following items in the Final Report. 

1. Cover Letter
Provide a brief description of the submittal, including the total amount of funds disbursed, a list of
items being submitted, and contact information.

The letter must be signed and include the following language:

“I am informed and believe that the information contained in this report is true and that the
supporting data is accurate and complete.”

2. Final Report
2.1 Executive Summary

a) Briefly summarize the content of the main report.

2.2 Introduction 
a) Provide an overview of the work performed and accomplishments achieved throughout the

duration of the Project. 
b) Briefly describe the findings of the study.
c) Describe the role/involvement of each partnering/supporting entity and their relationship to

the Project.

2.3 Cost Summary 
a) Include a summary of the costs incurred and of funds disbursed throughout the duration of

the Project. 
b) Provide a comparison between the planned budget in the Agreement and the actual budget.

Justify any differences that occurred, identifying budget impacts and/or problems 
encountered, and how these matters were addressed. 

 2.3 Schedule Summary 
a) Include a summary of all tasks accomplished throughout the duration of the Project.
b) Provide a comparison between the planned schedule in the Agreement and the actual

schedule.  Justify any differences that occurred, identifying schedule impacts and/or problems
encountered, and how these matters were addressed.

2.4 Project Results and Analysis 
a) Describe and provide an analysis of the Project results and findings in detail.
b) Were the Project goals and objectives as proposed achieved?  Explain.
c) Discuss any major problems that occurred in meeting the Project goals and objectives,

including how, and if, they were resolved.
d) Explain how the findings of the Project can be applied to other areas of the region.  What

types of obstacles, if any, would be anticipated before implementation/application can occur,
and how could these matters be addressed?

2.5 Conclusion 
a) Describe lessons learned.
b) Describe the next steps of the Project (e.g., applicability of the results, topics that may require

additional research, new programs that should be developed, policy amendments, etc.).
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Exhibit E: Post-Project Update Report Format 

Agency shall include, at minimum, the following items in the Post-Project Update Report. 

1. Accomplishments and Applicability
a) What has been accomplished since the submittal of the Final Report?  How have the

Project findings/results of the Final Report been applied/implemented (e.g., regional
application of results, pilot study results used for full-scale implementation,
additional research performed, impacts on regulations/legislation, technical
advances, etc.)?

b) Discuss new information obtained during this reporting period, and how this
knowledge will further future efforts.

c) If applicable, provide additional data obtained since the submittal of the Final Report
(e.g., pilot project water quality data, etc.).

2. Next Steps
a) Describe specific plans, if any, for continuing work on this Project or related projects

(e.g., what questions will be investigated, what programs will be developed, etc.).
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1.0 Project Objective 
 
The project analyzes options for sustainable, long-term use of an impaired watershed that is 
typical to Southern California. Without adaptive management and expanded recharge of the 
watershed there is limited opportunity for production of potable water. The watershed has a 
stream morphology that extends offshore and currently the aquifer is underutilized. The project 
is an innovative approach not generally used on a small groundwater basin, using the tools that 
have historically been applied to larger basins and incorporating this approach with the goal of 
producing a new sustainable water supply. 
 
2.0 Background Information 
 
Many of the small groundwater basins within The Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (Metropolitan) service area have the following attributes: limited yield, limited storage, 
natural and anthropogenic contamination sources, chronically impaired water, and overlying 
lands that are completely developed. The classic approach to utilizing these small basins is to 
harvest the groundwater at its sustainable yield and rely on imported water to meet demands in 
excess of the underlying groundwater. The San Juan Basin in South Orange County is typical of 
these marginalized basins. In its current state, the San Juan Basin: can sustain on average 
about 9,300 acre-ft/yr (afy) of production, which will range from about 7,700 to about 11,200 afy, 
limited by hydrology and water in storage; has a storage capacity of about 40,000 acre-ft (af) 
and currently has about 27,000 af in storage; has impaired groundwater with a TDS 
concentration of about 2,200 mg/L; has both natural and anthropogenic degradation sources; 
and very high concentrations of iron and manganese. The near term production goal is about 
11,400 afy, and thus the Basin, under its current management scheme, is projected to 
chronically fail to meet the production needs of the local agencies. Currently, groundwater 
desalters are used to treat the groundwater that is produced for municipal uses.  
 
The program elements contain the efforts to develop practical spatial and temporal groundwater 
production plans based on storage conditions that are related to production, natural hydrologic 
variability, artificial recharge, and prevailing Department of Public Health (DPH) and Basin Plan 
requirements. There are also overlying producers that may have to recycled and/or municipal 
water to enable the implementation of the proposed program. 
 
3.0 Project Description 
 
The 2013 San Juan Basin Groundwater and Facilities Master Plan (SJBGFMP) is being 
developed in a stakeholder process to meet the water management goals of the SJBA and 
other stakeholders. The 2013 SJBGFMP proposes a novel and unprecedented approach to 
aggressively manage the San Juan Creek Basin that will result in a sustainable increase in 
Basin production to over 20,000 afy – an increase of over 100 percent. This is proposed to be 
accomplished by: the construction and operation of a seawater extraction barrier near the 
coast where San Juan Creek discharges into the Pacific Ocean; new stormwater recharge 
in and possibly adjacent to San Juan Creek and the Arroyo Trabuco; seasonal recharge of 
tertiary-treated recycled water; and managed groundwater production and treatment. The 
expanded  yield  developed  from  the  2013  SJBGFMP  will  be  used  by  the  local  
water agencies  to  reduce  their demand on imported water and to improve local reliability.   
The program elements of the 2013 SJBGFMP and the process under which they were 
developed can be exported to many of the small impaired groundwater basins in the 
Metropolitan service area. The program elements of the 2013 SJBGFMP and the scope of work 
for this study are described below. 
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Conduct Groundwater Modeling Studies for Proposed Seawater Extraction Barrier.  The 
2013 SJBGFMP  includes  a  seawater  extraction  barrier  that  will  prevent  seawater  
intrusion  and provide up to 4,000 acre-ft/yr of potable water.  The extraction wells will be 
located between the coast and Stonehill Drive with a treatment plant possibly being co-located 
at the existing SCWD groundwater treatment plant.  The scope of work herein is to conduct 
groundwater modeling studies, utilizing a recently (2013) calibrated model of the Lower San 
Juan Basin, to investigate possib le extraction barrier well locations, sustainable production 
rates, and projected salinity concentrations. A facilities and operating plan will be prepared 
along with cost estimates. The analysis will apply to similar stream morphology that extends 
offshore and currently may be underutilized. 
 
Conduct Hydraulic Investigations to Increase Stormwater Recharge.   The 2013 SJBGFMP 
includes  in-stream  stormwater  recharge  using  either  “T”  and  “L”  levees,  as  utilized  by the  
Orange County Water District (OCWD); rubber dams for in-stream recharge; and rubber dams 
for in-stream recharge and diversion to off-stream recharge facilities.  The increase in recharge 
anticipated by the “T” and “L” levees alternative could range from 500 to 2,000 afy and for the 
rubber dam alternative could range from 1,000 to 4,000 afy. San Juan Creek and the Arroyo 
Trabuco have been listed as habitat for Steelhead Trout and the stream bottom may have other 
habitat values. The  scope  of  work  herein  is  to  conduct  a  hydraulic  investigation  to  refine  
the “T”  and  “L”  levees  alternative, develop hydraulic and fish passage requirements for both 
alternatives, and refine the stormwater recharge estimates for all three alternatives.     
Groundwater modeling, using a recently developed groundwater model, will be done to assess 
the groundwater basin response, mounding, and the need to revise groundwater production 
plans to accommodate new recharge. A facilities and operating plan will be prepared along with 
a cost estimate. The data developed may be utilized in other streambed applications in 
urbanized areas. 
 
Conduct Hydraulic Investigations to Recycled Water Recharge.  The 2013 SJBGFMP 
includes in-stream recycled water recharge using seasonally constructed ponds along San 
Juan Creek or rubber dams. The recycled water recharge anticipated by the SJBGFMP 
could ramp up from an initial 2,000 afy and eventually reach about 10,000 afy. The rubber 
dam alternative used for stormwater recharge could also be utilized for recycled water    
recharge if constructed. This program element will have the same habitat challenges as the 
stormwater recharge program element.  The scope of work herein is to conduct a hydraulic 
investigation to refine the layout and operation of the temporary seasonal recharge ponds, 
develop hydraulic and fish passage requirements for both alternatives, and refine the 
recycled water recharge estimates for both alternatives. Groundwater modeling, using a 
recently developed groundwater model, will be completed to assess the groundwater basin 
response, mounding, and the need to revise groundwater production plans to accommodate 
the new recharge. Recycled water distribution system retrofits for irrigation  purposes  in  
urban  areas  of  Southern  California  may  be  difficult  and costly, the Project recharge 
analysis may be applicable for beneficial indirect use analysis. A facilities and operating 
plan for recycled water will be prepared along with cost estimates. 
 
Develop Adaptive Production Management.  The implementation of the extraction barrier and 
recharge program elements will change the location, magnitude, and timing of recharge in the 
basin. Existing groundwater production and treatment facilities will have to be modified to 
maximize  the  new  yield,  to  ensure  there  is  groundwater  storage  capacity  to  accept  the 
recharge, to minimize potential for liquefaction, continue to protect the health of the public 
and to ensure maximum beneficial use of the produced water. This program element contains 
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the efforts to develop practical spatial and temporal groundwater production plans based on 
storage conditions that are related to production, natural hydrologic variability, artificial 
recharge, and prevailing DPH and Basin Plan requirements. There are also overlying 
producers that may have to convert to recycled and or municipal water to enable the 
implementation of the 2013 SJBGFMP. The scope of work for this program element includes: 
groundwater modeling to develop spatial and temporal groundwater production plans tied to 
groundwater storage, underground residence time for recycled water prior to production, and 
recycled water contribution; expected groundwater treatment requirements to produce potable 
water; and the water type and cost to replace the groundwater currently used by overlying 
producers.  A reconnaissance-level Title 22 engineering assessment will be prepared pursuant 
to the existing draft Title 22 regulations for a groundwater recycled reuse project. A facilities 
and operating plan will be prepared along with cost estimates. The updated facilities and 
operation plan will include the locations of new wells, raw water conveyance, treatment 
facilities, product water conveyance, and the phasing of these facilities as recycled water 
recharge is ramped up from 2,000 to 10,000 afy.  The results of the work can be transferred to 
other similar situated basins in Southern California. 
 
Participating Entities 
 
Under Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC), the following agencies are 
participating in the project: 
 
• San Juan Basin Authority (SJBA), which is a joint powers authority.  The San Juan 

Basin has a drainage area of over 111,000 acres and includes Oso Creek, Trabuco 
Creek, Horno Creek, Chiquita Canyon, Canada Gobernadora and Bell Canyon. The 
SJBA is designed to carry out and oversee water resource development of the San 
Juan Basin. The SJBA is comprised of the following member agencies: 

 
o Santa Margarita Water District (SMWD) 
o Moulton Miguel Water District (MNWD) 
o South Coast Water District (SCWD) 
o City of San Juan Capistrano (CSJC) 

 
In addition, the following entities will provide an assessment and input on regulatory and 
feasibility issues with the project: 
 
• State  of  California  Department  of  Public  Health,  Division  of  Drinking  Water  

and Environmental Management District Engineer has discussed the project with the 
proponents and will be included on the technical advisory team to review the project 
and groundwater recharge relative to of current and proposed regulations 

 
• National Water Research Institute (NWRI) has been involved in similar projects in other 

areas of California and the southwest involving groundwater recharge of recycled water. 
In addition to efforts to review key regulatory issues concerning recycled water, NWRI 
and SJBA have the opportunity for development of a Blue Ribbon Panel to conduct 
a peer review of the project scope and findings. 
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SAN JUAN BASIN AUTHORITY  
FOUNDATIONAL ACTIONS FUNDING PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 
 

This Foundational Actions Funding Program Agreement for the San Juan Basin Authority 
(“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the ___ of January 2014 by and between the Municipal 
Water District of Orange County (MWDOC and the San Juan Basin Authority (SJBA).  MWDOC 
and SJBA may be collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually as a “Party.”   
 
Section 1.  Recitals. 
 
A. On behalf of SJBA, MWDOC recently submitted a proposal to the Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California (“Metropolitan”), through Metropolitan’s Foundational Actions 
Funding Program (“FAF Program”) for funding of a project entitled “San Juan Basin Groundwater 
and Desalination Optimization Program (the “Study”).   

 
B. MWDOC is a public agency member of Metropolitan and applied for the FAF Program 
funding for the Study on behalf of SJBA.   
 
C. The objective of the Study is to analyze options for sustainable, long-term use of an 
impaired watershed that is typical to Southern California. Without adaptive management and 
expanded recharge of the watershed there is limited opportunity for production of potable water. 
The watershed has a stream morphology that extends offshore and currently the aquifer is 
underutilized. The project is an innovative approach not generally used on a small basin, it takes 
the tools that have historically been applied to larger basins and incorporates them with the goal 
of producing a new sustainable water supply.   
 
D. In November 2013, Metropolitan notified MWDOC that the Metropolitan Board of 
Directors authorized funding through its FAF Program for the Study for an amount not to exceed 
$200,000.  
 
E. MWDOC plans to enter into an agreement with Metropolitan regarding the FAF Program 
for the Study concurrent with the execution of this Agreement to initiate work prior to January 31, 
2014.  A copy of the Metropolitan Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Metropolitan 
Agreement”). 
 
F. SJBA will provide funds in the amount of $200,000 to match the Metropolitan funds and, 
through this Agreement, intends to administer the Study and assume all of the obligations, 
responsibilities, and liabilities imposed on MWDOC in the Metropolitan Agreement. 
 
I. This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions by which the Parties will proceed 
with the Study, including the roles, responsibilities, and financial obligations of each Party. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, 
the Parties agree as follows:  
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Section 2.  Study Responsibilities  
 
A. SJBA shall carry out the Study as described in the Scope of Work, Cost and Schedule set 
forth in Exhibit B.   
 
B. SJBA shall provide the Study deliverables to MWDOC and Metropolitan according to the 
schedule set forth in Exhibit B. 
 
Section 3.  Agreement Term  
 
A. This Agreement shall be effective on the effective date of the Metropolitan Agreement 
with MWDOC and the term shall be through June 30, 2017, or when all of the Parties’ 
obligations under this Agreement and the Metropolitan Agreement have been fully satisfied, 
whichever occurs earlier. Extensions of time to complete all or portions of the Study, including 
any required deliverables, shall be requested in writing by SJBA and may be authorized by 
MWDOC only if Metropolitan agrees to a corresponding extension of the Metropolitan 
Agreement.  Any written authorization for an extension of time shall be attached to and 
incorporated into this Agreement. 
 
B. This Agreement may be terminated by either MWDOC or by SJBA with or without cause 
upon 30 days written notice to the other.  MWDOC’s only obligation in the event of termination 
will be payment of approved invoices in conformity with this Agreement and the Metropolitan 
Agreement up to and including the effective date of termination.  Notwithstanding the previous 
sentence, MWDOC shall have no obligation to pay any invoices to SJBA if they are not 
approved by Metropolitan.  In the event of termination, SJBA is responsible for providing all 
information, reports, data and consultant and other documents available that were developed up 
to the point of Termination to MWDOC.   
 
C. Failure of SJBA to submit progress reports or the final report to MWDOC within the 
timeframe established in Exhibit B or any extension of time authorized in accordance with 
Section 3(A) of this Agreement will be a breach of this Agreement and may result in termination 
of the agreement. 
 
Section 4.  Responsibilities and Ownership 
 
A. SJBA shall be responsible for all necessary services and materials for the Study 
implementation including, but not limited to, the hiring of consultants and others to conduct the 
work, Study administration, data collection, and reporting, and completion of the final report. 
 
B. SJBA shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations and 
is solely responsible for any such obligations, including, without limitation, compliance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act.  
 
C. SJBA shall be responsible for the design, implementation, personnel, equipment, and 
supplies, and all capital and operating costs related to and incurred by the Study.  All materials 
and equipment necessary to implement the Study are the exclusive property of SJBA.  MWDOC 
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shall have no ownership, right, title, security interest, or other interest in any Study facilities, 
materials, or equipment, nor any rights, duties, responsibilities for operation or maintenance 
thereof pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
D. The following language must be included in all contracts entered into by SJBA with any 
subcontractors or consultants regarding completion of the Study: 
 

i. “(Consultant or Responsible Party) agrees at their sole cost and expense to 
protect, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Municipal Water District of 
Orange County and the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, and 
their respective Boards of Directors, officers, representatives, agents, and 
employees from and against any and all claims and liability of any kind 
(including, but not limited to, any claims or liability for injury or death to any 
person, damage to property, natural resources or to the environment, or water 
quality problems) that arise out of Consultant’s actions or relate to the approval, 
construction, operation, repair or ownership of the Study.  Such indemnity shall 
include all damages and losses related to any claim made, whether or not a court 
action is filed, and shall include attorney’s fees, administrative and overhead 
costs, engineering and consulting fees and all other costs related to or arising out 
of such claim or asserted liability”.    

 
ii. “(Consultant or Responsible Party) will maintain the types and levels of insurance 

in compliance with the requirements in the San Juan Basin Authority Foundational 
Actions Funding Program Agreement entered into between the Municipal Water 
District of Orange County and the San Juan Basin Authority. 

 
iii. “All intellectual property developed pursuant to this Agreement is owned by 

MWDOC.  This intellectual property includes, but is not limited to, all inventions, 
patents, data, design, drawings, specifications, raw results, computer programs, 
final report, as well as any other presentations, reports, findings or related 
materials developed during the Study.  All results produced in the performance of 
the Agreement may be released to the public”. 

 
Section 5.  Indemnity 
 
A. The SJBA agrees at their sole cost and expense to protect, indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless MWDOC and Metropolitan, and their respective Boards of Directors, officers, 
representatives, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims and liability of any 
kind (including, but not limited to, any claims or liability for injury or death to any person, 
damage to property, natural resources or to the environment, or water quality problems) that arise 
out of the SJBA’s actions or relate to the Study.  Such indemnity shall include all damages and 
losses related to any claim made, whether or not a court action is filed, and shall include 
attorney’s fees, administrative and overhead costs, engineering and consulting fees and all other 
costs related to or arising out of such claim or asserted liability.    
 
Section 6.    Intellectual Property and Use of Materials 
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A. All intellectual property developed pursuant to this Agreement is owned by MWDOC.  
This intellectual property includes, but is not limited to, all inventions, patents, data, design, 
drawings, specifications, raw results, computer programs, final report, as well as any other 
presentations, reports, findings or related materials developed during the Study.  All results 
produced in the performance of the Agreement may be released to the public. [This exact 
language is required to be included pursuant to the Metropolitan Agreement.] 
 
B. MWDOC grants to SJBA a nonexclusive license, at no cost, to use the intellectual property 
developed in the course of the work performed under this Agreement by any of the Parties or any 
contractor and consultant working on the Study as described in Exhibit B. 
 
C. SJBA shall notify MWDOC in writing of all intellectual property conceived or developed 
in the course of the work performed under this Agreement. 
 
D. When requested by MWDOC, or upon termination of this Agreement, SJBA shall furnish 
a copy of all documents and other tangible media containing intellectual property developed by 
SJBA during the course of this Agreement, including prototypes and computer programs.  
 
Section 7.  Payment 
 
A. MWDOC’s payment for the Study is not to exceed $200,000, or fifty (50) percent of the 
total cost expended per task as established in Exhibit B, whichever is less.  Notwithstanding the 
previous sentence, MWDOC will not be responsible for any payments of any amount in 
connection with this Agreement unless such payments are first approved and reimbursed to 
MWDOC by Metropolitan.  All payments required to be made by MWDOC to SJBA pursuant to 
this Agreement are contingent upon such payments being first approved by Metropolitan and 
reimbursed to MWDOC by Metropolitan.  SJBA is responsible for any and all costs in excess of 
the payments approved by Metropolitan.   
 
B. SJBA must submit quarterly progress reports and associated quarterly invoices to MWDOC 
as described in Section 8 below.  Twenty five (25) percent of eligible reimbursable costs shall be 
withheld per invoice until a final report is submitted to MWDOC and accepted by Metropolitan.  
The SJBA’ invoices shall include at a minimum the information requested in the Sample Invoice 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C. Invoices shall itemize allowable expenses and include 
receipts for which reimbursement is sought. Attached receipts should itemize each cost and 
provide descriptive information so that expenses are separately identified.  The final invoice, 
including any requests for release of retention, shall be clearly marked “FINAL INVOICE.” 
 
C. In-kind services are not eligible for reimbursement and shall not be included in any 
invoices to MWDOC.  In-kind services include, but are not limited to, work performed by staff 
of MWDOC and SJBA, and related expenses (e.g. travel, overhead, etc.). 
 
D. All invoices related to the Study must be submitted by SJBA to MWDOC by April 5, 
2016, to be considered for payment under the provisions of this Agreement.  Invoices received 
after April 5, 2016 will not be paid unless MWDOC obtains from Metropolitan, an extension of 
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time, in writing, to complete the work and submit MWDOC’s invoices to Metropolitan pursuant 
to the Metropolitan Agreement.    
 
E. Invoices to MWDOC will be paid by MWDOC to SJBA within 10 days after MWDOC’s 
receipt of payment from Metropolitan for the invoice, and only in the amount approved and paid 
by Metropolitan to MWDOC. 
 
Section 8.  Reporting Requirements 
 
A. The SJBA shall submit to MWDOC quarterly progress reports with the associated 
invoices by the 5th of January, April, July, and October for the preceding quarter.  The progress 
reports shall include, at a minimum, the items listed in Progress Report Format, which is attached 
to this Agreement as Exhibit D.  SJBA shall document all activities and expenditures in progress 
reports.  The submittal of these reports is a requirement for initial and continued disbursement of 
funds.     
 
B. SJBA shall prepare and submit to MWDOC, upon completion of the Study, a Final 
Report, which shall include, at a minimum, the items listed in Final Report Format, which is 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit E.  The Final Report shall be provided in hard copy and 
digital format prior to final payment of funds retained by MWDOC. 
 
C. Upon request by MWDOC, SJBA shall prepare and submit to MWDOC a Post-Study 
Update Report one year following the acceptance of the Final Report.  The Post-Study Update 
Report shall provide a summary of related post-funding Study activities and include, as a 
minimum, the items listed in the Post-Study Update Report Format, which is attached to this 
Agreement as E.   
 
Section 9.  Verification.   
The SJBA shall be responsible for verifying completion of any consultant’s or subcontractor’s 
work in accordance with the Scope of Work as shown in Exhibit B. 
 
Section 10.  Representations.   
Each Party represents that it is represented by legal counsel, that it has reviewed this Agreement 
and agrees that the Agreement is legally enforceable. 
 
Section 11.  Insurance.   
SJBA shall comply with the insurance requirements imposed on “Agency” in the Metropolitan 
Agreement (“Insurance Requirements”) and as more particularly described below.   
 
A. Agency shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement a program of 
commercial insurance or documented self-insurance program to protect against claims for injuries 
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder by SJBA, their agents, representatives, or employees. 
 
B. SJBA shall sustain proof of insurance coverage in an updated ACORD form, attached as 
Exhibit F to the Metropolitan Agreement (Agency Proof of Insurance Coverage), and incorporated 
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by reference, during the term of this Agreement.  Failure to provide the updated insurance ACORD 
form, or an equivalent form provided by the ACWA JPIA,  annually to MWDOC may result in the 
withholding of SJBA’ invoice payment.   
 
C. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 
 1.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

i.  Insurance Services Office Commercial Liability coverage (occurrence Form 
CG00001). 
 
ii. Insurance Service Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, 
Code 1, (any auto). 
 
iii. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance. 
 
iv. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to 
the Agency’s profession.  Architects’ and engineers’ coverage is to be endorsed to 
include contractual liability. 

 
D. Minimum Limits of Insurance 
 
 1.  The SJBA shall maintain limits no less than: 
 

i.  General Liability:  General Liability: Including operations, products and 
completed operations as applicable, $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 
personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance 
or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to the project or location, or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 
 
ii. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage. 
 
iii. Workers’ Compensation: Shall be furnished in accordance with statutory 
requirements of the State of California and shall include Employer’s Liability 
coverage of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 
 
iv. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per claim, 
with a $2 million aggregate. 

 
E. Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by MWDOC. At the option of MWDOC, either: the insurer 
shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respect to MWDOC, its 
officers officials, employees, agents and volunteers; or the SJBA shall provide a financial 
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guarantee satisfactory to MWDOC guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, 
claim administration and defense expenses. 
  
F. Verification of Coverage: SJBA shall furnish MWDOC with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements and 
certificates are to be received and approved by MWDOC prior to the commencement of work. 
MWDOC reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, 
including endorsements effecting coverage, and coverage binders required by these specifications 
at any time. 
 
G. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with California admitted insurers with 
a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII.  A non-admitted carrier may be used with 
prior approval from MWDOC, with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A: X. An exception to 
these standards will be made for the State Compensation Insurance Fund when not specifically 
rated.  SJBA may participate in and provide evidence of pooled equivalent coverage through 
joint powers insurance agency authorities such as CSRMA or ACWA JPIA. 
 
H. General Liability and Automobile Liability Endorsements 
 

1.  The commercial general liability policy and automobile policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

 
i.  MWDOC and Metropolitan, their officers, officials, employees and agents are to 
be covered as insureds as respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of SJBA; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by SJBA. 
 
ii. For any claims related to this Study, SJBA’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance with respect to MWDOC and Metropolitan, and their officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
MWDOC and Metropolitan, their officers, officials, employees or agents shall be 
excess of SJBA’ insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
 
iii.  Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that 
coverage shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) says prior 
written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to 
MWDOC.   
 
iv. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence 
of the additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the 
additional insured would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the 
Civil Code. 

 
I. Other Endorsements and Insurance Provisions 
 

1.  All rights of subrogation under the property insurance policy (if any) have been waived 
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against MWDOC and Metropolitan. 
 
2.  The workers’ compensation insurer, agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against 
MWDOC and Metropolitan for injuries to employees of the insured (SJBA) resulting from 
work for MWDOC or Metropolitan or use of MWDOC or Metropolitan’s premises or 
facilities. 
 
3.  If General Liability, Pollution and/or any Asbestos Pollution Liability and/or 
professional liability or Errors & Omissions coverages are written on a claims-made form: 
 

i.  The “Retro Date” must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract or 
the beginning of contract work. 

 
ii. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-

made policy form with a “Retro Date” prior to the contract effective date, the SJBA must 
purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion 
of contract work. 

 
iii. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to MWDOC and 

Metropolitan for review. 
 

4.  Any consultants or subcontracts who contract with either of the SJBA in connection 
with performing work on the Study must maintain insurance in compliance with the 
requirements in this Agreement and must name MWDOC as an additional insured 
consistent with the requirements of Section 11 of this Agreement.  Any professional 
engineering firms conducting studies under Exhibit B of this Agreement shall provide 
evidence of Professional Errors & Omissions coverage meeting coverage amounts of 
$1,000,000 per claim, with a $2 million aggregate. 

 
Section 12.  Miscellaneous 
 
A. This Agreement may be amended by written mutual agreement executed by the Parties.  
Any alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement will not be valid unless made in writing 
and signed by all of the Parties.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties. 
 
B. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties and their 
respective successors.  This Agreement is not assignable by any Party in whole or in part. 
 
C. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, in 
whole or in part, such provision shall be modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it 
legal, valid, and enforceable, and the legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall 
not be affected thereby. 
 
D. This Agreement shall be deemed a contract under the laws of the State of California, and 
for all purposes will be interested in accordance with such laws.  The Parties hereby agree to 
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consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the state of California, and that the venue of 
any action brought hereunder will be in Los Angeles County, California.  
 
E. Notice.   Any notice, invoice, report, or payment made pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
sent to the Parties at their respective addresses shown below, including any notice that must be 
sent to Metropolitan. 
 
If to MWDOC: Municipal Water District of Orange County 
   18700 Ward St. 
   P.O. Box 20895 
   Fountain Valley, CA 92728 
   Attn:  General Manager 
   Email: rhunter@mwdoc.com 
 
If to SJBA:  San Juan Basin Authority  
   c/o Santa Margarita Water District 

26111 Antonio Pkwy 
Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688 

   Attn: Executive Director, SJBA 
   Email: Danf@smwd.com 
 
 
F. Counterparts.  This Agreement and any amendment hereto may be executed in two or 
more counterparts, and by each Party on a separate counterpart, each of which, when executed 
and delivered, shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument, with 
the same force and effect as through all signatures appeared on a single document. 
 
G. Signatures.  The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they 
have the legal capacity and authority to do so on behalf of their respective Agency. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date below. 
 
 
Date ______________  

 

By_________________________________ 
_______________________ 
Dan Ferons 
Executive Director 
SJBA 

Date _________________ 

 

By ___________________________             
Robert Hunter 
General Manager 
MWDOC 

                        
  
Approved as to Form: 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 

Page 182 of 210



 

55401.00000\8499687.1  

 
Date ________________________  
 
By: _________________________ 

          
General Counsel 

 

 
Date ________________________  
 
By: _________________________ 

      Russell G. Behrens  
 General Counsel 
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Budgeted (Y/N):  NA Budgeted amount:  NA Core _x_ Choice __ 

Action item amount:  NA Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

 

Item No. 6-5 
 

 
 
 

ACTION ITEM 
January 15, 2014  

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Administration & Finance Committee 
 (Directors Thomas, Barbre, Osborne) 
 
 Robert J. Hunter    
 General Manager 
 
 Staff Contact: Cathy Harris, Administrative Services Manager  
 
SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE DISTRICT’S RETIREE 

HEALTH AND MEDICAL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT PLAN  
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt the proposed resolution establishing the 
District’s Retiree Health and Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan, effective 
January 15, 2014; and implement the Plan accordingly.      
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee concurred with staff recommendation. 
 
 
DETAILED REPORT 
 
While reviewing the District’s Policy regarding Medical and Elective Health and Welfare 
Coverage Upon Retirement, the following was identified:  
 

• Retirees with a minimum of 10 consecutive years of full-time service 
and age 55 are eligible for medical coverage until they become eligible for 
Medicare.  Once the retiree becomes Medicare eligible, medical coverage is 
discontinued and the District reimburses the retiree, in an amount up to $1,800 
per calendar year, for a supplemental Medicare insurance policy and Medicare 
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Prescription Drug Insurance covering the retiree only.  The reimbursement by the 
District is made on a quarterly basis upon submission of proof of payment.  

 
Legal Counsel, Isabel Saffie, of BBK, advised that in order to treat the $1,800 retiree 
reimbursement as non-taxable (as MWDOC has been doing), in accordance with IRS 
guidelines, it is recommended the District adopt a Retiree Health and Medical Expense 
Reimbursement Plan.  Staff coordinated with Legal Counsel on the development of the 
attached resolution and reimbursement plan.      
 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is the Policy and Resolution.   
 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt the proposed resolution establishing the 
District’s Retiree Health and Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan, effective January 
15, 2014; and implement accordingly.          
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RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
APPROVING THE ADOPTION OF THE MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY RETIREE MEDICAL 
EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Water District of Orange County (“District”) desires to 
establish a health reimbursement arrangement to provide for the reimbursement of certain 
eligible medical expenses of certain eligible retirees; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed a proposed form of plan document prepared by 
Best Best & Krieger LLP, to establish a health reimbursement arrangement which allows 
participating retirees to exclude the value of medical benefits provided by the District from 
retirees’ income under Internal Revenue Code Section 105(b); and  

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the General Manager, or his or her designee, 
to execute the proposed plan document on behalf of the District, along with any future 
amendments that contain only non-substantive and/or administrative changes.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Municipal 
Water District of Orange County as follows: 

Section 1.  The District hereby adopts the Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Retiree Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan (“Plan”), effective as of January 15, 2014.   

Section 2.  The Board hereby authorizes the General Manager, or his or her designee, to 
duly execute the Plan on behalf of the District, along with any future amendments that contain 
only non-substantive and/or administrative changes. 

 
Said Resolution was adopted, on roll call, at a public meeting, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 ABSENT: 
 
I hereby certify the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No.    
adopted by the Board of Directors of Municipal Water District of Orange County at its meeting 
held on January 15, 2014.   

        
   , District Secretary  
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
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MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
RETIREE MEDICARE EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT PLAN 

The Employer hereby establishes the MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE 
COUNTY RETIREE MEDICARE EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT PLAN as of January 15, 2014, on 
the following terms and conditions. 

ARTICLE I 
TITLE AND PURPOSE 

The Plan is intended as a health reimbursement arrangement to provide reimbursement of 
eligible medical expenses.  The Employer intends that the Plan qualify as an accident and health plan 
within the meaning of Section 106 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) so that the Employer’s 
contributions on behalf of participating Retired Employees will be excludable from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes and Section 105 of the Code so that the benefits provided under the Plan 
are eligible for exclusion from the Participant’s income.   

ARTICLE II 
DEFINITIONS 

The following words and phrases as used herein shall have the following meanings, unless a 
different meaning is plainly required by the context.  Pronouns shall be interpreted so that the 
masculine pronoun shall include the feminine and the singular shall include the plural. 

2.1 Benefits.  “Benefits” means any amounts paid to or on behalf of a Participant 
for Eligible Medical Expenses. 

2.2 Code.  “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and the same as 
may be amended from time to time. 

2.3 Effective Date.  “Effective Date” shall mean January 15, 2014, the date this 
Plan first became effective. 

2.4 Eligible Medical Expenses.  “Eligible Medical Expenses” means amounts paid 
as premiums under Part B or Part D of Title XVIII of the Social Security Act, relating to medical and 
prescription drug insurance coverage for the aged, upon becoming eligible for Medicare, or for any 
supplemental Medicare insurance policy as further specified in Section 4.1.     

2.5 Employer.  “Employer” means the MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF 
ORANGE COUNTY, and any other organization which adopts this Plan with the consent of Employer, 
and any successor of such Employer electing to continue this Plan. 

2.6 Full-Time Service.  “Full-Time Service” means an average of 32 hours per 
week during the calendar year.   

2.7 Participant.  “Participant” means a Retired Employee who has satisfied the 
conditions for eligibility to participate in the Plan as set forth in Section 3.1. 
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2.8 Plan.  “Plan” means the Municipal Water District Of Orange County Retiree 
Medicare Expense Reimbursement Plan, described herein. 

2.9 Plan Administrator.  “Plan Administrator” or “Administrator” means the 
Employer.  The Human Resources Department shall be responsible for the administration of the Plan, 
including the delegation of various Plan responsibilities and duties; however, the Employer reserves 
the right to appoint any person or entity, including an employee of the Employer, to administer the 
Plan on its behalf. 

2.10 Plan Year.  “Plan Year” means each twelve-month period commencing each 
July 1 and ending on June 30. 

2.11 Retired Employee.  “Retired Employee” means an employee of the Employer 
who has retired from service with the Employer pursuant to the employee’s application for retirement 
through the California Public Employees’ Retirement System. 

2.12 Spouse.  “Spouse” means the person to whom the Participant is legally 
married but shall not include an individual legally separated from a Participant under a decree of legal 
separation.  Pursuant to the Supreme Court’s decision in U.S. v. Windsor, the term “Spouse” shall 
include both opposite sex and same sex Spouses.  The term “Spouse” shall also include a Participant’s 
registered domestic partner. 

ARTICLE III 
ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

3.1 Eligibility.  A Retired Employee who has attained age fifty-five (55) years 
and that has become eligible for Medicare shall be eligible to participate in the Plan provided he or she 
retires with a minimum of ten (10) but no more than twenty-five (25) consecutive years of Full-Time 
Service with the Employer.   

3.2 Commencement of Participation.  A Retired Employee shall automatically 
become a Participant in the Plan on the first day of the month immediately following the date upon 
which the eligibility requirements of Section 3.1 are satisfied.  Upon becoming a Participant, each 
individual shall for all purposes be deemed as having consented to the provisions of this Plan and to all 
amendments thereto.    

ARTICLE IV 
AVAILABLE BENEFITS AND FUNDING 

4.1 Provision of Benefits.  Benefits under this Plan shall take the form of 
reimbursement for the payment of premiums for a supplemental Medicare insurance policy and/or 
Medicare Part D coverage of the Participant only, in an amount not to exceed One Thousand Eight 
Hundred Dollars ($1,800.00) each calendar year.   

4.2 Source of Benefit Payments.  The Benefits provided herein shall be paid 
solely by the Employer; provided, however, that the Employer’s payments for each Participant under 
the Plan shall be limited to the amount of substantiated Eligible Medical Expenses incurred by the 
Participant under Section 4.1 which are properly submitted for reimbursement by the Participant in 
accordance with Section 5.3. 
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ARTICLE V 
PAYMENT OF BENEFITS 

5.1 Reimbursement of Eligible Medical Expenses.  A Participant must first submit 
a written claim to the Human Resources Department to receive reimbursement of his or her Eligible 
Medical Expenses in accordance with Sections 4.1 and 5.3.  Reimbursement shall be provided to a 
Participant only on a quarterly basis for the actual cost of Eligible Medical Expenses incurred while 
that individual is a Participant in the Plan and shall not exceed the amount of Benefits available to the 
Participant.  The Employer shall establish procedures which shall require the Participant to substantiate 
the payment of premiums for insurance coverage and/or enrollment in Medicare. 

5.2 Participant Accounts.  No money shall actually be allocated to any account(s) 
on behalf of Participants but shall be credited to a separate ledger account in the Participant’s name.  
Such amounts credited to a Participant’s account for any Plan Year shall be used only toward the 
reimbursement of the Participant’s Eligible Medical Expenses. 

5.3 Claims Procedures.   

(a) Written Claim.   Each Participant who desires to receive reimbursement 
under the Plan for his or her Eligible Medical Expenses shall submit a claim, within the time 
period specified in paragraph (b) below, on a form provided by the Employer, or responses to 
other supplementary factual requests, containing the following information: 

(1) the name of the person or persons on whose behalf Eligible 
Medical Expenses have been incurred; 

(2) the nature of the expenses so incurred; 

(3) the date of the expenses so incurred; 

(4) the amount of the requested reimbursement; and 

(5) that such expenses have not otherwise been paid through 
insurance or reimbursed from any other source. 

  As soon as is administratively feasible following the end of each month, 
the Plan Administrator or his or her designated claims administration representative shall 
review all the forms submitted by Participants during that month in accordance with the 
foregoing procedures and shall pay each Participant the Benefits which each Participant is 
entitled to receive under the Plan, in accordance with the Plan. 

(b) Time Limit for Submitting Claims.  No Eligible Medical Expense shall 
be reimbursed for any Plan Year unless the Participant submits a claim for such  reimbursement 
within ninety (90) days after the end of such Plan Year.   

(c) Claims Processing.  The Plan Administrator will review the claim and 
will advise the Participant of any Benefit to which he or she is entitled.  If a Participant believes 
he or she has not been reimbursed in accordance with the Plan or has not been advised of his or 
her Benefits, he or she may submit a written request to the Plan Administrator to provide either 
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an explanation of how Benefits are reimbursed or further information of his Benefits.  The Plan 
Administrator must respond to such a request within a reasonable time. 

   Additionally, the Plan Administrator will provide to every claimant, who 
is denied a claim for Benefits, a written notice stating in a format determined to be understood 
by the claimant: 

(1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; 

(2) specific reference to pertinent plan provisions on which the 
denial is based; 

(3) a description of any additional material or information necessary 
for the claimant to perfect the claim; and 

(4) an explanation of the claim review procedure set forth in 
Paragraph (d) below. 

(d) Claims Review.  Within sixty (60) days of receipt by a claimant of a 
notice denying a claim under Paragraph (a), the claimant or his or her duly authorized 
representative may request in writing a full and fair review of the claim by the Plan 
Administrator or by the Administrator which may be appointed by the Employer for that 
purpose.  The Plan Administrator may extend the sixty (60) day period where the nature of the 
benefit involved or other attendant circumstances make such extension appropriate.  In 
connection with such review, the claimant or his or her duly authorized representative may 
review pertinent documents and may submit issues and comments in writing.  The Plan 
Administrator or Administrator shall make a decision promptly, and not later than 60 days after 
the Plan Administrator’s receipt of a request for review, unless special circumstances (such as 
the need to hold a hearing, if the Administrator deems one necessary) require an extension of 
time for processing, in which case a decision shall be rendered as soon as possible, but not later 
than one hundred twenty (120) days after receipt of a request for review.  The decision on 
review shall be in writing and shall include specific reasons for the decision, written in a 
manner calculated to be understood by the claimant, and specific references to the pertinent 
Plan provisions on which the decision is based.  If the decision on review is not made within 
such period, the claim will be considered denied. 

ARTICLE VI 
ADMINISTRATION 

6.1 Administrator.  The Employer shall be the Plan Administrator of the Plan. 

6.2 Fiduciary.  The Employer shall be the fiduciary responsible for administration 
of the Plan.  The Employer may, however, delegate any of its powers or duties under the Plan in 
writing to any person or entity.  The delegate shall become the fiduciary for only that part of the 
administration which has been delegated by the Employer and any references to the Employer shall 
instead apply to the delegate.  However, if the Employer assigns any of the Employer’s responsibility 
to an employee of Employer, it will not be considered a delegation of Employer responsibility but 
rather how the Employer internally is assigning responsibility. 
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6.3 Rules of Administration.  The Employer may adopt such rules for 
administration of the Plan as it considers desirable, provided they do not conflict with the Plan, and 
may construe the Plan, correct defects, supply omissions and reconcile inconsistencies to the extent 
necessary to effectuate the Plan, and such action shall be conclusive.  Records of administration of the 
Plan shall be kept, and Participants and their beneficiaries may examine records pertaining directly to 
themselves. 

6.4 Services to the Plan.  The Employer may contract for legal, actuarial, 
investment advisory, medical accounting, clerical, claims administration and other services to carry out 
the Plan.  The costs of such services and other administrative expenses shall be paid by the Employer. 

6.5 Funding Policy.  The Employer may periodically, at its discretion, review and 
determine the funding policy of the Plan, with the advice of such experts as the Employer deems 
appropriate. 

6.6 Nondiscriminatory Operation.  The Plan is intended not to discriminate in 
favor of “highly compensated individuals” (as defined under Section 105(h) of the Code) as to 
eligibility to participate, contributions and benefits, and to comply in this respect with the requirements 
of the Code.  All rules, decisions and designations by the Employer and each administrative committee 
under the Plan shall be made in a nondiscriminatory manner, and persons similarly situated shall be 
treated alike. 

6.7 Liability of Administrative Personnel.  Neither the Employer, nor any of its 
employees, nor any provider of services under Section 6.4 herein, shall be liable for any loss due to an 
error or omission in administration of the Plan unless the loss is due to the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of the party to be charged or is due to the failure of the party to be charged to exercise a 
fiduciary responsibility, if one is owed, with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man acting in a like capacity and familiar with such 
matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. 

6.8 Use of Electronic Medium for Participant Notices.   

(a) Definition of Electronic Medium.  “Electronic Medium” means an 
electronic method of communication between the Plan Administrator (or its designated 
representative) and Employee thereby allowing each party to send and receive notices, 
elections and claims through the same medium.  The only form of electronic communication 
permitted by the Plan shall be via electronic mail on the Employer’s network or intranet, 
through an interactive website, or to a private e-mail address supplied to the Employer by the 
Employee for communication purposes.  The electronic medium must be designed so that the 
information provided is no less understandable to the receiving party than a written paper 
document.  The electronic medium shall be designed to alert the Employee, at the time a notice 
is provided, to the significance of the information in the notice (including identification of the 
subject matter of the notice), and provide any instructions needed to access the notice, in a 
manner than is readily understandable.  The electronic medium shall be designed to preclude 
any person, other than the appropriate individual, from making a Participant election or claim, 
or accessing individual participant account information.  

(b) Disclosure and Consent Requirements.   
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(1) Disclosure Statement.  Prior to electronically transmitting any 
consent or notice to the Employee, the Plan Administrator shall provide a statement which 
contains the following:  (i) informs the Employee of the right to receive a paper document of 
the notice or other Plan-related material either prior to or after giving consent to electronic 
transmission; (ii) informs the Employee of the right to withdraw his or her consent at any time 
and the procedures for withdrawal, including any conditions or consequences arising from such 
withdrawal; (iii) describes the scope and duration of the consent as it related to various plan 
transactions; (iv) describes the procedures for updating Employee contact information; and (v) 
describes the hardware or software requirements needed to access and retain the notice.  

(2) Consent.  The Plan Administrator shall be exempt from the 
consent requirements of Section 101(c) of the Electronic Signatures in Global and National 
Commerce Act (E-SIGN) provided the Electronic Medium used to provide notices and Plan-
related material is a medium that the Employee has the effective ability to access and the 
Employee is advised, each time a notice is transmitted, that he can request to receive the notice 
in paper form at no charge.  The form of Electronic Medium utilized by this Plan shall be 
through an interactive website requiring the Employee to register an e-mail address for 
communication purposes.   

(3) Changes in Hardware or Software Requirements.  In the event of 
any changes in the hardware or software requirements needed to access the Electronic Medium, 
the Plan Administrator, or its designated representative, shall provide a statement to each 
Employee of the revised requirements and the right to withdraw consent to receive electronic 
delivery of Plan-related materials without consequence. 

(c) Participant Claims.  The Plan Administrator, or its designated 
representative, shall be permitted to electronically distribute participant claims by Electronic 
Medium.  Each Employee who is provided with participation or claims information via 
Electronic Medium will also be informed by the Plan Administrator that he may receive a paper 
copy of the relevant documents upon request.  A participant election will not be treated as 
being made available to an individual if such individual cannot effectively access the Electronic 
Medium for purposes of making the claim or election.  A claim completed by an Employee via 
Electronic Medium shall be deemed as being provided in written form so long as the following 
requirements are satisfied: 

(1) The Employee has a reasonable opportunity to review, confirm, 
modify or rescind the terms of the claim before the claim is submitted; and 

(2) The Employee receives, within a reasonable time, a confirmation 
of the claim either through written paper form or by electronic mail (e-mail).  

(d) Timing and Content of Elections and Notices.  The provisions of this 
Section 6.8 shall in no way affect or alter the timing or content requirements applicable to each 
individual notice or document. 

ARTICLE VII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

7.1 Amendment and Termination.  The Employer may amend or terminate this 
Plan at any time by action of the Employer.  The Employer may amend or modify this Plan 
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retroactively to enable the Plan to provide non-taxable medical expense reimbursement benefits under 
Section 105 of the Code.  No amendment shall deprive any Participant or beneficiary of any benefit to 
which he is entitled under this Plan with respect to contributions previously made, and no amendment 
shall provide for the use of funds or assets other than for the benefit of Participants and their 
beneficiaries, except as may be specifically authorized by statute or regulation. 

7.2 Employment Relationship.  The Plan shall not be deemed to constitute a 
contract of reemployment between the Employer and any Participant or to be a consideration or an 
inducement for the reemployment of any Participant.  Nothing contained in this Plan shall be deemed 
to give any Participant or Employee the right to be retained in the service of the Employer. 

7.3 Alienation of Benefits.  No benefit under this Plan may be voluntarily or 
involuntarily assigned or alienated. 

7.4 Payments to Beneficiary.  Any benefits otherwise payable to a Participant 
following the date of death of such Participant shall be paid to his or her Spouse, or, if there is no 
surviving Spouse, to the Participant’s estate.  

7.5 Facility of Payment.  If the Employer deems any person incapable of 
receiving benefits to which he or she is entitled by reason of minority, illness, infirmity, or other 
incapacity, it may direct that payment be made directly for the benefit of such person or to any person 
selected by the Employer to disburse it, whose receipt shall be a complete acquittance therefor.  Such 
payments shall, to the extent thereof, discharge all liability of the Employer. 

7.6 Proof of Claim.  As a condition of receiving benefits under the Plan, any 
person may be required to submit whatever proof the Employer may require (either directly to the 
Employer or to any person delegated by it). 

7.7 Status of Benefits.  The Employer believes that this Plan is written in 
accordance with Section 105 of the Code and that it provides certain benefits to Participants which are 
free from Federal income tax under the Code.  This Plan has not been submitted to the Internal 
Revenue Service for approval and thus there can be and is no assurance that intended tax benefits will 
be available.  Any Participant, by accepting a benefit under this Plan, agrees to be liable for any tax 
plus interest that may be imposed with respect to those Benefits. 

7.8 Applicable Law.  The Plan shall be construed and enforced according to the 
laws of the State of California to the extent not pre-empted by any federal law. 

7.9 Lost Distributees.  Any benefit payable hereunder shall be deemed forfeited if 
the Employer is unable to locate the Participant to whom payment is due, provided, however, that such 
benefit shall be reinstated if a claim is made by the Participant for the forfeited benefit. 

7.10 Severability.  If any provision of this Plan shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision, and this Plan 
shall be construed and enforced as if such provision had not been included. 

7.11 Heirs and Assigns.  This Plan shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns of all parties, including each Participant and beneficiary. 
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7.12 Headings and Captions.  The headings and captions set forth in the Plan are 
provided for convenience only, shall not be considered part of the Plan, and shall not be employed in 
construction of the Plan. 

7.13 Multiple Functions.  Any person or group of persons may serve in more than 
one fiduciary capacity with respect to the Plan. 

7.14 Source of Payments.  The Employer shall be the sole source of Benefits under 
the Plan.  No Participant or beneficiary shall have any right to, or interest in, any assets of the 
Employer except as provided from time to time under the Plan, and then only to the extent of the 
Benefits which are payable under the Plan to such Participant or beneficiary. 

 

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has caused this Plan to be executed on January 15, 
2014. 

 EMPLOYER: 
 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OR 
ORANGE COUNTY 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
Name: ________________________________ 
Title: _________________________________ 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
CONTENT: 
 
BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Attorneys for Employer 
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MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY  
RETIREE MEDICAL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT PLAN 

 
REIMBURSEMENT CLAIM FORM 

Retiree Name:_____________________________________________ Social Security:_______________________ 
 
Address:___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Directions: List each expense separately.  Attach copy of invoice or receipt reflecting name/address of payee, individuals covered 

and type of coverage.  Canceled checks are not acceptable receipts.  Please submit the claim to ______________. 

Eligible Medicare Expenses 
Date of 

Expense Description of Expense Covered Persons Amount 

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

  TOTAL:  

 
 

Employee Certification 
I hereby certify that all expenses submitted for reimbursement comply with the Municipal Water District of Orange County Retiree 

Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan and such items have not and will not be covered by any plan or program of any employer or other 
person.  Municipal Water District of Orange County does not accept responsibility for direct payment to any individuals other than the retired 
employee. 

Employee Signature: ________________________________________        Date:____________________________ 
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GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
OF STAFF ACTIVITIES 

JANUARY 2014 
 

Managers' Meeting MWDOC held its Member Agency Managers’ meeting in Fountain Valley 
on Thursday, December 19.  In attendance were Howard Johnson (Brady); 
George Rivera (OCSD); Andy Brunhart (SCWD); Thom Coughran (La 
Palma); Paul Cook (IRWD); Bob Hill (ETWD); Joone Lopez and Matt 
Collings (MNWD); Mike Dunbar (EBSD); Dan Ferons (SMWD); George 
Murdoch (Newport); Brian Ragland (Huntington Beach); Hector Ruiz 
(TCWD); Matt Holder (LCG); Michael Grisso (Buena Park); Lisa Ohlund 
(EOCWD); Mike Markus (OCWD); and Karl Seckel; Harvey De La 
Torre; Darcy Burke; Richard Bell; Keith Lyon; Warren Greco; Kelly 
Hubbard; and Lee Jacobi of staff. 
 
The agenda included: 
 

1. Presentation on Polling Results by Matt Holder of Lewis 
Consulting. 

2. MWDOC/OCWD Consolidation  
3. MWDOC’s Budget Process  
4. BDCP Communication Process 
5. Budget Preparation Schedule 
6. WEROC Agency Map Sharing 
7. Water Supply Update 

 
The next meeting is scheduled for January 16. 
 

Meetings with 
MWDOC Member 
Agencies 

Karl met with Andy Brunhart, General Manager of South Coast Water 
District, along with Assistant General Manager, Betty Burnett, and 
District Engineer, Dave Youngblood, to discuss the Doheny Desal Project. 
 
Karl and Richard have been working with MET, South Coast Water 
District, Laguna Beach County Water District and San Juan Basin 
Authority on the Foundational Action Program Funding Agreements.  
These agreements will result in $200,000 in funding for the Doheny Desal 
Project and another $200,000 in funding for the San Juan Groundwater 
Basin Optimization Study. 
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MET ITEMS CRITICAL TO 

ORANGE COUNTY 

 
 

MET’s 
Water 
Supply 
Conditions 

State Water Project Deliveries 
For calendar year 2014, the Department of Water Resources (DWR) announced 
an initial “Table A” allocation of just five percent of requested deliveries to SWP 
contractors.  This was only the second time in history that the initial forecast has 
been so low.  However, it is still early in the water year and DWR will update the 
allocation periodically during the winter period.  On average, half of California's 
annual precipitation occurs December through February. 
 
DWR conducts manual snow surveys around the first of the month from January 
to May.  The results of the first snow survey of the year indicated that water 
content in the northern Sierras is only 11 percent of normal for this time of year.  
Similarly, the 8-Station Index currently estimates that overall precipitation in the 
Northern Sierras is only 3.2 inches, or just 17 percent of normal.  December was 
particularly dry with only 0.8 inches of precipitation compared to an average of 
over 8 inches.   
 
Reservoirs in the SWP system began the year below average and have continued 
to fall as a result of the dry weather.  Lake Oroville, the SWP's principal 
reservoir, is at 36 percent of capacity and 57 percent of its historical average.  San 
Luis Reservoir, a vital south-of-Delta supply pool for the SWP, is at only 30 
percent of capacity and 43 percent of the historical average. 
 
Colorado River Deliveries 
Conditions on the Colorado River have continued to improve.  Projections made by 
the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) in their 2-year outlook of reservoir 
elevations improved in December.  While long-term drought conditions continue to 
affect the Colorado River Basin, precipitation has been about average, which has 
brought some relief.   
 
In August 2013, the official outlook projected Lake Mead to fall to an elevation of 
1,061 feet by the summer of 2015, well below the elevation where shortages are 
declared on the Colorado River (1,075 feet).  In December, Reclamation’s updated 
outlook projects Lake Mead to be 1,081 feet in the summer of 2015.  That is a 20 
foot improvement, but would still leave Lake Mead only six feet above the shortage 
trigger for a potential shortage in 2016. 
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MET’s Finance and 
Rate Issues 

At the December MET Finance and Insurance Committee meeting, 
CFO, Gary Breaux, reported that water sales through November were 
131.6 TAF higher than budgeted and 38.5 TAF higher than the 5-year 
average.  This is mainly due to additional purchases of untreated water 
for replenishment purposes and additional purchases from the City of 
Los Angeles due to their low deliveries from the Los Angeles Aqueduct.  
As a result, water sale revenues are $97.2 million higher than budget, 
including $10.9 million from Tier 2 purchases.   
 
Later this month, MET staff plans to present their proposed Biennial 
Budget for FY 2014/15 and 2015/16, Revenue Requirements, and Water 
Rates & Charges to the MWD Board.  In February, the MET Board will 
hold its 1st budget workshop and commence with setting its Public 
Hearing for March.  Consideration of action by the MET Board on the 
Biennial Budget and Rates are expected to occur in April 2014.    

Colorado River 
Issues 

Imperial Irrigation District, Metropolitan Sign Agreement to Fund 
Conservation in Mexico 
General Managers from Imperial Irrigation District (IID) and MET 
signed an agreement to fund water conservation activities in Mexico and 
equally share in the water that will be made available to MET under 
Minute 319.  Under the agreement, IID and MET will each contribute 
$2.5 million to implement conservation actions in Mexico, and each 
agency will receive 22,750 acre-feet of water added to their respective 
Intentionally Created Surplus accounts in Lake Mead.  This agreement 
is part of the implementation of Minute 319 to the United States-Mexico 
International Water Treaty. 

Bay Delta/State 
Water Project Issues 

Bay Delta Conservation Plan 
The state of California and its federal partners, U.S. Bureau of 
Reclamation (USBR), U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), and 
National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), released the Bay Delta 
Conservation Plan (BDCP) for formal public review. This is a 
significant milestone in the effort to secure a decision on the BDCP to 
restore ecosystem health and secure reliable water supplies for 
California. The release is a key step toward completion of a final plan 
and corresponding environmental documents. Release of the public 
review draft of the BDCP and its corresponding Draft Environmental 
Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) commences 
a 120-day public review period, from December 13, 2013, through April 
14, 2014.  
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Bay Delta/State 
Water Project Issues 
(Continued) 

From mid-January through mid-February 2014, experts will be available 
at a dozen separate public meetings to facilitate review of the BDCP, 
and to hear public comments on the BDCP and its accompanying 
environmental documents.  The 9,000-page BDCP and its corresponding 
25,000-page Draft EIR/EIS reflect significant revisions since the 
informal release of the second administrative review draft last spring 
and summer.   
 
The BDCP aims to both stabilize water deliveries from the Delta and 
contribute to the recovery of 56 species of plants, fish and wildlife over 
the proposed 50-year life of the BDCP.  The BDCP aims to both reverse 
the ecological decline of the region and modernize a water system that 
now depends on hundreds of miles of earthen levees vulnerable to 
earthquake, flood, and rising sea levels.  
 

Delta Stewardship Council 

The Delta Stewardship Council (Council) held a one-day meeting on 
December 19.  At that meeting, representatives from the Department of 
Water Resources (DWR) briefed the Council on the draft BDCP and its 
impacts in the Delta.  The Council also discussed funding priorities for 
state investments in Delta levees and considered an interagency 
agreement between the Council and DWR regarding updating the Delta 
Plan’s priorities for state investments in Delta levees. In November 
2013, the council met for two days while the Council and Independent 
Science Board met jointly to discuss their review of the BDCP. 

 
ENGINEERING & PLANNING 

 
 

Planning for AMP 
11-Day Shutdown 

MET is shutting down the Allen-McColloch Pipeline (AMP) for 11 
days, January 13 - 23, for inspection and mortar lining repair of the 
north half of this 25-mile long pipeline.  When the north half of the 
AMP is shut down, there is no service in the south half either.  So, all 13 
agencies using the AMP are affected, although most have backup 
sources.  MWDOC hosted a pre-shutdown coordination meeting on 
December 18 that was attended by representatives of 10 retail agencies, 
MET and MWDOC.   Lee Jacobi met separately with EOCWD since 
their wholesale system off of connection OC-70 is highly impacted by 
this shutdown.  EOCWD then developed a special operations plan for 
this shutdown.    
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Baker WTP Project 
Progress 

The Baker Water Treatment Plant joint-agency project will treat raw 
water, mostly from MET and some from Irvine Lake.  Some of the 43.5 
cfs of product water will go into the Irvine Ranch WD’s system, and 
some will be pumped into the South County Pipeline (SCP) that is partly 
owned by MET.  MWDOC is facilitating the upsizing of the MET raw 
water connection, and is also facilitating the checking of design of the 
pump-in of Irvine Lake water, and of the pump-in of treated water into 
the SCP.  Lee processed an additional payment in December for final 
checking and construction inspection.  MET completed checking of 
design of the OC-33 upsizing plus Santiago Lateral air valves in 
November, and of the design of pump-in to the SCP in December.  
Some minor checking work remains.  IRWD has already awarded the 
construction contract.  MWDOC is continuing to work with MET to 
gain approval for the quality of water being pumped into the South 
County Pipeline.   

Doheny Desalination 
Project 

Work is underway on: 
 
• Site appraisal to negotiate a site lease extension with State Parks. 
• Discussions regarding the Phase 3 Wind-Up Agreement 
• Completing agreements for funding of the Doheny Desal 

Foundational Action Program work 
• Considering whether to submit for a DWR Grant 

San Juan Basin 
Authority 

Richard participated in the San Juan Basin Authority meeting where 
they discussed adoption of the Groundwater Management Plan. 

Irvine Ranch WD 
Potential LRP 

Harvey and Keith held a second meeting with Mike Hoolihan, Mark 
Tettemer and Kellie Welch from IRWD to further discussions about a 
potential new Local Resources Project (LRP) that would increase 
production and use of recycled water by about 620 acre-feet per year. A 
meeting has been scheduled for late January with MET and IRWD staff 
to discuss eligibility for LRP incentives for IRWD’s potential project. 

OCWD Producers 
Meeting 

The OCWD Producers meeting was moved back to January 15 due to 
the holidays, so a summary of the meeting will be provided with the 
February MWDOC GM report. 

 
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 

 
 

WEROC General 
Activities 

Kelly attended the California Emergency Services Association, Southern 
Chapter Annual Board retreat in December. This one day meeting is to 
plan the organizations’ goals and budgetary needs for the next year.  
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Water Trailers MWDOC signed a change order with the Arizona Trailer Company for the 

additional 2 trailers that were approved for grant funding. The two trailers 
have been delivered to MWDOC. Staff is working on securing Transfer of 
Equipment agreements with the two agencies who will be receiving the 
trailers.  At this time, staff is working with the Cities of Buena Park and 
Newport Beach. Staff has identified two additional agencies (who already 
received 1 trailer each) in case these two cities cannot take the trailers.  
 
Reimbursement packets have been submitted to the City of Santa Ana for 
14 of the 15 trailers for a total reimbursement request of $464,152. The last 
trailer reimbursement request will be submitted in January for the 
remaining $33,152 of the grant. 

Member Agency 
Coordination 

Staff met with the Yorba Linda Water District to discuss their emergency 
preparedness plan and training program.  YLWD District recently hired a 
new safety position that will have lead responsibility for emergency 
preparedness.  
  
Staff provided WEROC Radio training to Orange County Water District 
Field Headquarters staff.  
 
Staff attended a Moulton Niguel Water District Emergency Operations 
Center (EOC) training as an observer.  
 
Kelly provided four 3-hour NIMS 100& 700 with SEMS Intro trainings to 
approximately 60 water utility staff.  This is a required training for 
National Incident Management System (NIMS) compliance. 

Coordination 
with the County 
of Orange 

Kelly attended a Disability, Access and Functional Needs (AFN) First 
Responder training hosted by the County. The goal was to learn how to 
take into account disability, access and functional needs when planning for 
water distribution and the use of the water trailers following an emergency. 
Several lessons were learned and will be incorporated into the Water 
Trailer SOP for all the agencies. 

Coordination 
with Outside 
Agencies 

Kelly participated in the CA Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network  
State Steering Committee monthly conference call. The group is 
developing a series of programs to help water utilities with fuel planning. 

WEROC 
Emergency 
Operations 
Center (EOC) 
Readiness 

Staff participated in the OA Radio Test successfully.   
 
Staff met with MET staff for an annual North EOC lease review.  
 
MET has been in the process of installing a completely new MARS radio 
system.  MET paid for one of WEROC’s MARS radios to be replaced and 
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WEROC 
Emergency 
Operations 
Center (EOC) 
Readiness 
(Continued) 

WEROC had the other two replaced from the WEROC budget. 
Unfortunately, Met discovered an interference problem with the new 
system and frequency.  WEROC staff discussed the cost of having a radio 
company do the reprogramming with Met staff, and Met agreed to 
reprogram all 3 of the WEROC radios with their own staff and at no cost to 
WEROC.  Staff was able to successfully participate in the MARS radio test 
from 2 of the WEROC radios this month.  
 
At the last annual maintenance appointment for the North EOC generator, 
some costly repairs and preventative maintenance were recommended by 
the vendor.  The recommendations seem reasonable considering the age 
and use of the generator. In discussing the recommended repairs, staff 
decided with the vendor on a slightly more conservative course of repairs 
with the understanding that additional repairs may still be needed. Staff 
received 2 quotes for repair.  A third vendor reviewed the generator, but 
never submitted a quote after multiple reminders.  Staff has scheduled 
service with the vendor with the lowest quote and is waiting for some parts 
on back order.  
 
Staff completed updates to the MWDOC Continuity of Operations Plan 
(COOP) and the WEROC Autopaks.  The Autopaks include critical contact 
and disaster response information and are distributed to staff that both 
assist with the COOP and the WEROC EOC’s.  The updated packs will be 
distributed in January. 

 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY 

 
 

California 
Urban Water 
Conservation 
Council 
(CUWCC) 

Executive Director Search Committee Meeting 
On December 10, Joe Berg participated in the CUWCC Executive Director 
Search Committee Meeting hosted by the City of Santa Rosa.  The current 
Executive Director, Chris Brown, is moving on after eight years of service. 
The Committee reviewed applications for 27 candidates and selected five 
candidates for a panel interview scheduled for January 7.  Final interviews 
for approximately three candidates will be conducted by the Board of 
Directors on January 16. 
 
Plenary Meeting 
On December 11, Joe participated in the quarterly Plenary Meeting, 
which was hosted by the City of Santa Rosa.  This was a general 
business meeting of the full CUWCC membership.  Approximately 70 
water agencies and environmental advocacy organizations participated.  
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California Urban 
Water 
Conservation 
Council 
(Continued) 

At this meeting, Joe was reelected to the Board of Directors for another 2-
year term.  Joe was also selected to receive the Lana Sherman Award, 
which recognizes local and community innovations in water conservation.   
 
Landscape Committee Conference Calls  
Melissa Baum-Haley participated in multiple conference calls for the 
CUWCC Landscape Committee. The purpose of these conference calls was 
to discuss the tools and work plan for implementing the “landscape new 
norm,” which is a holistic approach to landscape design and management 
to achieve water and resource savings. 
 
Landscape Symposium Planning Committee Meetings 
On December 20 and 23, Joe participated in Landscape Symposium 
Planning Committee Meetings.  The CUWCC has been asked by several 
state agencies, including the Department of Water Resources, State Water 
Resources Control Board, Department of Pesticide Regulation, and Cal 
Recycle, to lead the development and implementation of several Landscape 
Symposiums.  The focus of these Symposiums is to provide a broad base of 
stakeholders working with these agencies with education on the 
interrelatedness of urban landscape management.  Joe was asked to chair 
this effort due to his research and partnerships with these state agencies.  
Weekly meetings are planned through spring to prepare for these 
Symposiums, which are scheduled to be held in late spring 2014. 

DWR Technical 
Panel Webinar 

On December 16, Joe participated in a Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) Independent Technical Panel (ITP) Webinar.  The ITP is focusing 
on developing 20 X 2020 compliance year adjustments for significant 
changes in water use associated with weather and economic variations.  
The ITP is also evaluating the need to extend the deadline for submittal of 
Urban Water Management Plans from December 31, 2015 to June 30, 2016 
to allow agencies to include the full 2015 calendar year water use in the 20 
X 2020 compliance reporting.  The next meeting is scheduled for January 
14 at Western MWD. 

Spray to Drip 
Pilot Program 
 

On December 17, Melissa and Steve Hedges met with Anita Matlock of 
Rain Bird to discuss facilitation of the Spray to Drip Pilot Program. The 
Program will provide residential customers with a rebate for purchasing 
drip irrigation kits to be installed in place of spray irrigation.  

SAWPA OWOW 
Workshop 

On December 19, Joe and Melissa participated via conference call in the 
Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) One Water One 
Watershed (OWOW) Integration Planning Workshop.  The purpose of the 
Workshop was to discuss the State of California’s view on Integrated 
Regional Water Management and to provide an update on funding.  Also 
discussed was the OWOW plan and systems approach.  

 
  

Page 204 of 210



General Manager’s January 2014 Report  Page 9 
 

 
Orange County 
Garden Friendly 
Pilot Program 

On December 12 and January 6, Melissa and Jessica Ouwerkerk met 
with the County of Orange and the University of California Cooperative 
Extension to develop the Orange County Garden Friendly (OCGF) 
Program. The OCGF Program is a collaborative effort of the Orange 
County Stormwater Program, MWDOC, and the University of 
California Cooperative Extension. 

 
PUBLIC/GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS 

 
 

Member Agency 
Relations 

Director Larry Dick has been working with Darcy and Tiffany on his 
next State Water Project Inspection trip with Assemblyman Allen 
scheduled for January 17 and 18.  Darcy is also working with Director 
Brett Barbre and the OC Grand Jury for their Colorado River Aqueduct 
(CRA) trip on January 31 and February 1. 
 
Director Barbre and Darcy had a planning meeting with Albert Mendez, 
the new, temporary Inspection Trip Coordinator at MET, for the 
upcoming CRA trip. 
 
Tiffany redesigned the Inspection trip webpage to reflect most current 
information, updated briefing papers & new program video presentation. 
  
Darcy and Jessica are working with Metropolitan staff and our Member 
Agencies to coordinate outreach efforts for the upcoming Shutdown.  
Finalized information will be provided to the Board and Member 
Agencies. 
 
On December 19, Darcy presented an update on the Bay Delta 
Conservation Plan to the East Orange County Water District Board of 
Directors. 
 
Darcy has been asked to participate in the City of San Juan Capistrano’s 
Second Water Forum on February 11, 2014.  The event is planned as a 
duplicate of the last event held in early December. 
 
Jessica developed and distributed a press release in conjunction with 
MWD staff regarding the planned AMP shutdown that begins January 
13. 
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Member Agency 
Relations 
(Continued) 

The next Public Affairs Workgroup meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, 
January 21.  Discussion topics will include drought messaging, the 
Regional Communications Plan, and other topics. 
 
For distribution to their customers, Jessica will be providing 1,200 native 
plant brochures to East Orange County Water District. 
 
Jessica worked with the management team to develop drought message 
points in response to a request from the Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services.  The talking points describe our water supply situation (it’s dry 
but we are in no immediate danger) as well as things we can all do to be 
more water efficient.  
 
For use in their BMP reporting efforts, Jessica compiled historic water 
education and public affairs program data for the City of San Clemente. 

Community 
Relations 

Darcy, Jessica and Tiffany continue to work on the 2013 Annual Report, 
which will be available on the MWDOC website in both electronic and 
printable versions. 
 
Tiffany, Jessica, Vivian, and Sarah implemented MWDOC’s social media 
activities through Facebook, Twitter, and Pinterest. 
 
Jessica participated in the January 7 ISDOC Executive Committee meeting. 
She also worked to plan and promote the January 30 ISDOC Luncheon, 
and secured guest speaker, Aaron Kushner, Publisher of the OC Register, 
as the guest speaker.  She is currently working to distribute the 2014 
membership dues to the regular and associate members. 
 
Tiffany and Public Affairs Interns, Sarah Franks and Vivian Lam, are 
contacting all MWDOC member agencies and OC special districts to 
update the 2014 MWDOC and ISDOC Directories. 
 
Jessica will be staffing the WACO meeting on January 10. The guest 
speakers will be James Famiglietti of UC Center for Hydrologic Modeling 
and Kurt Berchtold of the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control 
Board.   
 
The next Water Policy Forum & Dinner is scheduled for Thursday, 
February 6, 2014.  The guest speaker will be Dr. Christopher Thornberg, 
esteemed economist and Founding Partner of Beacon Economics, LLC. 
Jessica is currently working to promote the event to participants while 
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Community 
Relations 
(Continued) 

planning the event logistics.  A save the date was distributed and an 
invitation is pending approval from MET staff. 
 
Jessica participated in a conference call with staff of Inside the Outdoors 
regarding the EPA’s Environmental Education grant program.  Last year, 
Jessica submitted a proposal for a collaborative water education with 
several education institutions, non-profits, and water districts.  The 
proposal was rated very highly but was not ultimately selected to receive 
funding.  This year Inside the Outdoors will be taking the lead on a 
proposal for a similar program. 

Education The current participation target for the 2013-14 Water Education 
Assembly Program is 78,425 students, and currently 56,907 students 
have been booked. During the month of December, 3,322 students 
participated in the Traditional Assembly Program and 425 students 
participated in the Keypad Program. No students have participated in the 
Water Quality Program thus far. 
 
Director Hinman, Jessica, and Sherri Seitz of El Toro are scheduled to 
observe the Keypad Program at Gates Elementary School in Lake Forest 
on January 13. 

Media Relations Heddy Chang, a reporter from KNBC, called Darcy regarding the drought 
conditions.  Ms. Chang had scheduled an interview but subsequently 
postponed it. 

Special Projects Darcy finished the Value of Water Communications Plan and is making 
final edits for my review.  Once finalized, the draft Plan will be provided 
to the Public Affairs and Legislation Committee and then the Public 
Affairs Workgroup and Member Agency Managers.  Darcy is also 
working on a Request For Qualifications for the Focus Group and 
Subject Matter Expert Consultation portions of the plan. 
 
Darcy has submitted additional requested information to the OC Grand 
Jury and Karl is preparing his additional items as well. 
 
To finalize the sponsorship materials and review the draft program, 
Director Thomas, Director Sheldon (OCWD), Darcy and Eleanor Torres 
had a brief OC Water Summit Planning meeting. 
 
Darcy is coordinating with Lewis and Associates on a number of requests 
for additional Value of Water Survey presentations. 
 
Darcy is working on developing the Public Affairs 2014-2015 Budget. 
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Special Projects 
(Continued) 

Darcy is working with Joe Berg in finalizing a script for a video series for 
the Orange County Public Works department.  The series will focus on 
nine projects that have received funding including The Reserve Project. 
 
Darcy is scheduled to attend a joint PIO-WUE meeting at Metropolitan to 
review progress on the Market Transformation plan on January 16.  
Drought and BDCP messaging will also be discussed.  A similar meeting 
will be held in Orange County to coordinate on message points. 
 
Jessica and Melissa met with staff of OC Stormwater Program, IRWD, 
San Clemente, UC Cooperative Extension, and Communications Lab on 
January 6 to discuss the pilot OC Garden Friendly program. The 
committee is currently selecting dates for the pilot events.  
. 

Water-Use 
Efficiency 
Marketing 
 

Jessica is working with a graphic designer and printer to finalize and 
print more than 300,000 water use efficiency bill inserts, which will be 
distributed by the retail agencies to Orange County customers.  The 
inserts will go out through the water bills from February to April.  
 
To finalize the custom Home Survey Report for participants in the Water 
Smart Home Program, Jessica is working with the water use efficiency 
department. 
  
Tiffany redesigned several Water Use Efficiency webpages to include 
most current information, featured program callout boxes, and new 
visually appealing graphics. 
 

Legislative Affairs Issues with the Air Quality Management District were discussed when 
Darcy met with Ed Laird.  Mr. Laird provided insight as well as 
recommendations in moving these issues forward.  Currently, staff is 
pursuing these suggestions. 
 
Darcy has been meeting with Townsend Public Affairs (TPA) on a bi-
weekly basis.  Current efforts underway are to develop specific goals and 
strategies for the next legislative session for the Public Affairs and 
Legislation Committee’s review and consideration.  TPA is also 
scheduling in-district meetings for Directors and Staff in January and 
February.  In addition, Darcy will be bringing the TPA Contract to the 
Public Affairs and Legislation Committee for consideration. 
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Legislative Affairs 
(Continued) 

Darcy is coordinating with staff of Eastern Municipal Water District 
(EMWD), Western Municipal Water District (WMD) and Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency (IEUA) on the upcoming February 28, 2014 ACWA DC 
Luncheon. The room has been secured and the save-the-date and 
invitations are being distributed.  Staff is now working on leave-behind 
materials and coordinating messages and the program.  In addition, 
efforts are underway for the shared reception in Sacramento on March 5th 
in conjunction with ACWA’s Symposium.  IEUA will take the lead for 
that event.  
 
Director Barbre and Darcy met to review legislative affairs efforts and to 
discuss possible enhancements in the future. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
pat meszaros 
   1/9/14 
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 ITEM NO. 8 
INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 
 

MWDOC GENERAL INFORMATION 
ITEMS 

 
 
MWDOC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

 • Brett R. Barbre 
 
 

 • Larry D. Dick 
 
 

 • Wayne Osborne 
 
 

 • Joan Finnegan  
 
 

 • Wayne A. Clark 
 
 

 • Jeffery M. Thomas 
 
 

 • Susan Hinman 
 
 
 
action.sht\agendas\mwdocact.pac 
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